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Chairman’s Statement
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Lim Ee Seng Chairman
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OVERVIEW

It is in the light of the prevailing financial crisis and volatility that |
present this annual report for the financial year ended 30 September
2008 to the shareholders. During the year under review, the Group
realized a profit attributable to shareholders of HK$8.3 million,
compared with the HK$147.2 million reported for the year ended 30
September 2007.

The coordinated responses to the international financial crisis from
governments of the major economies — Britain, France, Germany,
US, Japan, China and South Korea — have hitherto been unable
to calm the worldwide market turmoil. By late October 2008, the
crisis has deepened as stock prices across the world declined
sharply, with Japan’s Nikkei 225 Average battered to a 26-year
low after falling 6.36% on 27 October. The many measures and
initiatives taken by the governments to rescue ailing financial
institutions will need time to prove their effectiveness in unfreezing
lending. Meanwhile, governments and regulators across the world
are moving swiftly to tackle the challenges posed by the global
financial meltdown, the most daunting of which is to stave off a major
recession.
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After years of annual double-digit economic growth, and with more
than US$1.9 trillion in foreign reserves as well as a closed financial
system that protected it from toxic US assets, China seemed less
affected by the crisis. However, China announced on 20 October
2008 that its economy expanded by 9% in the three months to the
end of September 2008 - its first slide into single digits since 2005
and its lowest growth rate since 2003 — as demand for Chinese
goods, property and other investments weakened. Across the Pearl
River Delta region, large numbers of workers have been laid off as
factories closed in rapid response to shrinking export volumes, the
property market across the country slowed and confidence in stock
markets plunged. As at 27 October, the Shanghai Composite Index
has fallen 67.25% so far in 2008. Clearly the world’s fourth biggest
economy will not escape unscathed from the financial meltdown and
looming recession.

BUILDING A BUSINESS PLATFORM FOR GROWTH

As outlined in last year’s Chairman’s Statement, consistent with
the strategy to pursue sustainable growth and maximization of
long-term shareholder value, the foremost priority during the year
under review was to seek new investment opportunities in mainland
China. In this process, the Group identified and investigated many
proposals, including participation in public land tenders, in various
cities considered to be vibrant and fast-growing. However, as stated
in that Statement, in the pursuit of new investments, the Group has
been selective so as not to overpay for any acquisition, driven by the
conviction that its financial resources must be allocated optimally
while remaining vigilant to risk and uncertainty. The Group has
exercised and will continue to exercise discipline and prudence in
this process and invest only in projects which can meet its criteria.
In this context, the Group secured a prime commercial development
site in Shenyang at a public land auction on 2 July 2008 at a cost of
RMB386 million (approximately HK$434 million).
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As the global crisis starts to take its toll on the mainland’s economy,
the outlook for the property market has turned negative, with
some analysts predicting a meltdown because prices are too high,
especially in the first tier cities which have enjoyed substantial price
appreciation in recent years; some developers are over-leveraged
and cash-strapped; and certain cities are over-supplied in some
sectors. Already, cities like Shenzhen are experiencing steep
corrections, with prices down as much as 40% from a peak a year
earlier.

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

Revenue for the year ended 30 September 2008 was HK$123.6
million, marginally lower than the HK$128.6 million realized for the
previous year ended 30 September 2007. It is noteworthy that for
the first time as much as 69% of this year’s revenue was contributed
by the rental income from the two business park assets. While
sales proceeds from the completed residential projects fell as the
inventory of units available for sale shrank, rental income from the
business parks rose to HK$85.5 million from last year's HK$63.5
million, boosted by the maiden full year contribution from the lease
of the newly-completed phase 2B of Vision Shenzhen Business Park
(VSBP).

This robust rental revenue growth augers well and reflects that the
Group now has built up a considerable stream of recurrent income
and quality cashflow. The Group will continue to enhance the income
capacity of these business park assets in the long-term to maximize
yield and mitigate the inherent lumpiness of development income.

The after-tax profit attributable to equity holders recorded during
the year under review fell 94% to HK$8.3 million from HK$147.2
million for the previous year ended 30 September 2007. Included
in the results of the year under review was a net HK$31.2 million
revaluation deficit relating to changes in fair value of investment
properties while the results of the previous financial year had
recorded one-off gains from the disposal of seven floors of
Sohu.com Internet Plaza and disposal of interest in the residential
development site in Beijing. The earnings per share was HK0.12 cent
during the year under review compared with HK2.15 cents in the
preceding 12-month period.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

The operational priority during the year under review was to optimize
resources and streamline operations and organizational structures
S0 as to improve performance. Improved yields were extracted from
the existing portfolio of assets, both those held for investment and
trading income. With the recent acquisition of the development site in
Shenyang, the Group has expanded its footprint into a fifth city in the
mainland, in addition to its presence in Beijing, Shanghai, Shenzhen
and Dalian.

The completion of phase 2B of VSBP in 2007 marked the full
development of the entire phase 2 site. Together, phases 1 and 2
now offer a combined 125,000 sm of high-quality space within seven
office blocks, supported by a multi-storey car-park building and an
amenity center, amidst a landscaped park. VSBP has established
itself as a location of choice in Shenzhen for businesses which
require a well-maintained and conducive physical environment
backed by reliable quality property management services. As an
affirmation of this reputation, phases 1 and 2 enjoyed consistently
high occupancy throughout the year. The Group considers VSBP
its flagship property and will continue to position it as a world-class
facility.

Following the sale of the seven floors and naming right of the building
to Sohu.com in January 2007, the remaining space owned by the
Group’s 60%-held subsidiary, Vision Huaging (Beijing) Development
Co., Ltd., in the renamed Sohu.com Internet Plaza (SIP) enjoyed an
occupancy rate of over 95% during the year under review. SIP has
continued to maintain its enviable status as a high-quality landmark
building and a sought-after address within the Zhongguancun district
in Beijing.
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The Group continued to work closely with the joint venture partner,
FCL China, which holds the remaining 45.2% shareholding, in the
planning, development and marketing process of the Shanshui Four
Seasons site in Songjiang, Shanghai. The construction of phase 1
comprising 418 semi-detached and terrace houses is scheduled for
completion in early 2009 and marketing started in July 2008. As at
the time of writing, about 64% of the first launch of 136 units had
been pre-sold. This performance is most satisfactory in the context
of the current difficult market conditions. The Group will continue
to monitor the market closely so as to time the future releases of
the remaining units for sale in alignment with the anticipated market
absorption.

MOVING FORWARD

During the year under review, fresh and formal discussions
commenced with the Shenzhen authorities with the goal of reaching
an amicable resolution to the expired construction deadline and the
development parameters of the last land parcel of the Shenzhen site
— referred to as VSBP phase 3 — of 254,000 sm, with a developable
gross floor area of over 400,000 sm. Through these discussions, it is
hoped that a mutually beneficial outcome could be concluded during
the new financial year so that the development of this strategically
located site can start by 2010. The Group hopes that this future
development will help enhance Shenzhen'’s position as an economic
powerhouse and vibrant metropolis of the 21st century within the
fast-developing Pearl River Delta region.

The marketing of the rest of phase 1 of the Shanshui Four Seasons
project will continue at a pace commensurate with future market
conditions. With its tranquil surroundings, easy accessibility and
quality design concept, the project is expected to set a new
benchmark for style and luxury in its locality. Meanwhile, the plans
for phase 2, consisting of walk-up garden apartments and low-to-
medium apartments and several blocks of high-rise apartments,
were being finalized.
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The Group has started the designing and conceptualization phase
for the newly-acquired development site located along Shenyang’s
busiest thoroughfare of Qingniandajie. The 15,630 sm site has a
potential permissible gross floor area of 187,568 sm for commercial
use, comprising office, retail and hotel-style/serviced apartments.
With vacant possession of the site expected by January 2010, the
Group is positive about the long-term growth potential of this fast
growing capital city of Liaoning province. When completed by about
2014, this high-rise development will add yet another landmark to
Shenyang’s rapidly changing skyline.

It is widely expected that mainland China, which is the Group’s
almost exclusive place of investment and operations, is poised to
experience slowing economic growth, declining exports, increasing
unemployment and a weakening property market in 2009 and
possibly into 2010 in the face of the global financial turmoil and
looming recession. The mainland central government is expected
to put in place a stimulus package with emphasis on various
aspects such as developing China’s small-and medium-enterprise
sector, maintaining stable trade growth, strengthening its domestic
investment, controlling consumer prices, ensuring the health of
capital markets while monitoring risk and improving social welfare
which includes measures to support home ownership. It is hoped
that such measures will be sufficient to fend off the headwind of the
global financial meltdown and ensure China’s continued economic
growth, albeit at a lower rate than the past decade. Given China’s
sound economic fundamentals, relative liquidity and state of
growth, the Group believes that in the mid-to long-term, there will
still be sustainable demand in all property sectors, such as office,
residential, industrial parks and retail, in all major and secondary
cities, both coastal and inland.

The next 12 months will be filled with challenges and opportunities.
The Group will persist, albeit cautiously and prudently, to seek out
attractive investments for growth and expansion. With the current
global liquidity crunch and falling property prices worldwide, this
may be the appropriate time for the Group to seek out attractive
investment opportunities within its funding capacity, while striking a
right balance between acceptable risk and return expectations.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group believes that a total commitment to good corporate
conduct and governance is essential to the sustainability of its
business and performance. The Group monitors developments
in governance practices both in Hong Kong and abroad and
reviews the Group’s policies regularly with the view to enhance the
governance process. Where appropriate to safeguard the interests
of the shareholders, lenders and other stakeholders, the Group will
go beyond regulatory compliance and be driven by principles rather
than form.

An effective and robust board of directors whose members are
engaged in open and constructive debate and always ready to
challenge management on its assumptions and proposals is
fundamental to good corporate governance. In this context, | am
particularly proud that all our directors have discharged their duties
diligently and to the highest professional standards.

In pursuit of building its business and growth in China, the Group
faces various difficulties and uncertainties. It is therefore imperative
to strengthen the internal control processes as the Group expands
its activities to maintain a high standard of business ethics and
conduct. During the year, the Group refreshed operating rules and
guidelines and highlighted the “whistle-blower protection” policy to
all employees to further institutionalize it as a clearly-defined process
in which they can report in confidence possible improprieties which
may cause damage, financial or otherwise, to the Group or damage
to its reputation.
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Lim Ee Seng
Chairman
Hong Kong, 7 November 2008
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(In HK$°000)

Revenue

Profit attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent

Earnings per share (HK cents)

(In HK$’000)

Total assets
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minority interests)

Total borrowings

Net borrowings
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RESULTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2008

The Group recorded a profit attributable to shareholders of HK$8.3
million for the year ended 30 September 2008 versus HK$147.2
million for the year ended 30 September 2007. On a per-share basis,
the Group recorded earnings of HK0.12 cents.

The accounting policies and methods of computation used in
the preparation of the financial statements for the year ended 30
September 2008 were consistent with those used in the previous
year ended 30 September 2007.

The profit for the year ended 30 September 2008 was mainly
attributable to the gain on the disposal of a non-core asset of
HK$12.7 million (a villa together with the transfer of the ownership of
golf club membership in Shenzhen), the write-back of over-accruals
and obsolete accounts payable of HK$14.8 million and the deferred
tax credit adjustment of HK$25.1 million due to the unification of
PRC income tax rate effective from 1 January 2008 and partially
offset by the revaluation deficit of HK$31.2 million in investment
properties.

REVIEW OF OVERALL PERFORMANCE

The revenue for the year ended 30 September 2008 decreased
by 3.9% to HK$123.6 million from HK$128.6 million for the
corresponding year ended 30 September 2007. The lower revenue
was primarily due to the reduced sales realized from the completed
Ninth ZhongShan project, partially offset by the higher rental and
property management fee income produced by Vision Shenzhen
Business Park (VSBP), which was boosted by the first full year
contribution from the lease of phase 2B space.
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Operating profit amounted to HK$28.7 million for the year under
review against HK$269.2 million for year ended 30 September 2007.
The higher profit of the previous year had been bolstered by the
non-current gains on the disposal of interest in a development site
in Beijing and the sale of the seven floors (with naming rights of the
building) and ten car-park lots in Beijing Sohu.com Internet Plaza
(SIP), formerly known as Vision International Centre, for a total sum of
HK$218.5 million and was partially offset by a provision of HK$76.7
million, being the rebate of the land premium receivable under the
relevant agreements in connection with the disposal of interest in the
development site in Beijing. As at the date of this report, steps had
been initiated to claim this rebate in accordance with the agreements
entered into by the Group. Notwithstanding utmost efforts being
directed to realize a successful outcome, the amount recoverable
and timing of receipt are still indeterminate.

During the year under review, other losses included changes to
the fair values of investment properties totalling HK$31.2 million,
partially offset by a gain of HK$12.7 million on the disposal of a non-
core asset (a villa with the transfer of the ownership of golf club
membership in Shenzhen) and the write-back of over-accruals and
obsolete accounts payable of HK$14.8 million.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved not to propose any final dividend for the year
ended 30 September 2008 (year ended 30 September 2007: Nil).

BUSINESS SEGMENTS
Property development

For the year ended 30 September 2008, the property development
segment contributed revenue of HK$38.1 million or 30.8% of the
total revenue, compared to HK$65.1 million or 50.6% of the total
revenue for the year ended 30 September 2007. Of the HK$38.1
million revenue, HK$32.4 million was contributed by the sale
of apartments and the property management fee income from
The Ninth ZhongShan, Dalian, while another HK$4.5 million was
contributed by Scenic Place, Beijing.
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During the year under review, about 87 units of the Shanshui Four
Seasons project in Songjiang, Shanghai were pre-sold. However,
no revenue had been recognized in the year under review. In
compliance with accounting standards, revenue will be recognized
upon the issue of building occupation permit for the pre-sold units by
the relevant authority. All payments received prior to this stage were
recorded as deposits received.

Business park

During the year under review, revenue generated by the business
park segment grew by 34.6%, from HK$63.5 million for the year
ended 30 September 2007 to HK$85.5 million, representing 69.2%
of the total revenue for the year ended 30 September 2008. This
improved revenue was mainly due to higher yield of VSBP phase 1
and the incremental rental income from a newly completed part of
phase 2.

GEOGRAPHICAL MARKETS

Hong Kong

Reflecting the consequence of the shift of the Group’s investment
focus to the mainland of the past few years, the revenue derived
from Hong Kong remained relatively negligible and stable. Revenue
of HK$1.2 million (1.0% of total revenue) was generated for the
year ended 30 September 2008 versus HK$1.1 million (0.9% of
total revenue) for the year ended 30 September 2007. The revenue
represented the rental income from the car-park lots held in a Hong
Kong residential development.

Mainland China

Revenue from operations in mainland China amounted to HK$122.3
million (99.0% of total revenue) for the year ended 30 September
2008 compared with HK$127.5 million (99.1% of total revenue) for
the year ended 30 September 2007. The revenue during the year
under review comprised mainly the rental income and property
management fee income (HK$85.5 million) contributed by VSBP
and SIP and the sales of apartments and the property management
fee income (HK$32.4 million) realized from The Ninth ZhongShan,
Dalian.
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ASSETS

The value of the Group’s total assets increased by 20.5% to
HK$4,457.2 million as at 30 September 2008 compared to
HK$3,699.1 million as at 30 September 2007.

Assets held under the property development segment amounted
to HK$3,305.0 million (74.1% of total assets) as at 30 September
2008 compared with HK$2,291.7 million (62.0% of total assets)
as at 30 September 2007. The higher amount reflected the
increase in capitalized development costs incurred in connection
with the Shanghai Songjiang project. In addition, a deposit of
HK$419.7 million was paid in connection with the acquisition of the
development site in Shenyang.

Assets held under the business park segment increased
marginally to HK$1,085.6 million as at 30 September 2008, up
from HK$1,082.0 million as at 30 September 2007, reflecting the
appreciation of the Renminbi against the Hong Kong dollar and
partially offset by changes in fair value of investment properties of
VSBP and that part of the SIP held.

Total assets held in mainland China amounted to HK$4,402.9 million
as at 30 September 2008, representing 98.8% the Group’s total
assets.

SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS

The Group’s total shareholders’ funds increased by 7.4% from
HK$1,671.1 million as at 30 September 2007 to HK$1,795.1 million
as at 30 September 2008. On a per-share basis, the consolidated
net asset value of the Group as at 30 September 2008 increased
to HK26.2 cents from HK24.4 cents as at 30 September 2007. The
total shareholders’ funds constituted 40.3% of the total assets of
HK$4,457.2 million as at 30 September 2008.
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FINANCIAL RESOURCES, LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

Liquidity and capital resources

The Group’s total borrowings increased by 26.4% to HK$1,505.9
million as at 30 September 2008 from HK$1,191.3 million as at
30 September 2007 and the net debt (measured by total bank
borrowings minus cash and bank deposits) increased to HK$909.4
million as at 30 September 2008 from HK$592.1 million as at 30
September 2007. The increase in net debt was due to the drawdown
of new loans of HK$103.2 million to finance the development costs
incurred in the Shanghai Songjiang project and deposit of HK$419.7
million paid for Shenyang project, partially offset by refund of two
land auction deposits totalling RMB250.0 million (approximately
HK$280.0 million). In tandem with the increased borrowings, the
Group’s gearing ratio (defined as the total borrowings over total
equity, including minority interests) rose to 72% as at 30 September
2008, up from 62% as at 30 September 2007. The Group’s cash
and bank balances remained relatively stable at HK$596.4 million
as at 30 September 2008 compared with HK$599.3 million as at 30
September 2007.

Frasers Property (China) Limited E¥ftthE (FE) GRA T
Annual Report 07/08 %

Financial Review

Br %5 [0 R

MBER RBESRERER

REBEBZEBEEBEH_ZTZELFNA
= Sl Z ‘;% #1,191,300,000 7T #& A1
26.4% & ZENFAA=ZTHZEE
1,505,900,0007z I E R FRE(ART
EREBREe RIBTHERGTE) B
ZELFEHA=+HZ#E592,100,000
TENMEZZTZENFANA=TRHZEE
909,400,000 7T * BB FFEIEMEERH
RIRET B A1 103,200,000 JTIA 2
T ESHANTIEE BE A 2 KA R E
(518 B 21k BB 419,700,000 7T + &b
DEEHEDMBELIBAERSAEAA
R # 250,000,000 7t ( #;% # 280,000,000
TC)FTKEE c BEEEFIEM - AEEZE
EEELRE(EEREETBRAERE
B RESEREER) BT LFNA
T HEZ2REBMEZTENFALA=T
H272% - ZAEBR =S N\FLA=+
AR RBRTEFDRFAEEE

A& 8 5096,400,0007T ' MR —_ZFZLF
NA=Z+THZHRE MRITEFR AEKE
599,300,000 JT °

15



16

Frasers Property (China) Limited £¥itthE (FEl) BRA T
Annual Report 07/08 %

Financial Review

B %% [l 8
Short-term and long-term borrowings
The maturity profiles of the Group’s bank and other borrowings

outstanding as at 30 September 2008 and 30 September 2007 are
summarized below:

Within the first year FA

In the second year FFR

In the third to fifth year, inclusive FEFLF (BHEEEMSF)
Wholly repayable within five years ARAFANEEEER

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

Foreign currency risk

All borrowings denominated in Hong Kong dollar, Renminbi and
United States dollar increased during the year under review. Most of
the borrowings were matched by assets denominated in Renminbi.
The foreign currency risk exposure was considered acceptable and
no hedging was considered necessary.
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The currency denominations of the Group’s bank borrowings
outstanding as at 30 September 2008 and 30 September 2007 are
summarized below:

Hong Kong dollar et
Renminbi AR
United States dollar T
Total Rk

Interest rate risk

With borrowings applied to finance the development projects, the
Group was exposed to changes in interest rate fluctuations to the
extent that they affected the cost of funds of floating rate borrowings.
As at 30 September 2008, all borrowings of the Group were on
a floating rate basis. In the current financial crisis, interest rate
movements were expected to be volatile and uncertain within the
next few months but no hedging was considered necessary, with
the cost of hedging being prohibitive. The Group would continue to
regularly monitor the suitability and cost efficiency of hedging and the
need for a mix of fixed and floating rate borrowings.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As at 30 September 2008, the Group’s bank borrowings were

secured by certain investment properties with a total value of
HK$147.1 million (30 September 2007: HK$136.4 million).

Frasers Property (China) Limited E¥ftthE (FE) GRA T

Annual Report 07/08 %

Financial Review

Br %5 [0 R

AEBR-FZTN\FAAZTER-FE
TFENA=TBHRAREEZRITERLR
REESBERIT ¢

As at
Ji

30 September 30 September
2008 2007
—EEN\F —TTHF
AB=+H NA=+H
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T AETT
138,274 -
1,086,844 1,034,285
280,747 157,036
1,505,865 1,191,321

FEER

AEBEZEFANMEERRE A ZE
2T BRMENEBEBEHFEERKA
ZHE - R-FETN\FAA=+TH &
BERZEHEFGAFTHF RS - &
ARESRBEE T  BHAREAZH X
2HRIRENTRAAZEE - i1 LK
AR FMRALELEETEH - K
SESREE R 2B M ER A
REE R FBMEEFTAE 2 LB -

BEERR

RZBEZBENFAA=TH, KEEZRT
BT AR E A & B 147,100,000
T(ZZEZELtFALA=Z+H: B
136,400,000 ) 2 & TR EWEEAEK
ﬁ °

17



18

Frasers Property (China) Limited £¥itthE (FEl) BRA T
Annual Report 07/08 %

Financial Review

81 %5 51 BE

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 30 September 2008, the Company issued guarantees to the
extent of HK$199.5 million (30 September 2007: HK$201.6 million)
of which HK$188.1 million (30 September 2007: HK$201.6 million)
was utilised in respect of bank borrowings granted to its subsidiaries.
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(In HK$'000)

Results

Revenue

Profit before tax

Tax credit/(charge)
Profit for the year/period

Attributable to:
Ordinary equity holders
of the parent

Minority interests

(In HK$'000)

Assets and liabilities

Total assets

Total liabilities

Total equity (including
minority interests)

(BT TAEN)
5

WA
BB

BRES/ (%)
£/ Brg

WFALIBE
§AAFER
B

JEBRER

(AESTLREN)

BERAR
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Nine months

Year ended Year ended Year ended ended Year ended
30 September 30 September 30 September 30 September 31 December
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
BZE-ZT\F HE-STLF HEZTSF HE-TTRE HE_ZTOF
hAZTH hA=+H nA=t+A NA=FTR +ZA=+-A
LEE 58 ILER IENEA ILER
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

(E51) (E51) (E51) (&)

123,560 128,601 214,513 185,720 547,396

4,450 248,834 116,232 100,263 32,345
19,446 (89,170) (12,730) (2,014) (6,485)

23,896 159,664 108,502 98,249 25,860

8,301 147,164 91,922 93,556 14,478

15,595 12,500 11,580 4,693 11,382

23,896 159,664 108,502 98,249 25,860

As at As at As at As at As at

30 September 30 September 30 September 30 September 31 December
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
R=2ENE RIZZHF RITTRFE RCTTRF R-TIOE
hB=tH NA=+H NA=TH NA=+R +ZA=+-H
(Restated)

(E31)

4,457,170 3,699,060 3,340,404 2,753,660 1,484,985
(2,378,085) (1,766,071) (1,580,460) (1,381,369) (736,251)
2,079,085 1,932,989 1,759,944 1,372,291 748,734
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
Business park sector
Vision Shenzhen Business Park (VSBP)

VSBP offers some 125,000 sm of office space and about 1,000
carpark lots for lease. This is now a substantial asset in terms of
capital value, size and management attention. With its sufficiently
large critical mass, VSBP is being managed to realize operating
efficiency from economies of scale and to raise service level to a new
high.

During the year under review, VSBP continued to provide a
consistently high-quality office space and reliable quality property
management services to all its tenants, both big and small. This
has differentiated VSBP from its numerous competitors within the
Shenzhen High-tech Industrial Park and throughout Shenzhen.
VSBP’s competitive position as an established market leader in
the business park sector is demonstrated by the consistently high
occupancy for both phases 1 and 2 during the year under review.
As at the date of this report, the overall occupancy rate for VSBP
was over 90%. Today, VSBP has established a strong reputation
for quality and earned many accolades from both well-known
international and domestic names — a further testament to VSBP’s
position as a location of choice for exacting tenants.

The Group continued to engage the Shenzhen authorities to
determine the future directions of phase 3 development site, which
occupies an area of 254,000 sm, with a developable gross floor area
of over 400,000 sm. As at the date of this report, the Group was
still in the process of negotiating with the authorities to conclude a
comprehensive settlement of the issues afflicting VSBP, including the
expired construction deadline of the phase 3 site. The Group remains
fully committed and plans to undertake a world-class landmark
development within Shenzhen and the greater Pearl River Delta
region on this site, subject to obtaining the necessary approvals. It is
hoped that an amicable agreement can be concluded in the current
financial year to enable the development process of the site to start
early.
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Sohu.com Internet Plaza (SIP), formerly Vision International Centre

SIP, the Group’s joint venture project with Beijing Tsinghua Science
Park Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the prestigious Tsinghua University,
is a 13-storey high quality and state-of-the-art business park facility
located within the Tsinghua Science Park in Zhongguancun, Haidian
district, Beijing.

The building offers an international standard of property management,
with a comprehensive range of value-added services and amenities
to all its occupants. Since its completion in 2004, it has stood as a
landmark building with a sought-after address within Zhongguancun.
Subsequent to the sale to Sohu.com in January 2007, the building
was renamed SIP and the joint venture now holds the remaining
gross floor area comprising 10,145 sm of office and 4,786 sm of
retail space. For the year under review, the occupancy rate was over
95% with several acclaimed tenants, such as Juniper Networks, Sun
Microsystems and Starbucks, in addition to owner-occupier Sohu.
com — one of China’s most reputable world-class corporate names.

Real estate development

Property projects in mainland China

The Ninth ZhongShan, Dalian

The Ninth ZhongShan, a twin-tower development, one 30-storey
and the other 32-storey, is superbly located at the core of the central
business district of Dalian and offers panoramic views of the city and
its coastline. As at 30 September 2008, all 453 units had been sold
(previously 439 units prior to re-configuration and subdivision).

Shanshui Four Seasons, Songjiang, Shanghai

This 71-hectare development site, in which the Group holds a
controlling 52.04%-interest, was acquired in September 2005. This
huge site has a permissible gross floor area of about 830,000 sm
to be developed in phases. The pace of such development will be
dictated by market conditions. The construction of phase 1, with
a total gross floor area of about 100,340 sm (excluding basement
area), comprising 418 units of terrace and semi-detached houses, a
clubhouse and some commercial and retail space, is expected to be
completed in early 2009.
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136 units have been progressively released for sale starting from July
2008. As at 30 September 2008, some 64% or 87 units had been
pre-sold. This performance is most creditable in the context of the
challenging environment of the past few months. With its tranquil
suburban location, easy accessibility and quality design concept, the
Group is confident that the project will continue to be well-received.
Given its size and market position, this development will raise the
profile of the Group and reinforce its commitment to quality and
customer satisfaction.

Qingniandajie project, Shenyang

The Group secured this commercial development site located at
Shenyang'’s busiest thoroughfare, Qingniandajie, at a public auction
on 2 July 2008. The 15,630 sm site has a potential permissible gross
floor area of 187,568 sm. The cost of the site is RMB386 million,
equivalent to an accommodation value (land cost per sm permissible
gross floor area) of about RMB2,060. The site is situated within
the Shenhe district and is within walking distance to a proposed
subway station. The site is now undergoing resettlement of its
existing occupants by the Shenyang Land Reserve Center, which
will deliver vacant possession by 31 January 2010. The Group
expects this new acquisition to yield a satisfactory return, confident
of the long-term growth potential of Shenyang — the largest city in
north-east China and the political, commercial and cultural centre of
Liaoning province. Shenyang is particularly well-positioned to be a
major beneficiary of the central government’s strategy to accelerate
the development of the north-east region and its real estate sector
holds much promise in tandem with its future economic growth and
physical transformation.

The preliminary conceptualization and planning works for this project
have started. Subject to approvals being obtained, the development
will comprise office, retail and hotel-style/serviced apartments. It is
expected that the construction of this high-rise multi-tower project
will commence in 2011 and finish in 2014.

Carpark spaces in Hong Kong
As all the apartments developed in Hong Kong had been sold, the

Group now holds only 133 car parking spaces for lease at Greenery
Place in Yuen Long.
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Review of Operations and Prospects

Business development activities

During the year, the Group focused on the execution of its
growth strategy and expended much resources and efforts into
identifying new investment opportunities to secure the Group’s
future growth. The Group explored opportunities in several cities
deemed suitable on the basis of their rapid economic growth, urban
redevelopment and market conditions. Some proposals had to
be rejected when judged to be commercially unacceptable while
others were unsuccessful attempts, as in the case of participation
in a government land auction in November 2007, when the Group’s
submitted bid was not sufficiently competitive to secure a site in
Wuxi, Jiangsu province.

In the search for new investments, the Group has always exercised
caution and prudence to ensure that its scarce financial resource
is allocated optimally while remaining vigilant to investment risk and
market uncertainty. It is fortuitous that this philosophy has borne
out particularly well for the Group, in the light of current global
financial turmoil and uncertainty. Despite this uncertainty and the
adverse impact on the mainland economy, the Group hopes to seize
suitable and attractive investment opportunities that may present
themselves, confident of the long-term prospects of the mainland
property market.

PROSPECTS

The Group’s assets are located and operations conducted almost
exclusively in mainland China. With the mainland’s economic growth
expected to ease and adversely impact the real estate market, the
Group will strive to enhance shareholder value from existing assets
and apply its resources to take advantage of the market uncertainty
and prudently seek out exceptionally attractive acquisition
opportunities to provide sustainable growth.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEAER[N

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ang Ah Lay (“Mr. Ang”), aged 61, was appointed as Chief
Executive Officer of the Company in October 2003. Prior to joining
the Company, Mr. Ang was Managing Director and one of the
founding partners of Schroder Property Asia Group, a private
equity real estate fund management company. He was also Non-
executive Director and Audit Committee Member of The Ascott Ltd.,
a Singapore-listed Company. Before Schroder Property Asia Group,
he was Group Managing Director of MCL Land Limited and had held
senior management or board-level positions with Suntec Investment
Pte. Ltd., Elders Pacific Pte. Ltd., Pontiac Land Group, Singapore
International Bankers Limited and Esso Singapore. Mr. Ang holds
a Bachelor of Business Administration (Honours) from University of
Singapore and a MBA from Johnson Graduate School of Business,
Cornell University, USA.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lim Ee Seng (“Mr. Lim”), PBM, aged 57, was appointed as
Non-executive Director of the Company in May 2006. Mr. Lim was
appointed as Acting Chairman of the Board in October 2007 and as
Chairman of the Board in July 2008. He is currently Chief Executive
Officer of Frasers Centrepoint Limited (“FCL”), a subsidiary of
Fraser and Neave, Limited (“F&N”) which is the ultimate controlling
shareholder of the Company. Mr. Lim is also Chairman of Frasers
Centrepoint Asset Management Ltd, the manager for Frasers
Centrepoint Trust, a listed REIT on Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited (“SGX”). Mr. Lim is also a Board Member of the
Building & Construction Authority in Singapore and the 2nd Vice
President of the Real Estate Developers Association of Singapore.
Prior to this, Mr. Lim was Managing Director of MCL Land Limited,
a company listed on the SGX. Mr. Lim holds a Bachelor of Civil
Engineering degree from the University of Singapore and a Master
of Science in Project Management from the National University of
Singapore.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management

EEREHREEAER[N

Mr. Goh Yong Chian, Patrick (“Mr. Goh”), aged 64, was appointed
as Non-executive Director of the Company in June 2004. He currently
heads the Corporate Finance Office as Group Financial Controller
of the Fraser and Neave Group (“F&N Group”). The scope of his
responsibilities includes group treasury, group taxation, group
accounting, corporate restructuring, and merger and acquisition. He
joined the F&N Group in January 1969 and has served under various
capacities in the Corporate Finance Office. He is an accountant
by training and is a member of the Institute of Certified Public
Accountants of Singapore. He is a Fellow Member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, UK and an Associate Member of
the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants, UK.

Mr. Tang Kok Kai, Christopher (“Mr. Tang”), aged 47, was
appointed as Non-executive Director of the Company in May 2006.
Mr. Tang is currently Chief Executive Officer of Frasers Centrepoint
Commercial, the business division in FCL covering Reits, property
funds and commercial properties. He is also a Director of China Dairy
Group Limited, a listed company in Singapore. Prior to this, Mr. Tang
was Vice President in Private Equity, Investment Banking Group of
DBS Bank Ltd. and Senior Manager in Strategic Asset Management
and Planning of DBS Land Limited. Mr. Tang holds a Bachelor of
Science degree and a MBA degree from the National University of
Singapore.
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EEREREEAER[N

Mr. Hwang Soo Chin (“Mr. Hwang”), aged 60, was appointed as
Non-executive Director of the Company in May 2008. Mr. Hwang
is currently Director and Deputy Chairman of FCL (China) Pte. Ltd.
(“FCL China”), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of F&N which is
the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company, overseeing FCL
China’s property development business in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”). He is Director and Chairman of Audit Committee of
Longcheer Holdings Limited, a company listed on SGX. Mr. Hwang
was an advisor to AEA Investors, a US based private equity fund
during the last two years. He was Director and Chairman of the Audit
Committee of ASL Marine Holdings Limited, a company listed on
SGX, and Director and Chairman of Nominating Committee of New
Lakeside Holdings Limited, a company listed on SESDAQ of SGX.
From 2000 to 2005, Mr. Hwang was President of SCA Packaging
Asia where he was responsible for the company’s manufacturing
operations in the PRC and South East Asia. Prior to this, Mr. Hwang
was Group Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of Tuan
Sing Holdings Limited; Director and Chairman of SPP Limited and
Gul Technologies Limited; and Director and Vice Chairman of the
Grand Hotel Group Limited which is listed on the Australian Stock
Exchange Limited. Mr. Hwang holds a Bachelor of Engineering
(Chemical) degree and a Diploma in Computer Science from the
University of Queensland and is currently a Fellow Member of the
Singapore Institute of Directors.

Ms. Chong Siak Ching (“Ms. Chong”), aged 49, was appointed
as Non-Executive Director of the Company in February 2001. Ms.
Chong is the President, Chief Executive Officer and Director of
Ascendas Pte. Ltd. (“Ascendas”). Ascendas holds 17.17% interest
in the Company. Ascendas and its subsidiaries are developers,
managers and marketers of science, business and industrial parks
in various countries in Asia including Singapore, China, India and
the Philippines. Ms. Chong was Deputy Chief Executive Officer of
JTC Corporation from 1998 to 2000. Ms. Chong was appointed as
Singapore’s representative to the APEC Business Advisory Council
(ABAC) with effect from 1 January 2004. She also serves on the
Singapore Tourism Board as a Board Member and as Deputy
Chairman of Spring Singapore, Singapore’s enterprise development
agency. A licensed valuer, Ms. Chong obtained a Bachelor’s degree
of Science in Estate Management (Hons.) and a Master’s degree in
Business Administration from the National University of Singapore
and attended the Advanced Management Programme at Harvard
Business School.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Alan Howard Smith (“Mr. Smith”), J.P., aged 64, was
appointed as Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
in March 2001 and Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
in October 2002. Mr. Smith retired as the Vice Chairman, Pacific
Region, of Credit Suisse First Boston (“CSFB”), a leading global
investment bank, in December 2001. Prior to joining CSFB, he was
Chief Executive of the Jardine Fleming Group from 1983 to 1994
and was Chairman of the Jardine Fleming Group from 1994 to
1996. Mr. Smith has over 26 years’ investment banking experience
in Asia. He was elected a Council Member of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on two occasions.
He was a member of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
Government’s Economic Advisory Committee from 1994 to the
end of 2001, and was a member of the Hong Kong Government’s
Standing Committee on Company Law Reform for 10 years. He
graduated with a LLB (Hons) degree from Bristol University in 1964,
and was admitted as a solicitor in England in 1967, and in Hong
Kong in 1970.

Mr. Kwong Che Keung, Gordon (“Mr. Kwong”), aged 59, has
been an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
May 2001. Mr. Kwong has also been serving as Chairman of the
Audit Committee of the Company since August 2001. He is also
an Independent Non-executive Director of a number of companies
listed on the Stock Exchange. From 1984 to 1998, Mr. Kwong was a
partner of Pricewaterhouse and was a Council Member of the Stock
Exchange from 1992 to 1997. He has a Bachelor of Social Science
degree from the University of Hong Kong and is a Fellow Member of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Mr. Hui Chiu Chung (“Mr. Hui”), J.P., aged 61, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in December
2004. Mr. Hui is currently Chief Executive Officer of OSK Holdings
Hong Kong Limited. He has 37 years of experience in the securities
and investment industry. Mr. Hui had for years been serving as
Council Member and Vice Chairman of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong, member of the Advisory Committee of the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures Commission, and was also a Director
of the Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited. Mr. Hui
was appointed by the Government of the HKSAR a Justice of the
Peace in 2004 and was also appointed a member of the Zhuhai
Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference in 2006. He is at present a member of the Listing
Committee of the Hong Kong Exchange & Clearing Company
Limited, an appointed member of the Securities and Futures Appeals
Tribunal and a member of the Committee on Real Estate Investment
Trusts. Mr. Hui is also a member of the Standing Committee on
Company Law Reform and an appointed member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants Investigation Panel A. Mr.
Hui also serves as Independent Non-executive Director of Luk Fook
Holdings (International) Limited, Jiuzhou Development Company
Limited, Lifestyle International Holdings Limited and Chun Wo
Development Holdings Limited whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong.

Mr. Chong Kok Kong (“Mr. Chong”), aged 55, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in May 2006.
Mr. Chong is Senior Partner of the law firm, David Chong & Co.,
Singapore and is Chairman of the Portcullis TrustNet Group. He is a
Barristerat-Law, Lincolin’s Inn, an Advocate & Solicitor of Singapore,
Malaya and Brunei, a Solicitor in Australia and a Barrister & Solicitor
of the British Virgin Islands and Australian Capital Territory. Mr.
Chong holds a Master’s in Law degree from the National University of
Singapore and a Master in Business degree from the City University,
London.
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ALTERNATE DIRECTOR

Mr. Chia Nam Toon (“Mr. Chia”), aged 48, was appointed as
Alternate Director to Ms. Chong Siak Ching in August 2008. Mr.
Chia is currently the Chief Financial Officer of Ascendas group
of companies. Before joining Ascendas, Mr. Chia was Finance
Director and Acting Chief Operating Officer of PEC Tech Group, an
engineering and forestry services business division of a large regional
conglomerate. Mr. Chia has extensive Asia Pacific experience having
spent 12 years with ICI Plc, a major specialty chemical company
in various senior roles in finance, corporate planning, and general
management based in Kuala Lumpur, London and Singapore.
He had also spent 4 years with F&N Coca-Cola in Malaysia. Mr.
Chia is a Fellow Member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants UK (FCCA), a Fellow Member of the Institute of Certified
Public Accountants of Singapore, and holds a Diploma in Commerce
from Tunku Abdul Rahman College, Malaysia.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yiu Chun Kit (“Mr. Yiu”), aged 49, Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary, joined the Company in October 2005. Mr. Yiu
graduated with a professional diploma in accountancy from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic. He is an Associate Member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a Fellow Member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of
the Certified Management Accountants Society of British Columbia.
Mr. Yiu has 24 years of working experience and had worked for
international audit firms, MNCs and listed companies before.

Mr. Foong Kok Meng (“Mr. Foong”), aged 64, Chief Operating
Officer, joined the Company in October 2003. Mr. Foong is currently
Executive Director of Vision (Shenzhen) Business Park Co. Ltd. and
Vision Huaging (Beijing) Development Co., Ltd. Mr. Foong was the
Chief Representative of JURONG International Consultants (Suzhou)
Co., Ltd.’s Beijing Representative Office, a wholly owned subsidiary
of Jurong Consultants Pte. Ltd., Singapore’s largest industrial
developer. Prior to this, Mr. Foong was Senior Vice President of
Hyflux Pte. Ltd., a Singapore-listed water treatment company. He
held senior management positions with LKN Construction Pte. Ltd.,
Beijing China World Trade Centre and Keppel Corporation Ltd. Mr.
Foong holds diplomas in Building Construction from Singapore
Polytechnic, Builders’ Quantity from London City & Guilds Institute,
Marketing Management from Singapore Ngee Ann Polytechnic,
and attended a senior manager development course in University of
NSW, Australia.
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Mr. Tay Kok Min (“Mr. Tay”), aged 49, Senior General Manager
(PRC-based), joined the Company in January 2004. Mr. Tay is
currently Director and Senior General Manager of Beijing Gang
Lu Real Estate Development Co., Ltd and Shenyang Frasers Real
Estate Development Co. Ltd. Mr. Tay is also Managing Director and
General Manager of Beijing Vision Century Property Management
Company Ltd. Prior to joining our Company, he was Manager of
engineering department of Beijing China World Trade Center, Deputy
Project Manager of Beijing Kerry Center, Director of engineering for
Qingdao Equatorial Hotel, General Manager of LKN Home Services
Pte. Ltd. and Project Director of Santarli International Construction.
Mr. Tay holds a Bachelor’s degree in Mechanical Engineering and
has over 19 years of experience in property development in the PRC.

Mr. Sin Kong Chiu, Franky (“Mr. Sin”), aged 40, General Manager
— Finance, joined the Company in November 2005. Mr. Sin holds a
Bachelor of Commerce from The Australian National University and a
MBA from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Sin has over 16 years of working experience and had worked for
international accounting firm, listed companies and MNC before.
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The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 30 September 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company continues to be investment
holding while the principal activities of its subsidiaries are property
investment, development and management of residential and
business park projects. There have been no changes in the nature of
the Group’s principal activities during the year.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The Group’s revenue and contribution to operating profit for the year
by business segment and geographical segment are as follows:

By business segment:
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Property Business
development park Corporate Group
(In HK$’000) (ABE T TRERL) MERR BEE TESR rEEH
Revenue A 38,094 85,466 - 123,560
Operating profit/(loss) K RF(B8) 1,445 27,977 (772) 28,650
By geographical segment: @ o FBE

Operating
Revenue (loss)/profit
(In HK$’000) (ABE T TRERL) WA e (B5R), SRR
Hong Kong BB 1,244 (14,009)
Mainland China AP 3K e 122,316 42,659
128,560 28,650

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES MDA REE AT

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries and associates as at 30
September 2008 are set out in notes 20 and 21, respectively, to the
financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 September 2008 and
the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set
out in the financial statements on pages 52 to 167.

No interim dividend was paid during the year. The directors have
resolved not to propose any final dividend for the year ended 30
September 2008 (2007: Nil).

ARBAR-ZEZNFAA=ZTHZHBER
B BB N R 2 FEIE 0 Bl S B s HR R
L2021 -

EERKRE

AEEBE_ZEEN\FALAZTHLEFE
ZEBERANRNRRAEBRZB ZFBGK
NENES2EE 167 B2 MBHRE -

FATERNTFHARE - EFERED
RBE_ZTZT\FAA=THLEFERH
EAIRBRE(ZETLF &) o
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past five financial years is set out on page 19 of the annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Details of movements in properties under development of the Group
during the year are set out in note 19 to the financial statements.

MAJOR INTERESTS IN PROPERTIES
Particulars of major interests in properties held by the Group as at

30 September 2008 are set out on pages 169 to 172 of the annual
report.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in investment properties of the Group during
the year are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

BANK BORROWINGS AND INTEREST CAPITALISED

The Group’s bank borrowings as at 30 September 2008 and the
amount of interest capitalised by the Group during the year are set
out in notes 30 and 7 to the financial statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 26(a) to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves during the year are set out in note
27 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 30 September 2008, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution and/or distribution in specie amounted to
HK$549,756,000. In addition, the Company’s share premium
account, in the amount of HK$41,816,000 may be distributed in the
form of fully paid bonus shares.

MBEE

AEERNBEREMBFE 2 EEREE
HEAEREHNFRE19A -

M BERRE

AEEYE BEMRBERFAZEEHH
BER BB IRKRME14

EELEYES

FAREBERPVEZEEFBFHAY
EREMIFE19 -

ETRYEER
AEER-_ZFZN\FALAR=THBAZE
BEYEESFRENFREI69EFE 172
EO

REW=R

FR - ARERENEESH 2 FEHNY
BEMARMEE5 ©

RTERRBREECLZFE
AEER _ZZN\FNLA=ZTBZRITE
RARFARKEHHERREECZHER
7 R B A TS RA M 80 B 7

&N

ARBIBRARFERNZEBFBHN TR
#Mi5E 26(a) °
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RERNFRAZEZBFBEHN M ERRM T
27 °

A 0 Tk ek

R-ZZEZNFAA=ZF+HB  KRAAA
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WARRANTS, OPTIONS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

Other than the share option scheme of the Company as explained
in note 26(b) to the financial statements, the Company had no
outstanding warrants, options or similar rights as at 30 September
2008.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) during the
year.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Director:

Mr. Ang Ah Lay (Chief Executive Officer)
Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lim Ee Seng (appointed as Acting Chairman

on 8 October 2007 and as
Chairman on 21 July 2008)

Ms. Chong Siak Ching (whose alternate is Mr. Chia
Nam Toon was appointed on
12 August 2008 to succeed
Mr. Yee Hsien Wee)

Mr. Goh Yong Chian, Patrick

Mr. Hwang Soo Chin (appointed as Non-executive
Director on 27 May 2008)

Mr. Tang Kok Kai, Christopher

Dr. Han Cheng Fong (resigned as Non-executive
Director and Chairman on 8
October 2007)

Mr. Yee Hsien Wee (resigned as Alternate Director

to Ms. Chong Siak Ching on
12 August 2008)
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Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chong Kok Kong

Mr. Hui Chiu Chung, J.P.

Mr. Kwong Che Keung, Gordon
Mr. Alan Howard Smith, J.P.

According to bye-laws 100 of the bye-laws of the Company, Mr.
Hwang Soo Chin will retire and, being eligible, will offer himself for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

According to bye-law 109(A) and 189(vii) of the bye-laws of the
Company, three directors, namely, Mr. Ang Ah Lay, Mr. Chong
Kok Kong and Ms. Chong Siak Ching, will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

The non-executive directors of the Company are not appointed for a
specific term and are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with
the bye-laws of the Company.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company on 20 May
2003 (the “Share Option Scheme”) to comply with the new
amendments to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) in respect of share option
schemes of a listed company.

1. Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and
retain the best quality personnel for the development of the
Company’s businesses, to provide additional incentives to
employees, consultants, agents, representatives, advisers,
suppliers of goods or services, customers, contractors,
business allies and joint venture partners, and to promote the
long term financial success of the Company by aligning the
interests of option holders to shareholders.
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Participants of the Share Option Scheme

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include (i)
any employee or any proposed employee (including an officer
or director (whether executive or non-executive) or alternate
director of the Company or any affiliate) or any legal or financial
consultant, agent, representative or legal or financial adviser
of the Company or any affiliate; or (i) any person who provides
goods or services to the Company or any affiliate; or (i) any
customer or contractor of the Company or any affiliate; or (iv)
any business ally or joint venture partner of the Company or
any affiliate.

Total number of shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme and percentage of issued share capital as at
the date of this report

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the maximum number
of shares in respect of which share options may be granted is
such number of shares, when aggregated with shares subject
to any other share option scheme(s) of the Company, must
not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme (i.e.
283,618,894 shares).

As at 30 September 2008, there were 67,064,481 share
options outstanding under the Share Option Scheme. Based
on these outstanding share options, the total number of
shares available for issue is 67,064,481, which represents
approximately 0.98% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this report.
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4. Maximum entitlement of each participant

The maximum number of shares issuable upon exercise of the
share options granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme(s) of the Company (whether
exercised or outstanding share options) to each eligible
participant in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at the date of grant. Any
further grant of share options to any eligible participant who
in aggregate has over 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue shall be subject to the issue of a circular by the Company
and the shareholders’ approval of the Company at a general
meeting with the relevant eligible participant and his/her
associates abstaining from voting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
respective associates, are subject to the approval in advance
by the independent non-executive directors of the Company,
excluding the independent non-executive director(s) of the
Company who is/are the grantee(s) of the share options. In
addition, any share option granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the Company,
or to any of their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of
the shares of the Company in issue as at the date of grant
or with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of
the Company’s shares as at the date of grant) in excess of
HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to the
issue of a circular by the Company and the approval of the
shareholders of the Company in advance at a general meeting.

5. Period which the shares must be taken up under an option

The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the Board, and commences on a specified
date and ends on a date which is not later than 10 years from
the date of grant of the share options.

6. Period and payment on acceptance of options
The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within

28 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee.
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Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the Board, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant,
which must be a trading day; (i) the average closing prices
of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (i) the nominal value of a
Company’s share.

The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme
The Share Option Scheme became effective on 20 May 2003
and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in

force for 10 years from that date.

Details of the movements of the share options under the Share
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Option Scheme during the year were as follows: FFBAT
Number of share options
EhGHE
(Closing price
of the Company's
Qutstanding Outstanding Date of Exercise share for
asat asat grant price per  share options
category of 11072007 Granted Exercised Lapsed 30/9/2008  of share share exercised
participant HoB5tE during during dwing  RZZENE  options Exercise period option  AAHEGE
SHE % +A-A the year the year theyer  AAZTH ahE ofshareoptions ~ EHIKE ahEz
WAGE  WEARE  REARR  RERKN BRGE  RARH AREARS R Bbz4nR
(Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 3)
(K1) (W2 (H3)
HKS HKS$
o B
Dr. Han Cheng Fong 00 1,619,159 - - - 1619159 @ 31A2/2003  31/12/2004- 30/12/2013 01580 -
#2100 1619159 - - - 16191590 31122004 31/12/2005- 30/1212014 01547 -
. Ang An Lay 2,698,598 - - - 2698598 31/12/2003  31/12/2004- 30/12/2013 01580 -
ABERE 2,698,598 - - - 2698598 31/1202004  31/12/2005 - 30/12/2014 01547 -
2,698,598 - - - 2698598 30/12/2005  30/12/2006- 29/12/2015 01343 -
2,800,000 - - - 2800000 13/11/2006  13/11/2007 - 12/11/2016 01670 -
- 2800000 - - 2800000 09/1/2007  09/11/2008 - 08/11/2017 03370 -
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Nurber of share options
AhEHA

Closing price
of the Company's
Qutstanding Outstanding Date of Exercise share for
Name or asat asat grant price per  share options
category of 110/2007 Granted Exercised Lapsed 30/9/2008  of share share exercised
participant HoB5tE during during dwing  RZBENE  options Exercise period option  AAFEGE
SREH% +A-A the year the year theyer  AAZTH e ofshareoptions  EHZHE e
L] HATE  REARE  RERGE  WERRH WATE  RERH AhERES LEE RBZUTE
(Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 3)
(W) (H2) (H3)
HKS HKS
T T
W Gon Yong Chian, Patrick 0 1079439 - - - 1079439 314212004 314212006 - 30/12/2014 01547 -

RRBEED
Ms. Chong Siak Ching 1079439 - - - 1079439 311212003 314212004 - 30/12/2013 01580 -
) 1079439 - - - 1079439 314212004 31422006 - 30/12/2014 01547 -
1,727,103 - - - 1727103 301212005 304122006 - 29/12/2015 01343 -
1800000 - - - 1800000 13/41/2006  13/41/2007 - 12/11/2016 01670 -
- 2000000 - - 2000000 09/11/2007  09/11/2008- 08/11/2017 03370 -
. Alan Howard Smith, JP. 0 1079439 - - - 1079439 314212003 314212004 - 30/12/2013 01580 -
Aan Howard Smith 7 1-F4# 79 1079439 - - - 1079439 311212004 31422005 - 30/12/2014 01547 -
1,727,103 - - - 1727103 301212005 304122006 - 29/12/2015 01343 -
1800000 - - - 1800000 13/41/2006  13/41/2007 - 12/11/2016 01670 -
- 2000000 - - 2000000 09/11/2007  09/11/2008- 08/11/2017 03370 -
Mr. Kiwong Che Keung, 1079439 - - - 1079439 311212003 31A2/2004 - 30/12/2013 01580 -
Gordon® 1079439 - - - 1079439 311212004 31422006 - 30/12/2014 01547 -
FrEnt0 1,727,103 - - - 1727103 301212005 304122006 - 29/12/2015 01343 -
1800000 - - - 1800000 13/41/2006  13/41/2007 - 12/11/2016 01670 -
- 2000000 - - 2000000 09/11/2007  09/11/2008- 08/11/2017 03370 -
. Hui Chiu Chung, J.P. 0 1,727,103 - - - 1727103 301212005 30422006 - 29/12/2015 01343 -
iR ()0 1,800,000 - - - 1500000 1312008 13/14/2007 - 12/11/2016 01670 -
- 2000000 - - 2000000 09/11/2007  09/11/2008- 08/11/2017 03370 -
I Chong Kok Kong @ 900,000 - - - 900000 13/11/2006  13/11/2007 - 12/11/2016 01670 -
REREED - 2000000 - - 2000000 09/11/2007  09/11/2008- 08/11/2017 03370 -

36,698,597 12,800,000 - - 49498597
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Nurber of share options
ZhEsA
(Closing price
of the Company’s
Qutstanding Outstanding Date of Exercise share for
Name or asat asat grant price per  share options
category of 11072007 Granted Exercised Lapsed 30/9/2008  of share share exercised
participant HoB5tE during during dwing  RZZENE  options Exercise period option  AAHEGE
SRE % +A-A the year the year theyer  AAZTH ahE ofshareoptions ~ EHIKE ahEz
B HATE  REARE  RERAE  WERRH BAGE  REAH AhERES EE RBZUWE
(Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 3)
(1) (W2 (H3)
HKS HKS
i W
Other employees
EhEs
In aggregete 901,332 - (476,000) (174,626) 250,706 31A42/2003  31/12/2004 - 30/12/2013 0.1580 02750
H) 756,608 - (75,560) - 680048 31/202004  31/12/2005- 30/12/2014 0.1547 02950
755,608 - @31 - 712431 30A202005  30/12/2006- 29/12/2015 01343 02950
3,050,000 - (299, 263) (150,000 2600737 131172006 13/11/2007 - 12/11/2016 0.1670 02883
- 4,000,000 (250,000 3750000 09/11/2007  09/11/2008- 08/11/2017 03370 -
5,462,548 4,000,000 (894,000) (574,626) 7,993,922
Former directors
pili £
I aggregate 2158478 - - - 2158678 31/12/2003  31/12/2004 - 301202013 0.1580 -
ait0 2158878 - - - DIB878  3A22004 311202005~ 3012014 01547 -
3454208 - - - 3454206 301272006 30/12/2006- 29/12/2015 01343 -
1800000 - - - 1800000 13/11/2006  13/11/2007 - 12/11/2016 0.1670 -
9571962 - - - 9,571,962
51733107 16,800,000 (894,000) (74,608 67,064,481
@  Non-executive Director @  FERTES
@  Resigned as Non-executive Director on 8 October 2007 @ RIZEZTLFTAN\BEIERITES
®  Independent Non-executive Director ® BIUFRTES
@  The lapsed periods of the share options entitled were extended @ NESETER RWEZRIEBRER
following director s resignation, pursuant to the terms in the Share RRAREET &I 2 R -

Option Scheme.
The lapsed periods of the share options entitled to two former ® %“?ﬂﬁ% AMERAGERAERTES X
directors, Mr. Lew Syn Pau and Ms. Wang Poey Foon, Angela,

©

R 2 RBER BRI E 2

were extended pursuant to the terms in the Share Option Scheme. 1\%%%5@?& o
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Notes: Bt &
1.  The vesting schedule for share options granted on 31 December 1., REZEE=FF+=-A=1+—AFLEZR
2003 is in the following manner: BREGEREBROT
Percentage of shares over
which a share option
is exercisable
TS R Z BRATE AT 6
Vesting Schedule HERER AREZEDHE
%
Before the first anniversary of the date of grant B BE—RAFA Nil
On or after the first but before the second BB —AFY 25
anniversary of the date of grant ZARBRBF R
On or after the second but before the third B B A MAF 25
anniversary of the date of grant 2 BB =BFR
On or after the third but before the fourth BBz =AF 25
anniversary of the date of grant 2 & 1B B F R
On or after the fourth anniversary of the date of grant R E 2 WiEF sk 2 1% 25
The vesting schedule for the share options granted after 31 RZEZE=FFT_A=T+T—HERLEZ
December 2003 is in the following manner: REE BERERET
Percentage of shares over
which a share option
is exercisable
TS Rk Z BRAE AT 6
Vesting Schedule HEREX AREZEDE
%
Before the first anniversary of the date of grant B BE . —RAFA Nil
On or after the first but before the second B BE—AFY 40
anniversary of the date of grant Z BB B F R
On or after the second but before the third B B A MAF 30
anniversary of the date of grant 2 BB =EFR
On or after the third anniversary of the date of grant RH Az AT 2% 30
In relation to the share options, if the eligible participant, during RBREMS - MEERS2EER Ll
any of the periods specified above, exercises that share options Tﬂ—ﬁaiﬂﬁfﬂ TRzREESRZER
for such number of shares which, in aggregate, represents less MBEARLIREERSMELZIM
than the number of shares for which the eligible participant may —Jﬂ@‘i’ SRR R 2RHEE - AE
exercise in respect of such period, the balance of the shares B2 EERZBARAIITE(BRITE)
comprised in that share option for which the eligible participant ZERRES R ZROEE E58 - K
could have exercised (but did not exercise) in that period shall BRMAGER2EER T — AR
be carried forward and added to the number of shares which the A IT{ERREFT S R 2 BRIV B -

eligible participant may exercise in the next succeeding period or
periods.
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Closing price of the Company’s
share quoted on the Stock Exchange
immediately before the date of grant

A B RA A RERE B B

Date of grant HHEBH EB ARz W E
HK$

PR¥ETT
31 December 2003 —3 0.1547*
31 December 2004 - 0.1547*
30 December 2005 - 0.1343*
13 November 2006 ) 0.1660
9 November 2007 - 0.3450

Adjusted to reflect the impact of the rights issue on 12
September 2006

3. The closing price of the Company s share disclosed for the share
options exercised during the year is the weighted average of the
closing price quoted on the Stock Exchange immediately before
the date of exercise of share options.

Apart from the foresaid, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the directors and chief executive
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

As at 30 September 2008, the following directors and the chief
executive of the Company and/or any of their respective associates
had the following interests and short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the
SFO or the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers under the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”):

- EREURBR -_ZZRFNA
ToRz#RRE
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T 32 P PIT 38 2 AN U B

B EXXFrEE BN - AN R A S AR A
nE - MBARKFERKERRRFERE
AESELE2BEMZY  BEARFE
ERBERTBABSUEBARQARE
A EAA AR Z B D sk EZ S Fa -

EsoERS

RZZZENFANA=FTH  ARAITHE
EREBTRAER REEEAZEM
FEANRARBREREEE (EEELE
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B RBI) XV ER) 2By - MR &
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(@) Interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares (@ RARARG - BEKG R E#EE
and debentures of the Company N RRAE
() Long position in the shares ()  REOHZHE
Approximate
Number of ordinary Nature of percentage of total
Name of director shares beneficially held interest shareholding
EEnA ERlE2EEREE ERME HREEE I MYB D
%
Ms. Chong Siak Ching® 5,210,536 Personal 0.08
REBLLO A
(i)  Long positions in the underlying shares of equity (i)  RRALTETAZIHBERG.Z
derivatives — share options B —RRE
Exercise Number of Approximate
price share Number of  percentage
per share options total of total
option  outstanding underlying  shareholding
Name of director Date of grant Exercise period SREKE  HKTHER shares  {ERELE
Expz RHAH s 2fER REZE HBROEE ZH0EM
HKS %
BT
Mr. Ang Ah Lay 31/12/2003 31/12/2004 - 30/12/2013 0.1580 2698598 13,695,794 020
EEEEE 31/12/2004 31/12/2005 - 30/12/2014 0.1547 2,698,598
30/12/2005 30/12/2006 - 29/12/2015 0.1343 2,698,598
13/11/2006 13/11/2007 - 12/11/2016 0.1670 2,800,000
09/11/2007 09/11/2008 - 08/11/2017 03370 2,800,000
Mr. Goh Yong Chian, Patrick O 31/12/2004 31/12/2005 - 30/12/2014 0.1547 1,079,439 1,079,439 0.02
REAEED
Ms. Chong Siak Ching@ 31/12/2008 31/12/2004 - 30/12/2013 01580 1,079,439 7,685,981 0.1
KEERLOQ 31/12/2004 31/12/2005 - 30/12/2014 0.1547 1,079,439
30/12/2005 30/12/2006 - 29/12/2015 0.1343 1,727,103
13/11/2006 13/11/2007 - 12/11/2016 0.1670 1,800,000
09/11/2007 09/11/2008 - 08/11/2017 0.3370 2,000,000
Mr. Alan Howard Smith, J.P. @ 31/12/2003 31/12/2004 - 30/12/2013 0.1580 1,079,439 7,685,981 0.11
Alan Howard Smith 4 (A F4#4)@  3112/2004  31/12/2005 - 30/12/2014 01547 1079439
30/12/2005 30/12/2006 - 29/12/2015 01343 1,727,103
13/11/2006 13/11/2007 - 12/11/2016 0.1670 1,800,000
09/11/2007 09/11/2008 - 08/11/2017 03370 2,000,000
Mr. Kwong Che Keung, Gordon@ 31/12/2003 31/12/2004 - 30/12/2013 0.1580 1,079,439 7,685,981 0.1
BHarE0 31422004 31/12/2005 - 30/12/2014 01547 1079439
30/12/2005 30/12/2006 - 29/12/2015 0.1343 1,727,103
13/11/2006 13/11/2007 - 12/11/2016 0.1670 1,800,000
09/11/2007 09/11/2008 - 08/11/2017 03370 2,000,000
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Exercise Number of Approximate

price share  Numberof  percentage

per share options total of total

option  outstanding underlying  shareholding

Name of director Date of grant Exercise period SREKE  HKTHER shares  {HIRELE

Esfte RAAH el 2R REHE HEBROEE ZHHEAN

HK$ %

BET

Mr. Hui Chiu Chung, J.P.@ 30/12/2005 30/12/2006 - 29/12/2015 0.1343 1,727,103 5,627,103 0.08
TR (T4 L) 13/11/2006  13/11/2007 - 12/11/2016 0.1670 1,800,000
09/11/2007 09/11/2008 - 08/11/2017 03370 2,000,000

Mr. Chong Kok Kong @ 13/11/2006 13/11/2007 - 12/11/2016 0.1670 900,000 2,900,000 0.04
RERLEQ 09/11/2007 09/11/2008 - 08/11/2017 0.3370 2,000,000

Interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of an associated corporation — Fraser and

()

(b) P A8 Btk BFraser and Neave,
Limited Zz/fn - AEERN RIEREFZE

Neave, Limited 2 hewm MK R
Long position in the shares N REHZLIE
Approximate
Number of ordinary Nature of percentage of total
Name of director shares beneficiglly held interest shareholding
EEnA BERE2EREREE EREE HREEE MY B oL
%
Mr. Goh Yong Chian, Patrick @ 251,040 Personal 0.02
REIEED B A
Long positions in the underlying shares of equity (i) RBALTAETAZHERGZ

(i)

derivatives — share options

B — B

Exercise ~ Number of Approximate
price share Number of  percentage
per share options total of total
option  outstanding  underlying shareholding
Name of director Date of grant Exerciseperiod SRERE  HKTHED shares  {EREEE
it RABH s 2R REHE HBROEE B4R
S %
R
Mr. Lim Ee Seng D 10/10/2005 10/7/2008 - 9/9/2015 346 619,200 1,935,000 0.14
ik ED 10/10/2006 10/7/2009 - 9/9/2016 422 619,200
1010/2007 10/7/2010 - 9/9/2017 5.80 696,600
Mr. Goh Yong Chian, Patrick 1/10/2002 1/7/2005 - 31/8/2012 1.51 95,000 1,333,400 010
REEED 8/10/2003 8/7/2006 - 7/9/2013 212 309,600
8/10/2004 8/7/2007 - 7/9/2014 2.8 464,400
10/10/2005 10/7/2008 - 9/9/2015 346 464,400
Mr. Tang Kok Kai, Christopher (D 1/10/2002 1/7/2005 - 31/8/2012 1.51 3,610 995,090 007
HEEEED 8/10/2003 8/7/2006 - 7/9/2013 212 760
8/10/2004 8/7/2007 - 7/9/2014 2.82 185,760
10/10/2005 10/7/2008 - 9/9/2015 346 216,720
10/10/2006 10/7/2009 - 9/9/2016 4.2 278,640
10/10/2007 10/7/2010 - 9/9/2017 580 309,600
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(©

Interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares (c)
and debentures of an associated corporation — Frasers
Centrepoint Trust

R i8EE %X B Frasers Centrepoint
Trustzfi&fh - HBAKRH RE#EZ 2
KR

Long positions in the units RE7Z B
Approximate
Number of units percentage of
beneficially held Nature of total units
Name of director ExlEE2 interest {HEE 14%@%3
EEpnA Bu®A ERtE ZBHED
%
Mr. Lim Ee Seng® 200,000 Personal 0.03
WIRBEED EA
Mr. Goh Yong Chian, Patrick D 420,000 Personal 0.07
REMEED EA
Mr. Tang Kok Kai, Christopher O 400,000 Personal 0.06
BEELEED EA

@  Non-executive Director
@ Independent Non-executive Director

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 September 2008, none
of the directors and the chief executive of the Company and/
or any of their respective associates had any interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or the Model Code.

O FNTEF
@ BIFPTES

BREXFBEESN RZFETNFAN
A=1tH ARFAEERREHITH
AEBR/SRESEE 2 EABEA
BEERN AR RS E E A EEOEE (G
EREFMBEHOIEXVE) 2K
o~ HEAROD RERET  HHER
T)§* 7 K B E 1515 3652 (RS ER N A
RIATFEZ B Mz EfAEmsk
ﬁ ; ‘Mﬁﬁm%&ﬁﬂiﬂlﬂﬂﬁéxv
*B&M SRAIESTTHE AR
MR P2 B BIRR
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

As at 30 September 2008, the following persons had the following
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

Long position in the shares of the Company

Annual Report 07/08 %

Directors’ Report

EEgRE

FTERRZEHS
RZZZNFAA=TH A TATRA
A EIBD S ARRRRR D P A N IIREE S
KIS 515 336 RSN AR BIAFE
ZEMzEm AR

RARBRD 2F R

Approximate

Number of percentage

ordinary of total

Nature of shares held shareholding

Name of shareholder Notes interest BFEZ HRERE

REEH ik s ZEREE ZBHED

%

Fraser and Neave, Limited (“F&N”) 1 Corporate 3,847,509,895 56.22
NG]|

Frasers Centrepoint Limited (“FCL”) 2 Corporate 3,847,509,895 56.22
NG]|

FCL (China) Pte. Ltd. (“FCL China”) Corporate 3,847,509,895 56.22
NG]|

Ascendas Pte. Ltd. (“Ascendas”) 3 Corporate 1,175,168,505 17147
BRILABRAT (BRI NG]|

Ascendas Land International Pte. Ltd. 4 Corporate 1,175,168,505 1747
(“Ascendas Land”) NG|

Riverbook Group Limited (“Riverbook”) Corporate 1,175,168,505 17147
NG]|

Notes:

1. The interest disclosed comprised 3,847,509,895 shares
beneficially owned by FCL through FCL China. FCL is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of F&N.

2. The interest disclosed comprised 3,847,509,895 shares held by
FCL China, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of FCL.

3. The interest disclosed comprised 1,175,168,505 shares
beneficially owned by Ascendas Land through Riverbook.
Ascendas Land is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ascendas.

4. The interest disclosed comprised 1,175,168,505 shares held by
Riverbook, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ascendas Land.

GEE

1. TSR BIER FCLEBFCL China
B %A 2 3,847,509,895 % ik 15 - FCL
TIFANZ 2B B AT

2. FEBEZEZBIEAFCL Chinaidd 2z
3,847,509,895 % f& 5 - FCL ChinalJy
FCLZZAMBAF °

3.  FTHEZ#ERBIEHAscendas LandiE B
Riverbook Bz A 2 1,175,168,505 i
f%5 o Ascendas Land JhER > 2 &M
BRAE e

4, FTH T 2 % & B 1 ARiverbook#F
B21,175,168,505 iz f% {7 ° Riverbook
JhAscendas Land 2 2 & B F] -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 30 September 2008, no other person
had any interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed hereunder, there was no connected transaction or
contract of significance to which the Company, or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisting at 30 September 2008 or at anytime
during the year ended 30 September 2008.

1. On 29 October 2007, Shanghai Zhong Jun Real Estate
Development Co Ltd (“Zhong Jun”) and Shanghai Frasers
Management Consultancy Co Ltd (“SFMC”) entered into
a Consultancy Services Agreement whereby Zhong Jun
appointed SFMC as the consultant to provide or cause to
provide certain consultancy services for Zhong Jun for a total
consultancy services fee of RMB6,400,000 for a period of 12
months from 1 October 2007 to 30 September 2008.

Zhong Jun is beneficially owned as to 52.04% by the
Company, 42.96% by F&N and 5% by an independent third
party. SFMC is 100% beneficially owned by F&N. Accordingly,
SFMC is a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules. The entering into the Consultancy Services
Agreement constitutes a continuing connected transaction of
the Company.

Accordingly, the Directors have set the annual cap for
the consideration pursuant to the Consultancy Services
Agreement at about HK$7,273,000 for the financial year ended
30 September 2008.

During the year, a fee for consultancy services of
RMB6,400,000 (approximately HK$7,000,000) was charged
to the Company.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company had
reviewed the continuing connected transaction made during
the year ended 30 September 2008 and confirmed that the
transaction had been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company;

(i)  on normal commercial terms; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing the

B EXFREBEEN RZZENFAA=F
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0P BB R B E 75 R IR 15 I 55 336 15T
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transaction on terms that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

The auditors of the Company had also confirmed to the Board
of Directors of the Company that the continuing connected
transaction:

(i) had received the approval of the Company’s Board of
Directors;

(i)  had been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreement governing the transaction; and

(i)  had not exceeded the annual cap disclosed in the
previous announcement.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

The following directors of the Company are considered to have
interests in businesses which compete or are likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group pursuant
to the Listing Rules:

Mr. Lim Ee Seng is the Chief Executive Officer and a Director of
FCL and Mr. Goh Yong Chian, Patrick is a Director of FCL. FCL
is a property investment and development company in Singapore
and engages in the development and marketing of housing units,
management of offices, shopping malls and serviced apartments
both locally and abroad.

Ms. Chong Siak Ching is the President, the Chief Executive Officer
and a Director of Ascendas Pte. Ltd. (“Ascendas”). She is also a
director of various subsidiaries including Ascendas-MGM Funds
Management Limited (a fund management company involving
properties principally in Singapore). Ascendas and its subsidiaries
are developers, managers and marketers of science, business and
industrial parks in Singapore, China, India and the Philippines.

The Board of the Company is an independent entity and is
independent of the abovementioned companies in which the
directors cited have representations. The Group carries on its
business independently and its businesses neither compete nor
are likely to compete with the businesses of the abovementioned
companies.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Dr. Han Cheng Fong had entered into a service contract with the
Company with no specific term. The contract was terminated on 8
October 2007 when Dr. Han resigned as Non-executive Director and
Chairman of the Board of the Company.

Frasers Property (China) Limited E¥ftthE (FE) GRA T
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Mr. Ang Ah Lay had entered into a service contract with the
Company with no specific term and the service contract will continue
until determined by either party giving not less than six months’
notice in writing to other party at any time (including during any such
initial term). As at 30 September 2008, the contract had not been
terminated by either party.

During the year, no director had a service contract with any member
of the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 30 September 2008, the five largest suppliers
and the largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately
92% and 70% of the total value of the Group’s purchases
respectively.

The aggregate revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers was approximately 38% of the Group’s revenue.

At no time during the year did the directors, their associates or
any shareholders of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
have any beneficial interests in these suppliers or customers referred
to above.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the Group’s retirement benefits scheme are set out in note
10 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at annual
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Company’s Board of Directors with reference to directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws although there are no restrictions against such rights under
the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.
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EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 30 September 2008, the Company and its subsidiaries had
212 (2007: 204) employees. Salaries of employees are maintained at
competitive levels while bonuses may be granted on a discretionary
basis. Other employee benefits include mandatory provident fund,

insurance and medical cover, subsidised educational and training
programmes as well as a share option scheme.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules
throughout the year and up to the date of this report.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Details of the Corporate Governance Report are set out on pages
173 to 190 of this report.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

Details of the significant post balance sheet event of the Group are
set out in note 39 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS
A resolution for the re-appointment of Ernst & Young as auditors of

the Company until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting
is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Lim Ee Seng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 7 November 2008
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Ell ERNST & YOUNG
= ik
To the shareholders of

Frasers Property (China) Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Frasers Property
(China) Limited set out on pages 52 to 167, which comprise the
consolidated and company balance sheets as at 30 September
2008, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 30 September
2008 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

18th Floor, Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street, Central

Hong Kong

7 November 2008
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Consolidated Income Statement

e W &

Year ended 30 September 2008 HE —ZZN\EFENA=1+HILFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Direct operating expenses

Other income

Other (losses)/gains, net

Provisions written back/(made), net
Administrative expenses

Operating profit

Finance costs

Share of profits and losses
of an associate

Profit before tax
Tax

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Ordinary equity holders of the parent
Minority interests

Earnings per share attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent
— basic (HK cents)

— diluted (HK cents)

Notes
it
WA 5
SHERK A
EF
BELERY
E MU A 5
Hib (B518) Iz - 558 5]
e (e B - B 6
THAX
R A
B75E A 7
FE(REE R A2
i ) K2 B 18
B A A 8
I8 9
REEmF
AT ALHE -
AR ERRERSE A
DHRRRER
[SYNGIESER g
B AEEEREAT
— AR (L) 13

—#5g GBI

2008 2007
—BEN\F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
(Restated)

(831)

123,560 128,601
(21,102) (44,685)
102,458 83,916
(63,848) (74,588)
21,483 37,189
(19,671) 323,434
14,822 (76,759)
(26,594) (23,990)
28,650 269,202
(24,151) (20,266)
(49) (102)
4,450 248,834
19,446 (89,170)
23,896 159,664
8,301 147,164
15,595 12,500
23,896 159,664
0.12 2.15
0.12 215
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mEEERER

30 September 2008 R=FZEN\FNLA=1H

2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
Htat BT T BT
(Restated)
(E31))
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB MR 14 4,063 13,097
Investment properties LEMZE 15 1,054,454 979,336
Land use rights Tt R A 16 - 1,036
Prepayment for acquisition of WEE TR 17 419,749 -
land use rights SEENE O]
Interest in an associate N o 21 5 54
Available-for-sale financial assets At HE SR EE 22 14,787 14,787
Deferred tax assets BIET IR A E 32 23,625 22,667
Total non-current assets kR EELLEE 1,516,683 1,030,977
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Properties held for sale FHEYE 18 37,055 54,521
Properties under development BERPYIZE 19 2,205,630 1,638,196
Trade receivables JEWE B ERFR 23 6,618 5,545
Prepayments, deposits and BRRIE  Bek 24 23,311 299,128
other receivables E b UG BR TR
Due from the immediate JE U B A% A ) 31 71,443 71,443
holding company Z5RIE
Restricted cash ZRFIERE 25 334 7,644
Cash and cash equivalents ReMReEEER 25 596,096 591,606
Total current assets REEELTE 2,940,487 2,668,083
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEBE
Trade payables e B PR 28 15,587 41,633
Other payables and accruals B At BR X R BT IR ER 1A 29 369,791 193,741
Interest-bearing bank borrowings ~ Hff B8R TE 30 195,502 944,291
Due to the immediate JERERER AR 31 91,291 91,216
holding company Z5RE
Due to a fellow subsidiary FER R RME AR 2 3kIE 31 220,107 -
Tax payable FERHRIE 52,493 83,843
Total current liabilities RBEEERE 944,771 1,354,724
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENEEFE 1,995,716 1,313,359
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEERABEMSE 3,512,399 2,344,336

CURRENT LIABILITIES
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30 September 2008 R=FZN\F NLA=1+H

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities
NET ASSETS

EQUITY
Equity attributable to the
ordinary equity holders
of the parent
Issued capital
Reserves

Minority interests

Total equity

FRBEE
B RITE R
EEHARE

FRBRERE
BEFE
R
BAREBRESZEA
PES R

E BT

G

DERRES
A

Mr. Lim Ee Seng

MBS
Chairman

EJ

Notes
iz

30
32

26
27

2008 2007
—BEN\F ZETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
(Restated)

(&%)

1,310,363 247,030
122,951 164,317
1,433,314 411,347
2,079,085 1,932,989
684,337 684,248
1,110,781 986,816
1,795,118 1,671,064
283,967 261,925
2,079,085 1,932,989

Mr. Ang Ah Lay
HEE S

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

BITEFRTTHARE,
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Balance Sheet

BERER

30 September 2008 R=FZEN\FNLA=1H

2008 2007
—EENF —EELF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Kt BT T BT T
(Restated)
(E7)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries R B ATz R 20 - =
Available-for-sale financial assets ~ AI{tHE LRI EE 22 5,965 5,965
Total non-current assets FREEELTE 5,965 5,965
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Due from subsidiaries FEUBH B A B) 2 FUA 20 1,466,084 1,159,559
Prepayments, deposits and TENRIE - e Kk 24 383 462
other receivables H b e W BRFK
Cash and cash equivalents He MRESEEER 25 26,298 281,096
Total current assets BB EHAE 1,492,765 1,441,117
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBARE
Other payables and accruals E At BR K R AT IR ER 1A 29 6,089 5,627
Due to subsidiaries FEST T B A |) 2 5kIE 20 78,262 72,524
Total current liabilities HREEEAEE 84,351 78,151
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 1,408,414 1,362,966
TOTAL ASSETS LESS WEERRBAE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,414,379 1,368,931
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBAE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings ~ Hff B #R1TE 30 138,274 -
Total non-current liabilities FRBEEEEE 138,274 =
NET ASSETS EEFE 1,276,105 13,68,931
EQUITY ES
Issued capital BT 26 684,337 684,248
Reserves it 27 591,768 684,683
Total equity SRR 1,276,105 1,368,931
Mr. Lim Ee Seng Mr. Ang Ah Lay
MIEE 4 HEEE A
Chairman Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

FE BTTEFRTTHAZE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mEERBER

Year ended 30 September 2008 HE —ZZ N\FNA=+HILFE

Attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent

BAAEEREREEARE
Share-
Share Capital  Exchange hased
Issued ~ premium redemption  fluctuation compensation Minority
capital account  Contributed eserves eserves reseves  Retained interests
BEf Bt spus  EARE  EX%®  RfHHe profits Totd  SRER  Totalequity
& REE  HAE% B B [ ait BE EnEE
HK$000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
ATr EEfr Bfr BETr Mt AT BT BT T i
At 1 October 2006 W55 5 1A-H 084,248 41763 642,378 1% 28605 2,504 7890 1,472,584 287,360 1,759,944
Exchange reagnment and EREREL - - - - 49811 - - 49811 456 54393
fotelncome and expense HERTZER
forthe year recognised A REN
diecty in equiy AR
Prftfor ey RERER - - - - - S W R0 T
Totalincome and expense EREIA - - - - 49811 - 147,164 196,975 17,082 214067
forthe year RER
Shere-based compensation e - - - - - 150 - 150 - 1505
£A0ENSES pl51
Repayment of advances fo ERVYRR - - - - - - - - pardy (o4
minory Shereholders pA ¢
Rechassfication foramountdueto ~ BERERERAR - - - - - - - - 01.216) 01.216)
the immediate holding company LIRENDE
Reclassicaton foramountduefom ~ BENERARAR - - - - - - - - 71483 71483
the immetdate holding company GEERAE
At 30 September 2007 REELENAZTA 684,248 4,763 642,378° 196 13416° 4,009° 25064 1,671,064 261,92 1932,989
At 1 October 2007 N-EEtETA-A 664,248 41763 642,378 1% 13416 4,009 25054 1,671,064 261,925 1,932,989
Exchange realgnment and ERERED - - - - - - 11 700 140659
fotelncome and expense RERTZER
forthe year recogpised B ik
directyin equiy ARFX
Prftor e yer REREH - - - - . IR I ST
Totalincome and expense ERBA - - - - 112,749 - 8,301 121,00 43,505 164,355
forthe year RER
Issue of e shares on exercie fiARERL 8 5 - - - - - 1 - 1%
of share options pEii)
Share-based compensation Rij#ez - - - - - 2,862 - 2862 - 2862
£4peNses 53
Amount duto aminory EfY8RR - - - - - - - - 41 41
shareholder bl
Dividends paid o a minorty BfiA9RR - - - - - - - - Qg (1
shareholder S
At 30 September 2008 R-EEN\ENAZTA 684,337 41816t 642,378 196* 186,165 6,871 233355 1,795,118 23967 2,079,085
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * ZEREREENREEERBERYTZ

HK$1,110,781,000 (2007: HK$986,816,000) in the consolidated
balance sheet.

R REEB1,110,781,0007C (—ZEZ
+4 : B 986,816,000 7T) °
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GEREMRER

Year ended 30 September 2008 HE-EZN\FNA=THILFE

2008 2007
—EEN\E —ETF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
HiaF BT T BT
(Restated)
(&%)
CASH FLOWS FROM REEBRERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax Bt A A 4,450 248,834
Adjustments for: HFAETSIRIE
Share of profits and losses E(REE R A2 49 102
of an associate i ) K &5 18
Finance costs 5 & 24,151 20,266
Interest income B UTA 5 (14,276) (17,743)
Depreciation e 8 1,726 2,022
Amortisation of land use rights T A 2 8 15,505 15,494
Changes in fair values of WEMEZ AR EE 5 31,153 (104,972)
investment properties
Compensation income REWRA 5 - (161,805)
Gain on disposal of HEREYHE 2 W 5 - (56,657)
investment properties
Gain on disposal of available- HEAHEESHEE M= 8 - (100)
for-sale financial assets
Share-based compensation Bl 2 FsZ 8 2,862 1,505
expenses
Impairment of property, plant Y% - W KA 2RE 5 1,242 =
and equipment
Impairment of other receivables E A e Wk IE 2 R E 6 74 76,759
Provision written back on long B EMREREREEE 6 (14,896) -
outstanding construction BN BR R 2 B
cost payables
Gain on disposal of HEYE  BRENMEEZ 5 (12,724) -
property, plant and g
equipment
39,316 23,705
Increase in properties RFEWMEZEM (390,890) (90,405)
held for sale
Decrease in properties under BERPE R 21,990 44,649
development
Decrease/(increase) in trade JEWE ZERFR ~ TR FIA 252,620 (334,940)
receivables, prepayments, e R EHAEWHEIE
deposits and other receivables wA(3En)
Decrease in restricted cash ZRRFIRE 2/ 7,310 13,001
Decrease in pledged deposits BEBFR L - 136,904
Increase in trade payables, ERESRNR - HiE I HRIE 164,265 19,837
other payables and accruals N T RRIE 2 32 1N
Cash generated from/(used in) REEBESE/(BR)2HEE 94,611 (187,249)
operations
Overseas taxes paid B8N IR (37,006) (28,895)
Net cash from/(used in) maEREL (R 2 57,605 (216,144)
operating activities HERE
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Year ended 30 September 2008 HZE —ZEZ N\FNA=+HILFE

Net cash from/(used in)
operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment

Additions to investment properties

Additions to prepayment for
acquisition of land use rights

Proceeds from disposal of items
of property, plant and equipment
and land use right

Proceeds from disposal of
investment properties

Proceeds from disposal of
properties under development

Proceeds from disposal of
available-for-sale financial assets

Interest received

Net cash (used in)/from
investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Interest and other bank
charges paid

Issue of shares on exercise of
share options

Advance from a fellow subsidiary

Dividend paid to a minority shareholder

Net advances from/(to) a minority
shareholder

New bank borrowings

Repayment of bank borrowings

Net cash from/(used in)
financing activities

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances
Non-pledged time deposits with
original maturity of less than
three months when acquired

REXBELE (ER)Z
RE 3

REXER2RERE
BAYE  BFEEEREHE

=Ly Yl
{5 R 2 TR RRIR 2 38 H0

HEWE - W KRB R
T R 2 PSR

HEREY X 2 FrS70R
HEBRRTYERZFAEHA

HEAHREESREEL
PSR
BElZHME

REEK (ER)EE
ZHBEFE

BMEXBRERE
SRS R EAMIRTTE A
TR AR M T2 D

LEBEILIENGIA-E
B DERRE 2 RS
kB (BT LERE
2 ERE
FIBIRTTE R
BEBEITER
BEEKELE
(ER) 2 HE& T
BERBELEEER
CR),#EinF4EE
FO2RE
MIRE&SEER
HNHETE SR B4 )

ZEE RE
ERZHEER
HEEEER

RekReEE
TH B &SRR
B RIRTTHES

BRERRAIHAE TR =EAZ

EEHERER

Notes

Hret

25

2008 2007
—EEN\F —TELF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
(Restated)

(&%)

57,605 (216,144)
(2,764) (230,176)
(1,445) =
(419,749) -
17,897 =

- 242,757

- 651,094

- 600

13,313 17,026
(392,748) 681,301
(98,259) (62,177)
142 —
220,107 -
(21,874) =
411 (22,744)
262,879 378,237
(53,861) (413,567)
309,545 (120,251)
(25,598) 344,906
591,606 229,257
30,088 17,443
596,096 591,606
84,686 67,596
511,410 524,010
596,096 591,606
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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Year ended 30 September 2008 HE-EZN\FNA=THILFE

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Frasers Property (China) Limited is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the
Company is located at Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM12, Bermuda.

During the year, the principal activity of the Company is
investment holding while the Group is involved in the following
principal activities:

- Property development of residential and business park
projects;

- Property investment of residential and business park
projects; and

- Property management of residential and business park
projects

The immediate holding company of the Company is FCL
(China) Pte. Ltd., a company incorporated in Singapore. In the
opinion of the directors, the ultimate holding company of the
Company is Fraser and Neave, Limited, which is incorporated
and listed in Singapore.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for investment properties
which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”).

1

2.1

DNEEH

EMME(RE)ERARTILIRE
REFAMKIZZBR AT - HiEf
WEREMIE A Canon’s Court, 22
Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12,
Bermuda °

RAFEE  RRABZETBEBR R
Bl MAKRBASRATER
ES

- (FEEBFEEEBEBZWER
=3

- (EERBEEBRBZOER
g R

- (EERBEERBEZDEER

RRARZEEBEZER AR A —RRH
N sFEM A 2 A RFCL (China)
Pte. Ltd. - EERAR * ARAIZ&
FR PR AR N B R — B T N3 A A AR
S N ETi 2z /A"l Fraser and Neave,
Limited °

ABBEHRDIBRBETEGFAMAE
B BBV BHHREER(TFEM
BHRELER ] (BREFEMBERSE
EARBEEEN(REGHE
) k@) BEARET R
BERAGHIIZREREMMRE -
BRIEMREAAEFEN > A
BRERTKIEELKAE P RE -
R BHRRIALE (BET) 27 -
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Year ended 30 September 2008 HZE —ZEZ N\FNA=+HILFE

2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 30 September
2008. Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the
date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to
be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. All
significant intercompany transactions and balances within the
Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside
shareholders not held by the Group in the results and net
assets of the Company’s subsidiaries.

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements. Except for in certain cases, giving rise to new
and revised accounting policies and additional disclosures,
the adoption of these new and revised standards and
interpretations has had no material effect on these financial
statements.

HKFRS 7
HKAS 1 Amendment

Financial Instruments: Disclosures

Capital Disclosures

HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and
Impairment

HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury
Share Transactions

HK(FRIC)-Int 11

2.1

2.2

REEXE &)

np

& pret

AR BB REBEAR T REH
BAR (G [ AEE)RBE"F
EN\EAAS+ALFEZHBE
%o BEEEFBEZ EHEE A
ARERE - HBAR 2 EET
fREE B - BB AR E RS
EZE - RTIAAG TREA YK
ERSEARELEAL  HEE
ARRAMZ S RAREALEBIR
2GS -

LHBERESEARBZH B QA
RENMNEEFEPALFBARER
BZINEBR M

FAREETEBYBHRSEEZ

E/
24

AEBERAFE M BERERE X
RTINS R EERT 2 BB
HEER o BRE T 3 BUIE REE
RIS BRNMBIEEZBRIN
RN S8 R EERT R R
HUMBRRLBEEAZE -

BEYBRIENETR  ERBIA: RE

EEEENE Y ERRE
(%)
F(AREHRERE  SHURE:

ZEE)-REZ10% KRt
B (ERMBRERE  BEMBREER
ZEE)-RES 1R F25-5H
kERRHRS
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Year ended 30 September 2008 HE-EZN\FNA=THILFE

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised
HKFRSs are as follows:

(@)

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

This standard requires disclosures that enable users of
the financial statements to evaluate the significance of
the Group’s financial instruments and the nature and
extent of risks arising from those financial instruments.
The new disclosures are included throughout the
financial statements. While there has been no effect
on the financial position or results of operations of the
Group, comparative information has been included/
revised where appropriate.

Amendment to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Capital Disclosures

This amendment requires the Group to make disclosures
that enable users of the financial statements to evaluate
the Group’s objectives, policies and processes for
managing capital. These new disclosures are shown in
note 38 to the financial statements.

22 HAREBIEBUBREERZ

23¢9

Rz B MEETREMB

(a)

(o)

EERNZTEZRENT

BRAMBHRERNET RS &
TA:RE

2 2E B AR 78 1F 1 4% 55 DA (30 B 765
HEREAEETHAEE SR
TEAZEEHURZESRT
BELERBRCHEEREE -
ZEN BB B FREN
BIFSEER o IWERTH AR 2
B FS R sk AR B
Z HREHNEHRTETZEmMH
AEET »

TR G ERFE 1R (ERIA)
BRI ZE5— BEXRKE

ZAEFTHE AR BEH KR EE A
B mRERE LT EARE
EEREAZBRE  BERRE
Fr o 25 H RS N B i sk M
F£38 °
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2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

22 HAREBIEEUBREERZ

23¢9

©)  HK(FRIC)-Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and c BAE(BERUBKDREREEZS

Impairment ®) - REE0ORFHYH R

The Group has adopted this interpretation as of 1 REBER _ZTZT+F+H—
October 2007, which requires that an impairment loss BEEWZ2E Z2EBERE

recognised in a previous interim period in respect of R E—EF AR ERRN

goodwill or an investment in either an equity instrument SEATHINERET AR

classified as available-for-sale or a financial asset carried RAFNERE 2 @R EE 2 ERT

at cost is not subsequently reversed. As the Group had WRT —HRESE  HE%

no impairment losses previously reversed in respect of WEBENGEREE - BRAE

such assets, the interpretation has had no impact on the SR A OB R@EEZR

financial position or results of operations of the Group. BEE HMZREEAEEZ
MBARR SRS FE T EEE -

@)  HK(FRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share ) HBHE(BEERUKDRERELZS

Transactions

This interpretation requires arrangements whereby
an employee is granted rights to the Group’s equity
instruments, to be accounted for as an equity-settled
scheme, even if the Group acquires the instruments from
another party, or the shareholders provide the equity
instruments needed. HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 also addresses
the accounting for share-based payment transactions
involving two or more entities within the Group. As
the Group currently has no such transactions, the
interpretation is unlikely to have any financial impact on
the Group.

®) -REBREEHER
EERIEOH — EF R EFR
w5

ZREBAERERERAKHE
BB TR ENMAERIE T
SIRARESREE 258 B
ZETADHAEERS 7
Wig skl R R - BB (B
MHRERELZES) —2EF
1SR IR EE A A S B A M (E
HIA BB AR RERA R
ZRHZEFRETNE - AR
SERERIYEREERS  MZ%
RRUAKEZ F RN

=72
= °
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Year ended 30 September 2008 HE-EZN\FNA=THILFE

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements.

HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 23 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1

Amendment

Presentation of Financial
Statements 4
Borrowing Costs *

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements °

HKAS 32 Financial instruments:
Presentation and HKAS 1
Presentation of Financial
Statements — Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations
arising on Liquidation *

HKFRS 2 Amendments Share-based Payment — Vesting

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 8
HK(FRIC)-Int 12

HK(FRIC)-Int 13

HK(FRIC)-Int 14

HK(FRIC)-Int 15

HK(FRIC)-Int 16

Conditions and Cancellations *

Business Combinations °

Operating Segments *
Service Concession Arrangements '

Customer Loyalty Programmes ?

HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their
Interaction

Agreements for the Construction of
Real Estate *

Hedges of a Net Investment in a
Foreign Operation °

23 CEMEEMRERZBEBMBRE

BRI 2B

AEEREHBEHRRALERAIAT
B 28 e 18 18 R A2 2 #48 M B RT

EARPBHRE LR

EREENE 1%
(843T)
EHeIER S35
(83T)
EReiEnEoTY
(#e3T)
ERORIEDNER
EREENE 1%

(527%)
EAIBRERNET
(537%)
EIBRSENET
()
Sy e

&n (AR HaEaR
288)-2BE12%
BB (ARMHHERE
Z88)-2RE13%
&b (BRI HaS2E
288)-RBEUR

&n (AR BaEaR
Bg)-2EZ15%
(ERHBaELR
£g)-2RZ 163

5
z
&R
z

Ly e

EERA

ira KRBV
Ly &

BAGERE
% [2HIA -
25| RERE
EREAR
#xz225/
—FBELZ
TRERHTA
RELF
NHAE-58
RAERH

FHEH

EPgHita’

ARG
F19%-EH
EFIBERRA
RELLEXR
BEHEEEE

EHEREGH!

BNEBRE
FEZH M
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2.3

IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2008

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2008

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 October
2008

u Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2009

S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2009

The revised HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
separates owner and non-owner change in equity. The
statement of changes in equity will include only details of
transactions with owners, with all non-owner changes in equity
presented as a single line. In addition, the Standard introduces
the statement of comprehensive income: it presents all items
of income and expense recognised in profit or loss, together
with all other items of recognised income and expense, either
in one single statement, or in two linked statements. The Group
is still evaluating whether it will have one or two statements.

HKAS 23 has been revised to require capitalisation of
borrowing costs when such costs are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset. As the Group’s current policy for borrowing costs aligns
with the requirements of the revised standard, the revised
standard is unlikely to have any financial impact on the Group.
In accordance with the transitional provisions in the revised
standard, the Group shall apply the revised standard on a
prospective basis to borrowing costs relating to qualifying
assets for which the commencement date for capitalisation is
on or after 1 October 2009.
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IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

The revised HKAS 27 requires that a change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary is accounted for as an equity
transaction. Therefore, such a change will have no impact on
goodwill, nor will it give rise to a gain or loss. Furthermore, the
amended standard changes the accounting for losses incurred
by the subsidiary as well as the loss of control of a subsidiary.
The changes introduced by the revised HKAS 27 must be
applied prospectively and will affect future acquisitions and
transactions with minority interests.

The amendments to HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 allow a limited
scope exception for puttable financial instruments to be
classified as equity if they fulfill a number of specified criteria.
As the Group currently has no such financial instruments, the
amendments are unlikely to have any financial impact on the
Group.

The amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment restrict
the definition of “vesting condition” to a condition that includes
an explicit or implicit requirement to provide services. Any
other conditions are non-vesting conditions, which have to
be taken into account to determine the fair value of the equity
instruments granted. In the case that the award does not vest
as a result of a failure to meet a non-vesting condition that is
within the control of either the entity or the counterparty, this
must be accounted for as a cancellation. The Group has not
entered into share-based payment schemes with non-vesting
conditions attached and, therefore, does not expect significant
implications on its accounting for share-based payments.

The revised HKFRS 3 introduces a number of changes in the
accounting for business combinations that will impact the
amount of goodwill recognised, the reported results in the
period that an acquisition occurs, and future reported results.
The changes introduced by the revised HKFRS 3 must be
applied prospectively and will affect future acquisitions and
transactions with minority interests.
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2.3

IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

HKFRS 8, which will replace HKAS 14 Segment Reporting,
specifies how an entity should report information about
its operating segments, based on information about the
components of the entity that is available to the chief operating
decision maker for the purposes of allocating resources to the
segments and assessing their performance. The standard also
requires the disclosure of information about the products and
services provided by the segments, the geographical areas
in which the Group operates, and revenue from the Group’s
major customers. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 8 from
1 October 2009.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 requires an operator under public-to-
private service concession arrangements to recognise the
consideration received or receivable in exchange for the
construction services as a financial asset and/or an intangible
asset, based on the terms of the contractual arrangements.
HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 also addresses how an operator shall apply
existing HKFRSs to account for the obligations and the rights
arising from service concession arrangements by which a
government or a public sector entity grants a contract for the
construction of infrastructure used to provide public services
and/or for the supply of public services. As the Group currently
has no such arrangements, the interpretation is unlikely to have
any financial impact on the Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 requires that loyalty award credits granted
to customers as part of a sales transaction is accounted
for as a separate component of the sale transaction. The
consideration received in the sales transaction is allocated
between the loyalty award credits and the other components
of the sale. The amount allocated to the loyalty award credits
is determined by reference to their fair value and is deferred
until the awards are redeemed or the liability is otherwise
extinguished.

2.3

EEMEERERZEBMBERE

Bz Ew)

BEMBREENESRERER
BEENFE 140 EHE - A5
AEEENAREIELEARRE
O RERGEDBRAFEERR
SEREEEHRINER  BE
HRED 2 ER - ZERITRTE
BRBABE DB RHANER R
R REBEEXRB 2R - A
EREARBEIERPZBWAZE
Bte REERHR -_ZETNAF+ A
—HERNETEVHHREERES
5 ©

FE(BRMERERERZEE) -
BEE2HERE 2HEEBELAR
BRERZHNEERARESD
L HERYIRR - R R R B R A AR A P
WHERNKERRBRRYBEE
R/SBEREE - BE(BRBRUB
BERBEZEE) -REBR12WT
My SERENAAEAREERE
MBEREARBFRREEREK
FEERIARERLRS R
ARG ZERERBBENEL
- 2EBENAERAEREEEEY
B3RS R IR RIS S i HE A
EEZEEREN - AR AEHEE
AT EABLY Bt Z2RE
"EHAREELEMMBEEE

FE (AR GREREREE) -
REFIBHRMATE  FRHEERXRS —
MOBRTEEPZLHERED AE
REEXHZBILMBO AR - HE
RPABRBZREED BEHEE
BoREMKEERD - DETOH
RBEICER2EHEAAEETE
MEREERIE  BEEBBRER RN
Hi REBEMBEHE L -



23

Frasers Property (China) Limited E¥ftthE (FEl) BR A7

Annual Report 07/08 %

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 ¥ R P

Year ended 30 September 2008 HE-EZN\FNA=THILFE

IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 addresses how to assess the limit under
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits, on the amount of a refund or a
reduction in future contributions in relation to a defined benefit
scheme that can be recognised as an asset, in particular, when
a minimum funding requirement exists.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 15 Agreement for Construction of Real Estate,
which was issued in August 2008 and become effective
for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2009,
addresses how to make an agreement within the scope of
HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and HKAS 18 Revenue and
how to recognise the revenue from the construction of real
estate.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign
Operation was issued in August 2008 becomes effective
for financial year beginning on or after 1 October 2008. The
Interpretation addresses what the nature of the hedged
risk and amount of the hedged items, where in the group
the hedging instrument held, and what amounts should
be classified from equity to profit or loss as reclassification
adjustments on disposal of the foreign operation. As the Group
has no such hedging transactions incurred, it is unlikely to have
any financial impact on the Group.

As the Group currently has no customer loyalty award credits,
defined benefit scheme, agreements for the construction
of real estate and hedges of a net investment in a foreign
operation, HK(IFRIC)-Int 13, HK(IFRIC)-Int 14, HK(IFRIC)-
Int 15 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 are not applicable to the Group
and therefore are unlikely to have any financial impact on the
Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 EESTHBERME

POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies
the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s interests in subsidiaries are stated
at cost less any impairment losses.

Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a jointly-
controlled entity, in which the Group has a long term interest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over
which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.

The Group’s interests in associates are stated in the
consolidated balance sheet at the Group’s share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment
losses. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
reserves of associates is included in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated reserves, respectively.

The results of associates are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s interests in associates are
treated as non-current assets and are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
properties held for sale, deferred tax assets, available-for-
sale financial assets and investment properties), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case, the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the income statement in the period in which it arises in
those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether
there is any indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation), had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such impairment loss
is credited to the income statement in the period in which it
arises.

2.4 EESITBEREE )

FERMEERE

HWERETR  IRESFHEE
(FEHEWE BEMREE - 7]
HEHETHEERREMERIN) E
TTRERR  AlefitEEZ K
EEE BEEZAKRLBBBEREE
FECELBEUZEREXRRAE
BMEEXRAMEZRDE » Wi
MEEETE RIFXBAEELRE
EBUNEMBEES —HEEZR
ERA - EZERT - AT E B
ARZEEMBRSELBMNERE -

HEBEREREE CREEBBE
A E e EEER - R EERER
BER G AXREREGUR
REEHSEHZEECEBHHEE
BERSERBRF G ZRATTERE
FRERBE - BREBBERELS
Rt ARBERANBRRRECEE
WREMRR 2 R o

RE-—HEBSFHEECTHRETR
NEERZBEBENETNEEFE
HERD c MEEZETR - AIFF
AW E SR - AEERZEE (B
BEINBERBE REERNUE
ERWE BB A E RS
E - B8O EBIAIBRZEAER
EMRN A EFEREERRERR
ZEREE (MR ERTE #H) -
PrECl 2 BERE  ITREELH
FEt ARER -

69



70

Frasers Property (China) Limited £¥iithE (FHEl) BRA T
Annual Report 07/08 “F %

Notes to the Financial Statements

BT 3R AR B 5E

Year ended 30 September 2008 HZE —ZEZ N\FNA=+HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@ the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; (i) has an interest in the
Group that gives it significant influence over the Group;
or (i) has joint control over the Group;

(o)  the party is an associate;
(c) the party is a joint-controlled entity;

(d) the party is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or its parent;

(e) the party is a close member of the family of any individual
referred to in (a) or (d);

(f)  the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by or for which significant voting
power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly,
any individual referred to in (d) or (e); or

(@ the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group, or of any entity
that is a related party of the Group.

2.4

EESTBERBE )

HEAL

THALHEREREEARE

(@)

®)

EEdEEER—AXZEP
MR () IEFIANEE I ARE
Bt EmAERTERE
# o (IR AEBHEA#ER - B
MEAEBEERTEN : &
(i) FERZEFIAEE 2 AL

ABALABEAT
ﬁgaAiﬁj;ﬂiﬁ?&n%ugﬁg :

AEEXEBRAZETEEE
AB

(@) 2k (d) Pt EERA LT ZE
S

(d) K (e) At (E (I E R A L B £
SRS - KRS oA] 3%
BEAFENIBAEARER
BZER %

B A R 5 A B R
EEMEALZ ETEE R
BRI R 2 K LSR8
FISTRIZHA -



Frasers Property (China) Limited E¥ftthE (FEl) BR A7

Annual Report 07/08 %

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 ¥ R P

Year ended 30 September 2008 HE-EZN\FNA=THILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than properties held
for development, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use. Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the income statement
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can
be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted
in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to
be obtained from the use of an item of property, plant and
equipment, and where the cost of the item can be measured
reliably, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of
that asset or as a replacement.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:
Buildings in Mainland China Over the remaining
term of lease or
5%, whichever
is higher
Leasehold improvements 20%
Office equipment, furniture and fixtures  19.2% to 33.33%
Motor vehicles 12% to 20%
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 EESTEREBE 2

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (Continued)

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet
date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal
or retirement recognised in the income statement in the year
the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction, which are stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and are not depreciated. Cost comprises direct
costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on
related borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress are reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment or investment
properties when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease
for property which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or
for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the
balance sheet date.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the income statement in
the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the income statement in
the year of the retirement or disposal.

When the Group completes the construction or development
of a self-constructed investment property, any difference
between the fair value of the property at the completion date
and its previous carrying amount is recognised in the income
statement.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at cost less any
impairment losses. Cost of properties under development
comprises cost of acquisition, land cost, construction costs,
development costs, capitalised borrowing costs and other
direct costs attributable to the development. The land cost
is recognised on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Impairment is assessed by the directors based on prevailing
market prices, on an individual property basis.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 EESTEREBE 2

POLICIES (continued)

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the income statement on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under the operating leases are charged to
the income statement on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

Land use right is initially stated at cost and subsequently
recognised on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
When the land use right cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments are
included in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance lease
in property, plant and equipment.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined by apportionment
of total development cost, including capitalised borrowing
cost, attributable to the unsold units. Net realisable value
is determined on the basis of anticipated sales proceeds,
or management estimated based on the prevailing market
conditions, less all estimated costs to completion and selling
expenses, on an individual property basis.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables, and available-for-sale financial assets, as
appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially, they
are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments
not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable
transaction costs. The Group assesses whether a contract
contains an embedded derivative when the Group first
becomes a party to it and assesses whether an embedded
derivative is required to be separated from the host contract
when the analysis shows that the economic characteristics
and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related
to those of the host contract. Reassessment only occurs if
there is a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required
under the contract.

The Group determines the classification of its financial assets
after initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-
evaluates this designation at the balance sheet date.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 EESTEREBE 2

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Such assets are subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate and transaction
costs. Gains and losses are recognised in the income
statement when the loans and receivables are derecognised or
impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial
assets in listed and unlisted equity securities that are
designated as available for sale or are not classified in any of
the other two categories. After initial recognition, available-
for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value, with gains
of losses recognised as a separate component of equity
until the investment is derecognised or until the investment
is determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative
gain or loss previously reported in equity is included in the
income statement. Losses arising from the impairment of
such investments are recognised in the income statement
as “Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets”
and are transferred from the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such securities are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in
organised financial markets is determined by reference to
quoted market bid prices at the close of business at the
balance sheet date. For investments where there is no active
market, fair value is determined using valuation techniques.
Such techniques include using recent arm’s length market
transactions; reference to the current market value of another
instrument which is substantially the same; a discounted cash
flow analysis; and other valuation models.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there
is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans
and receivables carried at amortised cost has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced either directly or through the use of an allowance
account. The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in
the income statement. Loans and receivables together with
any associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 EESTBEREBE 2

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by
adjusting the allowance account. Any subsequent reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised in the income statement, to
the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed
its amortised cost at the reversal date.

In relation to trade and other receivables, a provision for
impairment is made when there is objective evidence (such as
the probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties
of the debtor and significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor) that the Group will not be able to collect
all of the amounts due under the original terms of an invoice.
The carrying amount of the receivables is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Impaired debts are derecognised
when they are assessed as uncollectible.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an
unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value
because its fair value cannot be reliably measured has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on
these assets are not reversed.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

If an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any principal
payment and amortisation) and its current fair value, less
any impairment loss previously recognised in the income
statement, is transferred from equity to the income statement.
A provision for impairment is made for available-for-sale equity
investments when there has been a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value below its cost or where other objective
evidence of impairment exists. The determination of what is
“significant” or prolonged” requires judgement. Impairment
losses on equity instruments classified as available for sale are
not reversed through the income statement.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised where:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired;

° the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows from
the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in
full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset and either (a) has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 EESTBEREBE 2

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to
the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/
or purchased option (including a cash-settled option or similar
provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement is the amount of the transferred asset
that the Group may repurchase, except in the case of a written
put option (including a cash-settled option or similar provision)
on an asset measured at fair value, where the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair
value of the transferred asset and the option exercise price.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (including interest-bearing
loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, interest-
bearing bank borrowings, amounts due to the immediate
holding company and a fellow subsidiary are initially stated at
fair value less directly attributable transaction costs and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. The related
interest expenses are recognised within “finance costs” in the
income statement.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or maodification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are
not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the balance
sheet date of the future expenditures expected to be required
to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present
value amount arising from the passage of time is included in
finance costs in the income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 EESTBEREBE 2

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
is recognised in the income statement, or in equity if it relates
to items that are recognised in the same or a different period
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with interests in subsidiaries and an associate, where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences,
and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

o where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with interests in subsidiaries and an
associate, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Conversely, previously unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at each balance sheet date and are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@ revenue from the sale of properties is recognised on
the completion of transaction. When properties under
development for sale are pre-sold prior to completion,
income is recognised on the execution of a binding sales
agreement or when the relevant building occupation
permit is issued by the relevant authority, whichever
is the later. Payments received prior to this stage are
recorded as deposits received and included in current
liabilities;

(b) operating lease rental income is recognised on a time
proportion basis over the lease terms;

(c) property management fee income is recognised when
the services are rendered; and

(d) interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument to the net
carrying amount of the financial assets.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded
using the functional currency rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. All
differences are taken to the income statement. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
balance sheet date, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Company
at the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date, and
their income statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The
resulting exchange differences are included in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign entity, the
deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to
that particular foreign operation is recognised in the income
statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits

@)

(b)

Retirement benefits costs

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all eligible employees.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ salaries, allowances and other benefits
and are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group when the
employee leaves employment prior to the contributions
vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate in a
central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute 10% to 22% of its payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. These contributions are charged
to the income statement as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Employee leave pay and compensation entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service payment are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability
for annual leave and long service payment as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet
date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of taking leave.

@)

(b)
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(c)

Share-based compensations

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payment transactions, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments
(“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
is measured by reference to the fair value at the date
at which they are granted. The fair value is determined
by an external valuer using a binomial model, further
details of which are given in note 26 to the financial
statements. In valuing equity-settled transactions, no
account is taken of any performance conditions, other
than conditions linked to the price of the shares of the
Company (“market conditions”), if applicable.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the
relevant employees become fully entitled to the award
(the “vesting date”). The cumulative expense recognised
for equity-settled transactions at each balance sheet
date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the income
statement for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and
end of that period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(c)  Share-based compensations (Continued)

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for awards where vesting is
conditional upon a market condition, which are treated
as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance

conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification, which increases the
total fair value of the share-based payment arrangement,
or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured

at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. However, if a new award is substituted for
the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification
of the original award, as described in the previous

paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings

per share.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities, at the reporting date. However,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Provision for land premium rebate receivable

At the last financial year end, a land premium rebate receivable
of HK$76,662,000 was still outstanding. The claim could
not proceed as planned following the successful bidder’s
payment of the land premium in June 2007 for the disposal
of the Group’s interest in the residential development site
in Beijing as a result of the disputed boundary line of the
site. This issue will take time to resolve as it requires the
involvement of certain government agencies to coordinate.
The amount is fully provided for to reflect any uncertainty and
unforeseen circumstances which may adversely impact on
its recoverability. However, based on legal advice, the Group
has not breached any contractual obligations and conditions
and the claim remains good and valid. During the year ended
30 September 2008, the Group managed to obtain the land
premium receipt to kick-start the rebate refund application.
The situation had yet to be observed and monitored for
the recoverability. Accordingly, the provision has not been
reversed during the year.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)
Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the Group
has to exercise judgement in the area of asset impairment,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred
that may affect the asset value or such event affecting the
asset value has not been in existence; (2) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the net present value
of future cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash
flow projections including whether these cash flow projections
are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the
assumptions selected by management to determine the level
of impairment, including the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially
affect the net present value used in the impairment test.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for unused tax losses carried forward to the extent
that it is probable (i.e., more likely than not) that future taxable
profits will be available against which the unused tax losses
can be utilised, based on all available evidence. Recognition
primarily involves judgement regarding the future performance
of the particular legal entity or tax group in which the deferred
tax asset has been recognised. A variety of other factors are
also evaluated in considering whether there is convincing
evidence that it is probable that some portion or all of the
deferred tax assets will ultimately be realised, such as the
existence of taxable temporary differences, tax planning
strategies and the periods in which estimated tax losses can
be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets and
related financial models and budgets are reviewed at each
balance sheet date and to the extent that there is insufficient
convincing evidence that sufficient taxable profits will be
available within the utilisation periods to allow utilisation of the
carry forward tax losses, and that the asset balance will be
reduced and charged to the income statement.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Land appreciation tax

Under the Provisional Regulations on land appreciation tax
(“LAT”) implemented upon the issuance of the Provisional
Regulations of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
on 27 January 1995, all gains arising from the transfer of real
estate property in the Mainland China effective from 1 January
1994 are subject to LAT at progressive rates ranging from
30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being the
proceeds of sales of properties less deductible expenditures
including amortisation of land use rights, borrowing costs and
all property development expenditures.

The subsidiaries of the Group engaging in property
development business in the Mainland China are subject to
land appreciation taxes. However, the implementation of these
taxes varies amongst various Mainland China cities and the
Group has not finalised its land appreciation tax returns with
various tax authorities. Accordingly, significant judgement is
required in determining the amount of land appreciation and
its related taxes. The ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
these liabilities based on management’s best estimates.
When the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the provisions of land appreciation taxes in the period
in which such determination is made.

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined that
it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of
these properties which are leased out on operating leases.

Unlisted equity investments

The Group’s unlisted equity investments were stated at cost
less impairment because the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is so significant that the directors are of the opinion
that their fair values cannot be measured reliably.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial years, are discussed below.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active
market for similar lease terms and other contracts. In the
absence of such information, management determines the
amount within a range of reasonable fair value estimates. In
making its estimation, management considers information
from (i) current prices in an active market for properties
of different nature, conditions or locations by reference
to available market information; (i) recent prices of similar
properties in less active markets, with adjustments to reflect
any changes in economic conditions since the date of
transactions that occurred at those prices; and (iii) discounted
cash flow projections, based on reliable estimates of future
cash flows, derived from the terms of any existing lease and
other contracts, and (where possible) from external evidence
such as current market rates for similar properties in the same
location and condition, and using discount rates that reflect
current market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount
and timing of cash flows. The Group’s investment properties
were revalued on 30 September 2008 by an independent,
professionally qualified valuers DTZ Debenham Tie Leung
Limited on an open market, existing use basis.

The principal assumptions for the Group’s estimation of the fair
value include those related to current market rents for similar
properties in the same location and condition, appropriate
discount rates, expected future market rents and future
maintenance costs. Particulars of the investment properties
held by the Group are set out in note 15 to the financial
statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Current income taxes and deferred taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant estimation and judgement are required
in determining the amount of the provision for tax and the
timing of payment of the related taxes. There are transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcomes of these matters are different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact on the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
periods in which such determination is made.

Provision

A provision is recognised when a present obligation has arisen
as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation. Significant estimation is required in determining
the amount of certain obligations. Where the final outcomes
of these obligations are different from the amounts that were
initially recognised, adjustments will be made according to the
latest information available.
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4.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented by way of the Group’s
primary segment reporting basis, by business segment. In
determining the Group’s geographical segments, revenues
are attributed to the segments based on the location of the
customers, and assets are attributed to the segments based
on the location of the assets. No further geographical segment
information is presented as over 90% of the Group’s revenue
is derived from customers based in Mainland China, and over
90% of the Group’s assets are located in Mainland China.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and
managed separately according to the nature of their operations
and the products and services they provide. Each of the
Group’s business segments represents a strategic business
unit that offers products and services which are subject to risks
and returns that are different from those of the other business
segments. Summary details of the business segments are as

follows:

Property development — development, investment and
management of properties

Business park — development, investment and

management of business parks

During the current and prior years, there were no intersegment
transactions.
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The segment information is presented as follows:

2008:

REVENUE
Total revenue

RESULTS

Segment results before
other gains/(losses)

Changes in fair values of
investment properties

Impairment on property,
plant and equipment

Gain on disposal of
property, plant and
equipment

Segment results after
other gains/(losses)

Interest income

Finance costs

Share of profits and
losses of an associate

Profit before tax
Tax credit

Profit for the year
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Year ended 30 September 2008 HE—ZZENFHA=FTHILFE
4. IBERH)

HEWERZIIET :

—BENF:

Property Business
development park Corporate Total
MERR BEE TXER G
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T BETT BETT
38,094 85,466 - 123,560
(4,599) 59,272 (20,628) 34,045
- (31,153) - (31,153)
- (1,242) - (1,242)
- - 12,724 12,724
(4,599) 26,877 (7,904) 14,374
14,276
(24,151)
(49) - - (49)
4,450
19,446
23,896
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

2008:

ASSETS

Segment assets
Interest in an associate
Unallocated assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

BE

NEBE

iN NPk S
ADBEE

BERE

OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION

Capital expenditures
Depreciation
Amortisation
Changes in fair values of
investment properties
Impairment on property,
plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of
property, plant
and equipment
Impairment allowance
on other receivables

BARX

e

]

REMEZ
DRER

nE - BERREZ
RE
HEWE - B
Rtz Wk
Hit A IEZ

BIERE

4. HBER @)
—EE)N\EF:

Property Business
development park Corporate Total
MERR BEE TEER &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BB BETT BT BT T
3,304,977 1,085,601 16,460 4,407,038
5 - - 5
- - - 50,127
4,457,170
326,991 48,921 9,466 385,378
- - - 1,992,707
2,378,085

Hitp HER

Property Business
development park Corporate Total
MERR BEE TEER &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BB BETT BT T BT T
1,070 1,661 33 2,764
1,179 306 241 1,726
15,490 - 15 15,505
- 31,153 - 31,153
- 1,242 - 1,242
- - (12,724) (12,724)
74 - - 74
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

2007:

REVENUE
Total revenue

RESULTS

Segment results before
other gains/(losses)

Changes in fair values of
investment properties

Compensation income

Gain on disposal of
investment properties

Segment results after
other gains /(losses)

Interest income

Finance costs

Share of profits and
losses of an associate

Profit before tax
Tax charge

Profit for the year

YA
LN

ES
RetEHA S

/ (B1R) 2 2 ER%AE
BEME
NREES
mERA
HEREMEZ W

AEH M/ (B518)

‘2z DEPEAE
LS A
&R
i NG

i M K &5 18
B A0 A g A
B
REE i A

B 75 ¥ R P

Year ended 30 September 2008 HE-EZN\FNA=THILFE

4. IHER (B

—BELE:
Property Business
development park Corporate Total
MEER [SESE] tEER A&t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T BETT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E31) (E31) (&71) (&351)
65,129 63,472 - 128,601
(80,616) 33,929 (25,288) (71,975)
= 104,972 = 104,972
161,805 - - 161,805
- 56,657 - 56,657
81,189 195,558 (25,288) 251,459
17,743
(20,266)
(102) = = (102)
248,834
(89,170)
159,664
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on other receivables

B

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) DEBEFE (#)
2007: —EELEF,
Property Business
development park Corporate Total
MR [SESE hEEH At
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
BT T BT BB T T BT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&31)) (&%) (E31)) (E31))
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEEE 2,201,673 1,082,003 21,344 3,395,020
Interest in an associate B E A R 2 s 54 = = 54
Unallocated assets ROBREE - - - 303,986
Total assets BEBRR 3,699,060
LIABILITIES BE
Segment liabilities SDEEE 166,685 57,851 10,838 235,374
Unallocated liabilities APBRAE - - - 1,530,697
Total liabilities BERRE 1,766,071
OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION H 25 7B & Y}
Property Business
development park Corporate Total
e i [EESE TEER a5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
BT BT BETT BT
Capital expenditures =N 1,639 232,180 551 234,370
Depreciation e 1,099 405 518 2,022
Amortisation B 13,803 1,599 92 15,494
Changes in fair value of & &ME 2 - (104,972) - (104,972)
investment properties N EE
Gain on disposal of HEREME - (56,657) - (56,657)
investment properties 2 e
Impairment allowance HA e EIa 2 76,661 98 = 76,759




Frasers Property (China) Limited E¥ftthE (FEl) BR A7

Annual Report 07/08 %

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 ¥ R P

Year ended 30 September 2008 HE-EZN\FNA=THILFE

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER (LOSSES)/
GAINS, NET

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents sales
of properties, gross rental income and property management
fee received and receivable from the principal activities during
the year.

Revenue, other income and other (losses)/gains, net
recognised during the year are as follows:

REVENUE WA
Sales of properties HEYE
Gross rental income Helh Asazs

Property management fee income ~ #13EIR & Uk A

OTHER INCOME HAp A
Interest income AEWA
Net exchange gain (Note (a)) P 5 U e 558 (FE (a)
Utility revenue ERERA
Others HAftb
OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET Hih (B518),Weas - JFHE
Changes in fair values of wEMHEZ
investment properties (Note 15) N EES) (FizE15)
Gain on disposal of property, HEYE  BEK
plant and equipment (Note (b)) g 2 Wz (P (b))
Impairment on property, plant Y% - R NEAE
and equipment (Note 14) ZRE (FsE14)
Gain on disposal of investment HERE M
properties (Note (c)) 2 Wz (FisE (o)

Compensation income (Note (d)) mEU A (H1FE )

5.

WA~ Es AR E A (B58), |

WANMBAREEZ L2558 - 5FAR
WhEKRKEBETELEREH ZWE
HEKRA HEBWARBRYWEE
BEWA -

FRALBERZEA ~ HfRARE
fir (B518),Wzs - FRELAT

2008 2007
—BEN\F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
(Restated)

(&351)

34,706 62,104
68,772 53,488
20,082 13,009

123,560 128,601
14,276 17,743

- 118,185

4,043 2,755
3,164 3,556
21,483 37,189
(31,153) 104,972
12,724 =
(1,242) -

- 56,657

- 161,805

(19,671) 323,434

929
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Bt

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER (LOSSES)/
GAINS, NET (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Represents the exchange gain on settlement of bank and
intra-group loans with the proceeds from the disposals of
interest in a development site and a part of an investment
property in the prior year.

Represents the gain on disposal of a non-core asset
(Shenzhen villa with the transfer of the ownership of golf
club membership) in December 2007.

Represents the gain on disposal of part of Sohu.com
Internet Plaza to Sohu.com in the prior year. Details of
this transaction have been disclosed in the Company’ s
announcement dated 29 January 2007. The gain was
increased by the land appreciation tax of HK$20,411,000
which was reclassified into “tax” for the financial year.

Represents the gain on disposal of interest in the development
site in Beijing in relation to the Land Development Construction
Compensation Agreement. Details of this transaction have
been disclosed in the announcement dated 29 November
2006. The gain was increased by the land appreciation tax
of HK$6,316,000 which was reclassified into “tax” for the
financial year.

5.

WA~ HUA R E A4 (EE) W
&= FEE)

BERE—FEAHEZRDRER
RE A IREWEZ RSFIRRER
RITREEABERBEEZERL
WS o

ER-TTLE+ B E R
B2 ORYI 78 F 8 B X B
SR FAE) 2 -

B E—F R & 5 5
PRAREZ R - ZRHZFHIBE
R-ZEZE+tF—A=-F+hBAXRA
Z AR o IR EE E K
72 LHIR(E TR A% 20,411,000
TEEFHEA [FHE] -

BRELRAZERRERZELE
BRI EER 2R - AR
HZHBER_ZEZERE+—H
“HABERRRZ AMHARE - 1
AP BEEZ K2 TR ETR R
786,316,000 TE EH D A[ B
Bl
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Year ended 30 September 2008 HE—ZZENFHA=FTHILFE

PROVISIONS WRITTEN BACK/(MADE), NET

Provisions written back/(made), net:
Provisions written back on long
outstanding construction
cost payables
Impairment allowance on
receivables (Note)

Note:

SLUATIE B # M,/ (1) B4 -
BOENRBREERESE

XA 2

6.

FEWUER IR 2 BB B (FYRE)

Represents the impairment allowance for a land premium rebate
receivable of HK$76,662,000 and other receivables for the prior

year.

FINANCE COSTS

Interest on bank borrowings wholly
repayable within five years
Other borrowing costs

Total borrowing costs incurred

Less: Amounts capitalised to
properties held for development

Less: Amounts capitalised to
properties under development

Total borrowing costs capitalised

Amount charged to the
consolidated income statement

RAFAZHEEEZ
RITERFE
HA B

EEZERR AN B

B BIERBEREYE
ZEELHE

B BIEERRTYME
L BB

BRIFEEZ B ANEHE

KR A Wt R AHIRR
Z TR

BE(EH) B - B8

2008 2007
—EENEF —ETEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT

SRR
14,896 -
(74) (76,759)
14,822 (76,759)

3T -

BERBEL - FECRKRTHHES

RGBT 76,662,000 7T K H M FEUK -

B & A
2008 2007
—2BEN\E —TELF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
95,472 70,414
1,623 2,689
97,095 73,103
- (3,564)
(72,944) (49,273)
(72,944) (52,837)
24,151 20,266
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8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 8.
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):

Depreciation (Note 14) & (fiE14)
Less: Amounts capitalised to W BERRRYE
properties under development ZBELHEE
Gross rental income He WA LLE
Less: Outgoing expenses (*) B ()
Amortisation of land T AR
use rights (Note (a)) ZEESE (HT3E (@)
Operating lease rentals in THIREF 2L
respect of land and buildings Az
Employees benefit expenses EEBH 2 AZ (I (0)
(Note (o) (including (BEEEML)
directors’ remuneration)
Wages and salaries TERE M
Equity-settled share AR 2
option expenses FERERS
Net pension schemes contributions ~ E4RsHE| 2 7R 5
(after deducting forfeited (BEFNBRZ U2 R
contribution of HK$14,000 A78%14,000 7T
(2007: HK$115,000)) (ZZZTtF : E%115,0007T))
Auditors’ remuneration ZERHE
Gain on disposal of HERHEESH
available-for-sale financial assets BE W

Foreign exchange gains, net (Note (c))  IMEUWES - %28 (FifE (c))

(*)  The outgoing expenses are included in “direct operating
expenses” on the face of the consolidated income
statement.

BR L A&

AR ER BRR B A A& B (GEAD

AT5I%IR

2008 2007

—EENE —TTLF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BETT BT
(Restated)

(&51)

1,954 2,099

(228) (77)

1,726 2,022
(68,772) (53,488)
16,719 19,844
(52,053) (33,644)
15,505 15,494
3,571 2,657
26,192 26,011
2,862 1,505

631 420
29,685 27,936
1,813 1,777
- (100)
(21,450) (20,211)

" FAXBIAGERERZIEE

REFRAXIA -
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)

Notes:

(a)

Includes HK$15,490,000 (2007: HK$13,803,000) (Note
19) related to properties under development which did not
generate any revenue during the year.

Included in the balance of HK$11,087,000 (2007:
HK$12,895,000) was charged to direct operating expenses
and HK$18,598,000 (2007: HK$15,041,000) was charged
to administrative expenses.

Represents the exchange gains arising from normal
operations during the year.

In the prior year, balance represents the exchange gain
of HK$13,135,000 (Note 5) on settlement of bank and
intra—group loans with the proceeds from the disposals of
interest in a development site and a part of an investment
property, and exchange gain of HK$7,076,000 from normal
operations.

8.

BREL AR A (2)
B3

@ HAEHAZERRZMERBE
15,490,000 T ( Z T T4 : B
13,803,000 7T) (MizE19) &% 5W
ERFERILETFUA -

(b) LA B B &S ¥ 11,087,0007T
(ZZTZ= £ : %%12,895,0007T)
EREELEHT RINRRBE
18,598,000t ( — T L F : B
15,041,0007T) B A TEBASZ R HIRR ©

) EBERFRAAREBELZERLWR

L FEABIENRE —EEREL
BT RIBOREEZ BRI
BERTREBRTERRELEZ
[E 5 U 25 & 75 # 13,135,000 7T (Hf
FE5) R BB EBAES 2 B X e
787,076,000 7T °

103



104

Frasers Property (China) Limited £¥iithE (FHEl) BRA T
Annual Report 07/08 “F %

Notes to the Financial Statements

BT 3R AR B 5E

Year ended 30 September 2008 HZE —ZEZ N\FNA=+HILFE

9.

TAX

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Group had no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year. Last year, Hong Kong profits tax had been provided
at the rate of 17.5% on the estimated assessable profits arising
in Hong Kong during that year. Taxation on Mainland China
profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit
for the year at the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdiction
regions in which the Group operates, based on existing
legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Provisional Regulations
of the PRC on Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) effective 1
January 1994, and the Detailed Implementation Rules on
the Provisional Regulations of the PRC on LAT effective 27
January 1995, all income from the sale or transfer of state—
owned land use rights, buildings and their attached facilities in
the PRC is subject to LAT at progressive rates ranging from
30% to 60% of the appreciation value, with an exemption
provided for property sales of ordinary residential properties if
the appreciation values do not exceed 20% of the sum of the
total deductible items including amortisation of land use rights,
borrowing costs and all property development expenditures,
which was included in “other gains” in the prior year. Certain
subsidiaries of the Group were subject to LAT which is
calculated based on 1% to 2% of their revenue in accordance
with the authorised taxation method, which was included
in “direct operating expenses” in prior years. Should LAT of
these subsidiaries be calculated according to the calculation
method under the Detailed Implementation Rules on the
Provisional Regulations, the estimated additional charge for
the LAT would have been approximately HK$6,337,000 (2007:
HK$27,523,000) after written back on overprovision for LAT in
the prior year of HK$11,163,000 and the provision for LAT of
HK$17,500,000.

BiE

REBRFE AL EERMBERRNR
BAMTAELNSHR 2 BEE - E5F
ERMERIREBEEFARETBLZ
fl 5t FE AR T )4t M HR 7 K 17.5% 1E &t
o RBEAREZABRIDREFEA
B ERTR MR AN EREEK A
ADERR ZIRITER - 2B RIED
NERITREEH -

BE— QAN FE—B—BESzH
2= AREME L8 ER ([ g
BHDETEAR —NAALAF —
AZ+tBHBERzHEARKEME
TH I ER EITIRGI B R R 2R
ERAPBEEHENEREEA T
A BFREMNBREMS 2 —
T A BRI FIEEFE0% E
60% 2 i # B R R B AR + b I E
o WEEFALE—FEZ[HM
el e MEBELTBEEDEZHE -
EHAMSEEABRITMKIEE
(BRI HERERE  EERAK
FTEMERRAS) ZBRTE20%E
AERR - NREEETHEBARA
BIEZEBYCERBAZ 1% E2%
RN T I ER - LIBE T AR
TEEZ[BEELERAT] A - Mz
EMBAR T HIBERIIBEY
TIEPIBEMA 2T B H AT E
ERE F—FE LG (E TR B R
&% A% 11,163,000 7Tl HbiE(E
i 2 B8 5 75 ¥ 17,500,000 TT £
HAFT A 2 LG EH A S
#6,337,000 L (ZEZE L F : B
27,523,000 7T) °
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TAX (continued)

Pursuant to the new tax law passed on 16 March 2007, a
5% to 10% withholding tax was levied on dividends declared
to foreign enterprise investors for the PRC effective from 1
January 2008. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if
there is a tax treaty arrangement between the PRC and the
jurisdiction of the foreign enterprises investors. On 22 February
2008, Caishui (2008) No. 1 was promulgated by the tax
authorities to specify that dividends declared and remitted out
of the PRC from the retained earnings as at 31 December 2007
are exempted from the withholding tax.

The amount of tax credited/(charged) to the consolidated
income statement represents:

Current — Hong Kong BNER—F/A

Current — Mainland China BVER — AR B R e

LAT in Mainland China HR B K B + b 3R E B
Deferred (Note 32) BRIE (M52 32)

9.

BE @)

RER-_FFTLF=AT/NEBEA
ZEBOE AR BEINERRERE
FREIRZBEBUNT F5%E10%
ZERARER-_ZENF—-A—H
A - WM EENELEKEE
RITHRBERZS  MERARIEZ
AR - R_FFENF_H=_T=
B BRI EMRM 2 F 5 (2008) F 1 5%
KA R-_TELF+_A=1+—
BREREBENZAEIRELEHS
Bz SRR TBINFIA -

BB (GTA) REEE RmR 2B
17 :

2008 2007
—EBEN\F —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
(Restated)

(E51)
- (1,047)
(14,889) (79,170)
(6,337) (27,5623)
40,672 18,570
19,446 (89,170)
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9.

TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax using the statutory rate for the jurisdictions in which the
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to
the tax expense at the effective tax rate, and a reconciliation of
the applicable rate (i.e. the statutory tax rate) to the effective tax
rate are as follows:

B @)

BARAREEEME QR AEL
b PR I BR B A A 2 0K E B R G
BZBRBXh BREERRFE
2B A R E AR (BLAE D
R)EBREBRZ HREHETIAT

2008 2007
—EENE “ZTtF
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
BETR BETT
(Restated)
(E5)
Profit before tax BRE AR A 4,450 248,834
Tax at Hong Kong profits B BFIEHRE16.5% 734 16.5 43,546 175
tax rate at 16.5% (ZZT5+F :17.5%)
(2007: 17.5%) iTE
Effect of different taxation rate IR E B 2,250 50.6 21,597 8.7
of specific province or local BEAHMHNE
authority in Mainland China MR E
Effect on opening deferred MRS E HEMET (25,051) (562.9) - =
tax of change in rates (Note 32)  Fi1E2 5728 (Fifz32)
Income not subject to tax AR WA (49,290) (1,107.8) (4,145) a.7)
Expenses not deductible for tax ~ AE[40%i 2 X H 42,411 953.1 1,846 07
Utiisation of previously BRBARER (46) (1.0) (7,064) 2.8)
unrecognised tax losses ZHIEEA
Tax losses for which no deferred ~ REERELEFEH 3,134 70.4 4,820 1.9
income tax asset was recognised B Z i BE B
LAT in Mainland China YN b 6,337 1424 27,523 1.1
Others Hit 75 1.7 1,047 0.4
Tax (credit)/charge at RERHRHE (19,446) (437.0) 89,170 35.8
the effective rate ZBEER)/

No share of tax attributable to the associate was included in
“share of profit and losses of an associate” on the face of the
consolidated income statement.

Bt AGRE SR [BIEHE R RlR
MEEE] A28 L RBAL ARG
B8 o
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10. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

Forfeited contributions totalling HK$14,000 (2007:
HK$115,000) were utilised during the year to reduce
contributions. At 30 September 2008, the Group had no
forfeited contributions available to reduce its contributions to
the pension scheme in future years (2007: Nil).

Contributions totalling HK$100,000 (2007: HK$173,000) were
payable to the fund at the year end and are included in other
payables and accruals.

10.

BAIRER RA

Rz KA B 14,000 (ZF
THF  E¥115,0000) ERFER
ERRBEER - R=ZFEZNFAN
A=4H ' ZR&E B &2 WA KA
PR R F FOR D H AR ARG SR

—BRLEFT)-

REEAREINTES CHHERE
A7B® 100,000 L (Z 22 +F : B
#173,0007T) 3 51 P E b & 5 BR
KR FERTIRARIEA o
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 11. EEREREBAEZHE
EMOLUMENTS
(@  Director’s and senior management’s emoluments (@ E=EELREABEABZHE
Directors’ remuneration for the year ended 30 BE_ZZEN\FNLA=F+HIE
September 2008, disclosed pursuant to the Listing FEREEIZMeIRE LT
Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies HBIREE R BEFSE 161 &
Ordinance, is as follows: WEHT :
Salaries, Employer’s
allowances, contribution
benefits to pension
inkind  Share-based Discretionary scheme
Fees H% 2K compensation bonuses iS5 Total
Name of director EEps #e RENAE  RoME MERL 2EIfH fit

HK§000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
B¥Tn  BMTr  E%Tn  ERTn BETR A%Tx

Executive director HES
Mr. Ang Ah Lay HEELE - 2,553 499 - 11 3,163
Non-executive directors FATES
Mr. Lim Ee Seng ! iaR LA 338 - - - - 338
Dr. Han Cheng Fong® EEERT? 7 - 8 - - 15
Mr. Goh Yong Chian, Patrick REMEE 265 - 3 - - 268
Mr. Tang Kok Kai, Christopher ~ BSBIfE & 125 - - - - 125
Mr. Hwang Soo Chin ¢ ERELES 43 - - - - 43
Ms. Chong Siak Ching REFRT 175 - 344 - - 519
Mr. Yee Hsien Wee FERLE - - - - - -
(alternate to Ms. (REfARL
Chong Siak Ching) * LEfES)
Mr. Chia Nam Toon AL - - - - - -
(alternate to (REfAL
Ms. Chong Siak Ching) ® LEfEZ)S
Independent
non-executive directors BUFHES
Mr. Alan Howard Smith, J.P. Alan Howard 275 - 344 - - 619
Smith %4
(XF#1)
Mr. Kwong Che Keung, Gordon ~ BB&382E 4 275 - 344 - - 619
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung, J.P. R LA 215 - 338 - - 553
(XF#1)

Mr. Chong Kok Kong REKXLE 215 - 287 - - 502
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 11. EEREREBEAEZME @)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(@)  Director’s and senior management’s emoluments @ EFLGREBEABZHME

(continued)

o Appointed as Acting Chairman on 8 October 2007
and as Chairman on 21 July 2008

2 Resigned as Non-executive Director and Chairman
on 8 October 2007

¥ Appointed as Non-executive Director on 27 May
2008

4 Resigned as Alternate Director to Ms. Chong Siak
Ching on 12 August 2008

9 Appointed as Alternate Director to Ms. Chong Siak
Ching on 12 August 2008

(#&)

] R-ZEZLFTANBEE
EREFEIFE INR_ZFZF
NELRAZ+—BEZER
EE -

2 R-ZETLF+ANBEE
FATEERERE °

8 REZZEZNFRAA=-T+LH
BRERFERTES -

‘ REZZEZENFENA+-—RAE
EREFLRLZEEES -

o REZZEZENFENA+-—RE
ZERKREBREZEEE
8
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 11. EEREREEAEZHE @)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(@)  Director’s and senior management’s emoluments @ EEMeABTEABZHS
(continued) (#&)
Directors’ remuneration for the year ended 30 BE_FTETEFNLA=F+HL
September 2007, disclosed pursuant to the Listing FEEEEIMe BB LT
Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies A REAEQTHEN S 16155
Ordinance, is as follows: WERLAT ¢
Salaries, Employer's
allowances, contribution
benefits to pension
inkind  Share-based  Discretionary scheme
Fees %M compensation bonuses  RIAE5HE Total
Name of director E2it4 #e  REWNE RGOS BEED ZEXER ait

HK000  HK§OOO  HK§O0O  HKBO00  HKBO0O  HK$000
AT BNTr  BMTn BMTr EMTr BRTw

Executive director YES
Mr. Ang Ah Lay i3 - 2561 346 70 107 3,720
Non-executive directors FHUTES
Dr. Han Cheng Fong 2 EHgET? 338 - 51 - - 389
Mr. Goh Yong Chian, Patrick RESMITHE 235 - 20 - = 255
Mr. Lim Ee Seng el 183 - - - - 183
Mr. Tang Kok Kai, Christopher HEERE 10 - - - - 10
Ms. Chong Siak Ching REELT 155 - 201 - - 356
Ms. Wang Poey Foon, Angela® ~ THZ%£3 64 - 201 - - 265
M. Yee Hsien Wee RERRE - - - - - -
(alternate to (FEfaT
Ms. Chong Siak Ching) LEIES)
Independent
non-executive directors BUFHTES
Mr. Alan Howard Smith, J.P. Alan Howard Smith 72 245 = 201 - - 446
(X F4T)
Mr. Kwong Che Keung, Gordon ~~ BPaizt 4 245 - 201 - - 446
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung, J.P. SRR (AT 190 - 167 - - 357
Mr. Chong Kok Kong REDtA 190 - 55 - - 245
1 Includes bonus paid for 2006 L BREZIZETANFIMZELD -
2 Resigned as Non-executive Director and Chairman 2 REZZETEF+ANBHEEENITES
on 8 October 2007 RER -

E Resigned as Non-executive Director on 1 May 2007 e R-ZEE+FRH A —HETIERTES -
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b)  Five highest paid employees

The five highest paid employees in the Group for the
year include one director (2007: one) whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments payable to the remaining four (2007: four)
non—directors, highest paid employees during the year
are as follows:

11. EEREREBAEZHE &)

b) HEZRSFMAL

FAXEBERNABRSHMA
TEE—&(ZTTLF: —
2)EF  HMESD RN EXD
o HSpA(ZTZLF - [
H)REFHEEGFES) 2

Bie AT -
2008 2007
—BEN\E CZETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000

BT BT

Salaries, allowances, and benefits in kind ~ #& « 2B R EWFZE 3,810 4,552
Share-based compensation expenses A&7 B <6 A =2 514 194
Contributions to pension schemes RIRGTEIH TR 170 155

4,494 4,901

The number of non-director, highest paid employees

R T 2AR 2 FES

whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as S ALZEE -
follows:

Number of individuals

A
2008 2007

—EENE —EELF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = — ¥ 1,000,000 7T 2 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 /& 1,000,001 7T — &% 1,500,000 70 2 -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 &% 1,500,001 7 — /% 2,000,000 7o - 2

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The consolidated profit attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the parent for the year ended 30 September 2008, includes
a loss of HK$95,830,000 (2007: a profit of HK$4,774,000)
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company (Note 27).

12. BRAREBERESISEARGRET

HE_ZZN\FNLA=FTHLSF
B BRRtdRERFEEREA
FERNBEEFARQRPBR
R Z BB AB 95,830,000 (=
THF  m A ABE4,774,0007T)
(Mf5E27) ©
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 13. BAREEREREEAELMER

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT el
(@)  Basic earnings per share (a) BRELRZF
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based BREABN ZFTESEIIR
on the profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of BEAREBRESSA AR
the parent of HK$8,301,000 (2007: HK$147,164,000) 135 F 5 ¥ 8,301,000 L (=&
and the weighted average of 6,843,159,514 (2007: T F ¢ ¥ 147,164,000 7T)
6,842,477,580) ordinary shares in issue during the year. EFEARNDEITEBIRZ INEF
%16,843,159,514 % (= F
+4F : 6,842,477,580 %) Mat
% o
(o) Diluted earnings per share b) BREHERF

The calculation of diluted earnings per share amount
is based on the profit the year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the parent. The weighted average
number of ordinary shares used in the calculation is the
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, as
used in the basic earnings per share calculation and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed
to have been issued at no consideration on the deemed
exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares into ordinary shares.

BREERNIRIBEFAR AT
AR R RA ARMEREN G
8 o BIEERE 2 LA IE
FHBAFACETERBEE
(AT ESRERBNE) -

AN B G B RETT
FRER A TARMBRRE AT
REBTZ L BRIMEFIR -



Frasers Property (China) Limited E¥ftthE (FE) BR A7

Annual Report 07/08 4E %5

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 ¥ R P

Year ended 30 September 2008 HE—ZZENFHA=FTHILFE

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

(continued)

(b)

Diluted earnings per share (continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share

are based on:

Earnings

Profit attributable to ordinary
equityholders of the parent,
used in the basic earnings
per share calculation

Shares

Weighted average number
of ordinary shares in
issue during the year
used in the basic earnings
per share calculation

Effect of dilution — weighted
average number
of ordinary shares
Share options

BF

SENCIES e T
BEAEGEN
AT EER
EARER

g
RERNDEITZ
Bl
FHEAA
ATEER
EARER

BEYE LRk
IEFE
B

13.

BAREBRERFEABGER

R @)

(o) ERESERAMN %)

BEREAREEERMN ZFE

THER:

2008 2007
—EENE —TELF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BB
8,301 147,164

Number of shares

e 4

2008 2007
—EENF “ETLF
6,843,159,514 6,842,477,580
13,478,253 9,601,624
6,856,637,767 6,852,079,204
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - WERRE
Group REH
Buildings in Mainland
China under Fumiture ~ Leasehold
medium-term lease Motor Office and improvements Construction in
fIRBEREST  vehicles  equipment fixtures B9 progress Total

THRNET RE OBOERE GHRRE  MRRE HEIR 4%
HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
BT At BT T BT A BT

At1 October 2006 H-EE~EA-R

Cost i 5,560 2410 7976 1967 478 18412 40008
Accumulated depreciaion ZiEE (1.884) (1534 (4,709 (080) (£,052) - (13,159
Net camying amount KA 3676 876 3273 37 26 18412 2850
Year ended 30 September 2007; EECTSYENACTALLER

Qpening net caying amount NEENETA-H 3676 876 3273 37 26 18412 2,830
at 1 October 200 b e

Exchange reaignment EiRg - £ 161 2 - 1047 1207
Adtions 5 - - 575 1484 24 BT 234370
Disposals ik - - (59%) 3 - - (631)
Transfer toinvestment properies (Note 15) S5 & M ([ 15 - - - - - (48P (660
Depreciaion (Note ] HE(Es) (30) (289) (%7) (269 274) - (2,099
Closing et carying amount ZERENA=TH 3376 6% 2464 1500 216 4816 13,007
at 30 September 2007 ZWR RHFE

130 September 2007 R-BECENAZTA

Cost i 5560 2517 7,068 279 454 4816 2729
Accumulated depreciation ZiEifE 2,184 (1882 (£604) (1,200 t32) - (14197
Closing net caying amount HN-ERtENA=TA 3376 635 2464 1590 216 4816 13007
t 30 September 2007 COREE S

Year ended 30 September 2008; BE-TE\ENACTAILLER

Qpening net camying amount R-ERLETA-H 3376 6% 2,464 1590 216 4816 13,07
at 1 Qctober 2007 LENERSE

Exchange realgnment Effd - 5 25 162 - 494 )
Adtions S - - 0 [t - 1302 2764
Disposals e (3,326) - (626) - - - (4,15
Transfer toinvestment properies (Note 15) SRR AN (K3t 15) - - - - - (3,370) (5,370
Depreciaion (Note 8] fE(iits) (50) (1) (763) (842) ] - (1,954
Impaiment (Note 5 REES) - - - - - (1,249 (1,24
Cosing net caming amourt RZFTNFAAZTR - ® 1620 1,632 129 - 4063
t 30 September 2008 CHREE S

At 30 September 2008 R-EFN\ENA=TR

Cost i - 272 6,668 3672 1,781 1,242 16,085
Accumulated depreciationandimpaiment ~ £i547E - (2,240) 484) (2,040) (1652 (1,24 (12022)

Net camying amount FEAE - 482 1820 1632 129 - 4,083
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Net carrying amount at 1 October
Wz - M= MRE
(e 14)

Transfer from property, plant
and equipment (Note 14)

Transfer from land use rights (Note 16) (¢ 1= 30 {55 FE A2 85 8% (I =% 16)

Additions B1b7N

Disposal HE

Exchange realignment bE 5, R

Changes in fair values (Note 5) NAEZEE (FizE5)

Net carrying amount at 30 September LA =+ H ZREFE

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on
30 September 2008 by an independent, professionally
qualified valuer, DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, at
HK$1,054,454,000 on an open market, existing use
basis. Fair value losses of HK$31,153,000 (2007: gains of
HK$104,972,000) were charged/credited to the consolidated
income statement. The investment properties are leased to
third parties under operating leases, further summary details of
which are included in note 35 (b)(ii) to the financial statements.

The Group’s investment properties are situated outside Hong
Kong and are held under the medium lease terms (over 10 to
50 years).

At 30 September 2008, certain investment properties of the
Group were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group (Note 34).

As at 30 September 2008, the application for property title
deeds of certain investment properties situated in Mainland
China held under medium term leases with a carrying amount
of HK$657,751,000 (2007: HK$609,824,000) was still in
progress.

R+ A—HZEREHE

15. BEYHE
2008 2007
—EENEF —ETTEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT
979,336 729,588
5,370 246,690
- 71,122
1,445 L
- (206,511)
99,456 33,475
(31,153) 104,972
1,054,454 979,336

BUBXECERGEMBERT
ERARR_ZEZENFNLA=T
BREARMBRRAITEAEE
BAEBZEEMEBBERBE
1,054,454,0007C ° %7 & W 2= & K
BB GTAEAARBEREEE
31,158,000 c( Z T £ F : Wz
A7 H104,972,00070) © E M E
BELLEHNBETFE=H  HiE
—SHBZHEHE RN BRER T
35(b)(ii) °

AEBZEEMEUREBRIN
WRIEF HIHE (B10E505F)#FH -

RZZETZNFLA=1THE  A&E
ZETHRD TRER  UESH
REBRDZRITRE (HFE34)

R=ZZEZENFNLA=+H B&F
BEMEMRP R A E R EP
HEEFRECEEFERBE
657,751,000 L ( — 2T+ 4 : B
609,824,0007T ) * E#EITHFEE
ME B -
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16.

17.

18.

LAND USE RIGHTS

The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid

operating lease payments and their net book values are

analysed as follows:

Outside Hong Kong, held on:

LLeases with term of 10 to 50 years

Net carrying amount at 1 October
Amortisation of prepaid operating
lease payments (Note 8)
Disposal
Transfer to investment
properties (Note 15)

Net carrying amount
at 30 September

(VRS

102 50 F 284

R+ A—RZEREFE
T Hbfe RS (M 8)

HE&
EEREREYE (HE15)

MNARA=+RZEREH#E

PREPAYMENT FOR ACQUISITION OF LAND USE

RIGHTS

At 30 September 2008, the Group secured a prime

commercial development site located at Shenyang’s

Qingnianda Jie at a public land auction and entered into a

binding auction confirmation letter with the Shenyang Land

Reserve Centre on 2 July 2008 with the deposit paid on
acquisition of land use right of RMB368,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$419,749,000). It is unsecured and does not bear any

interest.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

At 30 September 2008, the properties held for sale of the
Group are situated at Hong Kong and the Mainland China.

16.

17.

18.

T fE A

78 3 -+ b 05 A 2 4 35 SR TR
wRBY RS EEREFES N
m -

REBIATEARES

2008 2007
—2RN\F —TTLA
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETRE  EETR
- 1,036

2008 2007
—2RN\E —TTLH
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETRE  EETR
1,036 73,849
(15) (1,691)

(1,021) =
- (71,122)

- 1,036

W B £ 1t P 2 TRAY RROR

RZZEZNFNA=+H A£H
RARTHHES EREBUNES
EFAECESHMELRME I
RZEZENFLA-—HEZEGM LT
MEEZXSPOITZLENRNIAE
BREHY BENKRELEREZ
1€ #4 A R ¥ 368,000,000 7t (255
S #419,749,0007T ) © :ZZ A A
IR R AR B

FHEMRE
R-ZZEZNFHLA=1TH A&H

FELEZWELMRBEMPEAKR

BE o
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19. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 19. BEHYE
Group l
2008 2007
—BENE —pRoal e
HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BETT

Land use rights (Note) s A (P ) 1,038,105 903,386

Development costs FEER AR 1,167,525 734,810

2,205,630 1,638,196
Note: The Group’ s interests in land use rights represent prepaid MRE © AEER T Az s iETE A
operating lease payments. All lands are situated outside KERA 2l o A TR
Hong Kong and held under leases of over 50 years. BRI PTRIE A BB50EF -

The movements of properties under development are as follows: BRAMYEESHIT -

2008 2007

—EBEN\E —EFTLF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BETT

Net carrying amount R+ A—BZEREFE 1,638,196 1,496,232
as at 1 October

Additions NN 463,410 108,794

Sold during the year FARAEHE - (25,865)

Amortisation of land use {8 F#E 2 # 85 (F15E8) (15,490) (13,803)
rights (Note 8)

Exchange realignment PE 3 119,514 72,838

Net carrying amount RNAA=+THZEREFE 2,205,630 1,638,196
as at 30 September

Properties under development included interest expenses of ERAVEBRERAFEANESE

HK$72,944,000 (2007: HK$49,273,000) that was incurred MEEELZMNERILN B

and capitalised during the year. 72,944,000 ( Z T T+ F : B

49,273,000 7T) °
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20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Unlisted shares, at cost 3 EMRZD » AR
Due from subsidiaries JE UL BB A &) 2 kT8

Less: provision for W ORERE R

impairment losses

Due to subsidiaries FESH T B A 5] 2 5k1E

The amounts due from and to subsidiaries included in
the Company’s current assets and current liabilities of
HK$1,466,084,000 (2007: HK$1,159,559,000) and
HK$78,262,000 (2007: HK$72,524,000) respectively, are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed term of repayment.
The carrying amounts of these amounts due from and to
subsidiaries approximate to their fair values.

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries of the Group

20.

SG] PNGPE £
2008 2007
—EENF —BRLE
HK$’000 HK$’000

BET T BETT

3,598,121 3,340,214

3,598,121 3,340,214
(2,132,037)  (2,180,655)

1,466,084 1,159,559
(78,262) (72,524)
1,387,822 1,087,085

WAERRGBREBEERTBEE
Z W FEAS B B A Al 2 FRIE 5 Bl
575 #51,466,084,000 L ( — T Z +
& B #1,159,5659,000 7T ) M A& #&
78,262,000 L (=TT F : B
72,524,0007T) - HAAEEKR - TFt
ERERTEERH ZERKKLE
NHBARZREBZEEABEREAEAR
REEE -

RZEZENFANA=ZTRHZEAEE

at 30 September 2008: FEMBRRIZEBERNT -
Nominal value of
Place of issued and fully
incorporation/ paid-up capital/ Percentage
registration  registered capital of equity interest
and operations BRTR attributable to
Name of subsidiaries it A BRER/ the Company Principal activities
WE AR AR BRREXBH aMERZEE FAREGRER D TEXH
2008 2007
“BEN\E —TELE
Directly held by the Company:
BEBALARE -
Vision Century Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Secretarial and
Secretaries Limited B BT nominge services
BANERRAR WERREARY
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Nominal value of

Frasers Property (China) Limited E¥ftthE (FEl) BR A7
Annual Report 07/08 %

20. BRI Z#ER (&)

Place of issued and fully
incorporation/ paid-up capital/ Percentage
registration  registered capital of equity interest
and operations BRTR attributable to

Name of subsidiaries Rl A BRER/ the Company Principal activities
WEA R AR BRREXBH TMERZEE FAREERER D TEXHK

2008 2007

“BENE e 3

Indlirectly held by the Company:

EEBLL A

Beijing Gang Lu Real Estate Mainland China 1US$30,000,000 100 100  Property development in
Development Co., Ltd. (j (iv) lETYNG 30,000,000%7T Mainland China

ERBIRE AR hEAENEER
BRAF() (v)

Beijing Vision Century Mainland China US$150,000 100 100 Property management in
Property Management lEyN 150,000 7T Mainland China
Co., Ltd. () (i) HEARENXER

EREAT = ER
BRAF() (i)

Limbo Enterprises Limited British Virgin USS$1 100 100 Property holding

Islands 1%L MEER
RERTHS

Shanghai Zhong Jun Mainland China RMB200,000,000 52.04 52.04  Property development in
Real Estate Development lETYNG ARHE Mainland China
Co., Ltd. () (v) () 200,000,0007C PRAENRER

BRI E
HEERAR() (v) )

Shenyang Frasers Real Estate Mainland China US$49,990,000 100 100  Property development in
Development Co. Ltd. (j (i) lETYNG 49,990,000%7T Mainland China

B EREHEREERAR ) hEAENEER

Vision Century Hong Kong HK$500,000 100 100  Management consultancy
Administration Limited B8 7% 500,0007C services

B RE

Vision Century Property British Virgin USS$1 100 100 Property consultancy

Consultancy Services Ltd Islands 17T services
RERTHS EBRRE
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20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Nominal value of

20. RMIBRATZH#ER &)

Place of issued and fully
incorporation/ paid-up capital/ Percentage
registration  registered capital of equity interest
and operations BRTR attributable to

Name of subsidiaries FMRL/ BrER/ the Company Principal activities
WE AR A BLRER B TMER 2 EfE EAREGRER D TEXH

2008 2007

—BEN\E 3

Vision Century Property Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Property management
Management Limited B BT NEER

BATEERARAR

Vision Century Real Estate Mainland China US$10,000,000 100 100  Property development in
Development (Dalian) e 10,000,000 %7T Mainland China
Co., Ltd. () (i) REAENEER

RUAT AR 2 (Ki)

BBEDF() )

Vision Huaging (Beijing) Mainland China  RMB130,000,000 60 60 Business park
Development Co. lETyNG ARE development and
Ltd. (i) (i) 130,000,0007T investment in

BATER (bR EX Mainland China
BRERDA() (i) PEAERREER

kRE

Vision Property Management Mainland China US$65,000 100 100  Property management in
(Dalian) Co., Ltd. {j (i) PRI 65,000% T Mainland China

BHRER (KE) REREMEER
BBEDF() i)

Vision (Shenzhen) Business Mainland China  RMB100,000,000 95 9 Business park
Park Co., Ltd. (j (i) lETYNG ARE development and

RYB R E 100,000,007 investment in
BRAR () (i) Mainland China

PEAERREER

KA
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 20.

Notes:

(i) Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or other member
firm of the Ernst & Young global network

(if) Wholly foreign-owned enterprises
(i)  Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprises
(iv)  Sino-foreign cooperative joint venture enterprises

(v) Subsequent to the balance sheet date, on 23 October
2008, the registered capital of the subsidiary was approved
to increase to RMB223,000,000. Please refer to note 39 to
the financial statement for details.

The directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the
particulars of all subsidiaries would be of excessive length
and therefore, the above list contains only the particulars of
subsidiaries which principally affected the results for the year
or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 21.
Group

Share of net assets at 1 October R+A—BEEEEFE
Share of losses of an associate (5 —E B & A B 2 518

Share of net assets at 30 September RNA=+HEMEEFE

NG e D)
MIEE

()  FERZKHEMTKBEIRK B MR
%

(i) HIEBELE
(i) FHIEERELE
(iv) FINAIEREDRE

vy ®EBR®R R=-FTZTN\FTH
“t+=A WEBRRZEMER
B #ik 3% i = A K% 223,000,000
TC ° FFIE R 2 M RAMEESQ

E=ZRR 8- DOEBZHER
AEHRMERZREREIEETT
£ WERFRIAF B EHAE
BRAFEXREREZZERNBEK
AEBEEFEIER O ZHBR

al o
R A = 2 s
A%HE
2008 2007
—2B\E —TTtE
HK$’000 HK$'000

BETT BETT

54 156
(49) (102)
5 54
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21. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 21. REE QT 2 (%)

Details of the associate at 30 September 2008 are as follows: R-TETZNFEALA=THZHER

AIERAT
Percentage
of equity interest
Place of Particulars attributable to
incorporation/ of issued the Group
registration shares held AEBEERAESZE DL
Name MR, BEORT 2008 2007 Principal activity
AEER B R z#E  —EENF —TTAF TEXK
Poly-Strong Development Hong Kong 2 Ordinary shares 50 50 Dormant
Limited EA&  of HK$1 each TEex
PRERBR A 2kgREE
BRI EBR
Note: The Group’s recognised share of losses of the associate for Mizk : ANEEREEERD(GZEM &

the current year is HK$49,000 (2007: HK$102,000). NTEZ 1B AB 49,000 7T (=

TTLF : B 102,0007T) °

22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 22, THHESHEE

Group Company
REH AATF
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENFE ZTTLF ZEEN\F —ITTLHF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT BT T BT
Carrying amount at 1 October B+ A—H 14,787 15,287 5,965 5,965
ZBRHEE

Disposal HE - (500) - -
14,787 14,787 5,965 5,965
Less: Current portion W mENEL - = - =
Non-current portion IERENE D 14,787 14,787 5,965 5,965
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AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued) 22, TMHHESHEE &)
Available-for-sale financial assets represent the following: AIEHESREERET&HE :
Group Company
REH PN
2008 2007 2008 2007
—ZEEN\F ZZTtF ZEENF ZTTLF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT IT BT T BT T
Unlisted equity investments LR 14,787 14,787 5,965 5,965
"E
During the year, no gain or loss of the Group’s available-for- FA-AEEWLSEAHEERE
sale investment has been recognised directly in equity (2007: 2k EERN T EEER(Z
Nil). TTHFE) o
At 30 September 2008, the Group’s unlisted equity RZZEZENFNLA=TH ' A5H
investments with a carrying amount of HK$14,787,000 (2007: BREEAB 14,787,000 T (= F=F
HK$14,787,000) were stated at cost less impairment. +F : B¥ 14,787,000 T) 2 FE LT
BaHZEERKNANEREERER
FIAR o
TRADE RECEIVABLES 23. EWEZRX

Trade receivables represent consideration in respect of sold
properties and rental receivables. Consideration in respect of
sold properties is payable by the purchasers pursuant to the
terms of the sale and purchase agreements. Rental receivables
are billed in advance and are payable by tenants upon receipts
of billings within an average credit terms of one month.

Under normal circumstances, the Group does not grant credit
terms to its customers. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables and to minimise credit
risk. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by management.
In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s
trade receivables relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk.
Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing and unsecured.

BRESERECENEIRER
ERES BEEMELREHEKE
B GRAE XN - BUYHE
HEERE  BERKIRER
X FHEEMA—EA -

ELESHBRAT  AfRETERAEET
FREGEES AKEHREDZ
JE MR IR AR+ B AR HE ) e B EORUE
EERR - BEMFRKEREEE
EEMRT - ERXERRRARAE
BzRKESERSERAETRET
Fr#AEEYEBBEETZEER
Rk - EUE 5 RN A IEH B R E
ERZF0R -
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23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23.

(@  Anaged analysis of the trade receivables as at the balance
sheet date, based on payment due date, is as follows:

Within 1 month —REAR

1 to 2 months —Z=_{d@A
2 to 3 months —E=={@A
Over 3 months =@AKE

(b) An aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not
considered to be impaired is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired I 381 B sk i (&
Less than 1 month past due  #EADHR—EA A

2 to 3 months past due BN =ZE=EAHA
More than 3 months past due  #1HI =1 A A -

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral; or other credit enhancements over these balances.

The carrying amounts of the trade receivables approximate to
their fair values.

EWE SRR (@)

(@ RHEEH  BRESERIRE
HAZREDITT :

Group

ArEE
2008 2007
—EENF —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT

6,557 5,001
- 60

- 411

61 73
6,618 5,545

b) TEASDREZEKE SRR
ZHREB DT -

Group

AEME
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT

6,557 5,001
- 471

61 73
6,618 5,545

BHMEARRE 2 B W ER R R AN R
BRUAGRSEZIZEZBILIRTFE
W REBEBELR  ANEEERY
BEARY - HERNER ST 2H
Yol - 28 Bt % 5 A e 1 HORUE B
o AEELEZFEHRTE TN
ERmIEMEERZIEAR °

EWESERZEEEREARE
BE
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24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

24, BMARE - BRERHEMEBRK

RECEIVABLES
Group Company
AEE RAF]
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE ZTTEF ZTT)\F ZTTLHF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT BB T BT
Other receivables E fth EUGR 104,043 88,128 - —
Less: Impairment allowance B H ARG (88,652) (76,759) - -
on other receivables T8 2 BB
Other receivables, net HAbEWGK - 15,391 11,369 - =
FEE
Deposits e 1,420 259,799 - =
Prepayments TEfSFRIA 3,141 23,269 196 213
Others Eith 3,359 4,691 187 249
23,311 299,128 383 462

(@ None of the deposits is either past due or impaired. The
provision for impairment relates to other receivables.
The movements in provision for impairment of other

receivables are as follows:

At 1 October R+ HA—H
Impaimment alowance B &R 2B (HI#E6)

recognised (Note 6)

Amount written off & F U BB il 85 2 FRIE
as uncollectible

Exchange realignment [ i, 558

At 30 September  RJLA=+H

Other receivables represent land premium rebate
receivable in relation to the disposal of interest in the
development site in Beijing. At 30 September 2008,
a land premium rebate receivable of HK$76,662,000
was still outstanding. The amount was fully provided
for in prior year (Note 6) to reflect any uncertainty and
unforeseen circumstances which might adversely impact
on its recoverability in the last financial year.

(a)

BEe X KRB ITARRE - BE
BmREbRERER - 2
R RIBZ RERFE 2

LU

Group

A
2008 2007
—EENF —ETAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT
76,759 -
- 76,759
(98) =
11,991 =
88,652 76,759

Hib W ERRUER BT Sl mE
R s 2 B i RS
BER -R_ZEZNFHLA=T
H - 7 #76,662,0007T 2 & U
T RS RS ARUWE o 2K
HE R AFREUEL B E (M
6) * LAREE E—BIBREFE 2 (A
TR EATER 2 B0 © %5
1B S E AT U B |4 =k & 3 AR TR

B/ 4ER
a7 X
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24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b) The aged analysis of the other receivables that are not

considered to be impaired is as follows:

Less than 1 month past due
2 to 3 months past due
More than 3 months past due

enhancement over these balances.

The carrying amounts of the prepayments, deposits and other
receivables approximate to their fair values.

25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at bank and on hand

Structured deposits
Short-term bank deposits

Less: Restricted cash

24, BRFE - RERHMOEKER®)
(o) KR AEREZH M EWKER
KRR -
Group
rEEHE
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
BHRAIR—EAR 3,759 574
BN —E=EAR 80 -
BEA={EH A 11,552 10,795
15,391 11,369
Other receivables that were past due but not impaired £ %60 B8 4 R (B 2 b B U BR
relate to a number of independent customers that have AL ZEAEBERIFER
a good track record with the Group. Based on past BB YRFER - RER
experience, the directors of the Company are of the A% BRNEEERUES
opinion that no provision for impairment allowance is AEBB RERTDER AT E2H
necessary in respect of these balances as there has WE - AR RRIESRABE
not been a significant change in credit quality and the HZERMRIELRERE - K
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The SERVERZEERTREM
Group does not hold any collateral of other credit Bk MR EA 2 HE -
TEBRK ~ RS K E fib & U BR Sk 2
HARERE °
25, HeRBELEEEH
Group Company
rEH ¥ NN
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE —TTLF ZBEN\FE —TTLHF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ST BET T BT
RITHREER R 85,020 75,240 5,177 648
FHRE
REEMTER 227,990 - - -
2RI TER 283,420 524,010 21,121 280,448
596,430 599,250 26,298 281,096
o XRHIRES (334) (7,644) - =
596,096 591,606 26,298 281,096
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25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

(@)

As at 30 September 2008, structured deposit of
HK$227,990,000 has a maturity date of 1 December
2008. Full principal amount of HK$227,990,000 will be
repaid on maturity date. Interest income is charged at
4.0% or 2.5% per annum, subject to the three-month
USD London InterBank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) of the
fifth working days before maturity in accordance with the
terms of the contract entered into with a bank.

The carrying amount of the structured deposit
approximates to its fair value. The fair value of the above
structured time deposit is determined based on the
quoted price from a bank.

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and six
months depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
short term time deposit rates. The bank balances are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history
of default. The carrying amounts of the cash and cash
equivalents and the restricted cash approximate to their
fair values.

At the balance sheet date, the cash and cash
equivalents of Group denominated in RMB amounted to
HK$569,201,000 (2007: HK$309,298,000). The RMB
is not freely convertible into other currencies. However,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group
is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

25. RERBALEHEER &)

(a)

R=ZFEZENFHLA=+RH B
¥ 227,990,000 T Z & 117
HZEHEA—EENE+ =
A—HB 28X RBE
227,990,000 T R EI AR &
R o FI B WA THIRE FI X
4.0% 3% 2.5% B EY + AR 3% Bd —
FRITEI A 2 & Bk - 1R E
HAaEREIER 2 =A%
T BIRITRIZERF S EGTE o

RBUETRZRAEERERAR
BERE - A ELEBIEEREFR
ZRARAETIRE—RIRITHT R
ZEBRMEE -

RITRERRBITEAFRA X
ZFBNEGFE - T RF
RZERPRAE B—RERX
BANE  BFAKERE
BRBREFEME - LIZEH
ZREMEREFRAEGE - R
THRENOTHEENELER
EERREZBRITER - BER
AeSEBREZRAERER
RERE -

NEER  RNEBEUARKS
TZBREeRkREZEBEESHE
A1 569,201,000 L ( —EF
+4F ¢ ## 309,298,000 7T) °
ARBIY TEEHEBRK AR
b EHE - AT - AR IR A B KR
SNEBIBIEFIMAIE - SE K
NETEHRTE  AEE]AEA
BAFETINE X B IRIT - 1
ARB MK BEMERE
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26. ISSUED CAPITAL

(@  Authorised and issued capital

26. BETRAE

(@ JAERBEITRA

were exercised at the subscription prices ranging from
HK$0.1343 to HK$0.1670 per share, resulting in the issue
of 894,000 shares of HK10 cents each for a total cash
consideration of HK$143,000.

2008 2007
—EENF —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT
Authorised: EERRA
10,000,000,000 ordinary 10,000,000,000 f& &I E1E 1,000,000 1,000,000
shares of HK10 cents each 1078l 2 E R
2008 2007
—EENE —“ETF
Number of Number of
shares HK$’000 shares HK$’000
&R BETR B E BETT
Issued and fully paid: EETRAR
Ordinary shares of HK10  &RE(E 107511l
cents each ZEBK
Balance at 1 October R+A—Rz&#% 6,842,477,580 684,248 6,842,477,580 684,248
Issue of shares on 1T{ERIRREIAZ TR (D 894,000 89 = -
exercise of options
Balance at 30 September  MNLA=+HZ##  6,843,371,580 684,337 6,842,477,580 684,248
Note: BEE
The subscription rights attaching to 894,000 share options Bt 78 894,000 17 RBARRE AT =2 1 - &

B 75 #0.1343 T & B ¥50.1670 7T
ZRBEITEERERE - FET
894,000 & & AR EIME 10 Il 2 A& 1%
HER &R (ERBEE 143,000 7T °
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26. ISSUED CAPITAL (continueq)

(®)

Share option scheme

The share option scheme (the "Share Option Scheme”)
became effective on 20 May 2003 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years
from that date. The maximum number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted must not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme.
The offer of a grant may be accepted upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 per acceptance.
The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the Board, and commences on a
specified date and ends on a date which is not later than
10 years from the date of grant of the share options.
The exercise price will be determined by the Board,
but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
prices of the Company’s shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheet of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date of grant,
which must be a trading day; (i) the average closing
prices of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (jii) the
nominal value of the Company’s share.

26. BEITHRARE)

()

AR El

AR 8 ([ RAAERT &) R

—EE=FF A+ HBEEN

BRIESITEIEIEE] - RRHE
T EZBERTERNEMR -
A e I 2 SRR 2 BB D
HE LRABBBAARRNEK
MR AEEIE BB BITRA
2 10% o B AT AFEE P
EEAINRBXBREBE
170 e B 2RI 21TFEH
HMESZEET BIETAHA
MERIEZBTIEBBRER
MRiEE BB TF - RREZ
THEEHESSET - HZRE
BARERTISER Z&S
& (VEREORBREER (BER
R5H)ARRRRDNE B A
RSB BRRAR ([BAFT]) %
2 AR FTHI 2 Wi fE s (ii)
EEFLABNAAR SR
RARO R R H 2 B3R
RS2 FHUWTE ¢ 3K (ii) A
RARM 2 HIE °
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26. ISSUED CAPITAL (Continued)
(b)  Share option scheme (Continued)

Movements in the number of share options outstanding

26. BEETERAR®)
(o) RREE (2)

RARTTER R BB R E

and their related weighted average exercise prices are as ZHEBINEFEGTEEZED
follows: MR :
2008 2007
—EEZNF ZETEE
Average Average
exercise price exercise price
in HK$ per in HK$ per
share Number of share Number of
#KRY¥Y  share options ST share options
TRE(E%R) AREHE TEECEET) RIRHERR
Balance at 1 October R+A—Rz&& 0.1537 51,733,107 0.1479 36,204,392
Granted Bt 0.3370 16,800,000 0.1670 15,750,000
Exercised Gy 0.1596 (894,000) - -
Lapsed e 0.2382 (574,626) 0.1580 (221,285)
Balance at 30 September RAA=t+Rz&R 0.1988 67,064,481 0.1537 51,733,107

Out of the 67,064,481 (2007: 51,733,107) outstanding
options 37,069,431 (2007: 21,573,942) were
exercisable.

1£67,064,48113 (ZTZLF :
51,733,107 1) M R1T{E 2 R
B ke 37,069,431 17 (= &
T+ 4F 21,573,942 ) R
RER[HATE o
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Share option scheme (Continued)
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26. BEITHRARE)

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have
the following expiry date and exercise prices:

Exercise period

Date of grant (Note)
eG=l 1710 EA
(P=E)

31/12/2003 31/12/2004 -
30/12/2013

31/12/2004 31/12/2005 -
30/12/2014

30/12/2005 30/12/2006 -
29/12/2015

13/11/2006 13/11/2007 -
12/11/2016

09/11/2007 09/11/2008 -
08/11/2017

2008

S L%

Exercise price

HK$

T8

BT

0.1580

0.1547

0.1343

0.1670

0.3370

Number of
share options

ARERE

9,965,658

11,474,439

13,773,647

15,300,737

16,550,000

67,064,481

AR &l

(#&)

RERHARITE 2 RIAEZE

HB K17

BT :

2007

—TTLE

Exercise price
HK$

17128
BT

0.1580

0.1547

0.1343

0.1670

Number of
share options
RES R

10,616,284

11,649,999

13,816,824

15,750,000

51,733,107

131



132

Frasers Property (China) Limited £¥iithE (FHEl) BRA T
Annual Report 07/08 FF %

Notes to the Financial Statements

BT 3R AR B 5E

Year ended 30 September 2008 HE —ZZ N\FNA=+HILFE

26.

ISSUED CAPITAL (Continued)

(b)

Share option scheme (Continued)

Notes:

The vesting schedule for share options granted on 31
December 2003 is in the following manner:

(0)

26. BEETERAR®)

R ERTE (')

i -

R-EE=F+-A=+—AEH
2RI BB ¢

Percentage of shares
over which a share
option is exercisable

P R 2 B AR
Vesting Schedule BRI ATERREZB DL
%
Before the first anniversary of B BE 2 — AR Nil
the date of grant i
On or after the first but before B BEz—BAFHZ 25
the second anniversary of 1B EF R
the date of grant
On or after the second but R BB ZMEFRZ 25
before the third anniversary BB =EER
of the date of grant
On or after the third but before REBHz=AFsz 25
the fourth anniversary of %18 U EF Bl
the date of grant
On or after the fourth anniversary BBz MEFR % 25

of the date of grant

The vesting schedule for share options granted after 31
December 2003 is in the following manner:

R-EE=F+-A=+—A%SE
2 BB BT

Percentage of shares
over which a share
option is exercisable

BT & 2 AR 4
Vesting Schedule SRR A{TERREZBED L
%
Before the first anniversary of i BBz —AERT Nil
the date of grant i
On or after the first but before i BBz —AF sk 40
the second anniversary of Z B EFRT
the date of grant
On or after the second but before F BB A E = 30
the third anniversary of 2B B=FEFa
the date of grant
On or after the third anniversary BREBHz=A% 30

of the date of grant A3
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26. ISSUED CAPITAL (continueq)

(®)

Share option scheme (Continued)

In relation to the share options, if the eligible participant,
during any of the periods specified above, exercises
that share options for such number of shares which, in
aggregate, represents less than the number of shares
for which the eligible participant may exercise in respect
of such period, the balance of the shares comprised in
that share option for which the eligible participant could
have exercised (but did not exercise) in that period shall
be carried forward and added to the number of shares
which the eligible participant may exercise in the next
succeeding period or periods.

The valuation for share options was based on the
binomial lattice model, the inputs to that model,
including the volatility of the Company’s share price of
80% per annum, nil expected dividend yield, rate of
leaving services of 3.2% per annum and grantees will
exercise their options if the share price is at least 240%
higher than the exercise price under the requirements
of HKFRS 2. Share-based compensation expenses
are charged to the consolidated income statement of
HK$2,862,000 (2007: HK$1,505,000) (Note 8).

26. BEITHRARE)

(b)

R AERTE (')

RARREMS - WEEIRSH
EH R L E 8 E BRI
RZEROHEBE 2 RRES H
PREERSEELZEAR
TERREMS R 2RHE

B AlEER2EERZIAR
Tﬁ@ﬂwﬁﬁﬁzﬁukﬁ
BRZIBRNDEE EZREEE R
MAGERDEER T — (@
BEAR AT REREMS R 2
RHEEH -

R HE TR T — 1A S B AR A
HEITEE - TRBEE S E®R
HREAFE2R 2T - MER
EMABREARRKRELRRES
FRB80% - HHRB WX A
0%  BBEAEF32% ' &
MR E &L R RITEE240%
RFEEASITHEELRRE - IR
15 B & 5 2 78 # 2,862,000 7T
—TT4F : B¥ 1,505,000
L) BET ARG E W R (&
8) o
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27. RESERVES 27. f##E
Group REH
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements AREBERFREBEZEBRERREFEE R
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the F—FEZEYHINNYEREE
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 56 of the 56 B 2 iReEmEEE o

financial statements.

Company ¥iN/NE]

Capital Share-based

Share redemption compensation
premium  Contributed reserves reserve Accumulated
account surplus BX g losses Total
R EE BB RER#E WemE REEE 2

HK$000 ~ HK$000  HK$000  HKSOO0  HK$000  HK$000
ARTT  BRTR ANt A%Tr BRTR ERTR

At 1 October 2006 R=ZZ E+A—H 41,763 642,378 196 2,504 (8,437) 678,404
Share-based compensation  f&f3 Bi&F %2

expenses (Note 8) (Mizk8) - - - 1,505 - 1,505
Profit for the year FERHA - - - - 4774 4774
At 30 September 2007 R=EE+ENA=TH 41,763 642,378 196 4,009 (3,663) 684,683
At 1 October 2007, BREXMRR -T2+ E

as per above +A—-Bz&sH 41,763 642,378 196 4,009 (3,663) 684,683
Issue of share on TERRE

exercise of options ki 53 - - - - 53
Share-based compensation {7 &4

expenses (Note 8) A% (fEs) - - - 2,862 - 2,862
Loss for the year FEEE - - - - (95,830) (95,830)

At 30 September 2008 RZEE\ENA=TH 41,816 642,378 196 6,871 (99,493) 591,768
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TRADE PAYABLES 28. ENESER
At the balance sheet date, the ageing analysis of the trade REER  BNEZEFBEZRE
payables, based on the invoice date, is as follows: BE I ZBRERDATLOR ¢
Group
REE
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
Within 3 months =EAZA 5,781 20,245
3 months to 12 months =Z+—{&A 1,051 11,643
Over 1 year —FLE 8,755 9,745
15,587 41,633
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally EREZERDITTEBE@ATR T
settled within an average term of one month. The carrying H—EANEER - BNEZERZ
amounts of the trade payables approximate to their fair values. BREESEEQAARBERE -

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

29. HMENREREIRRE

Group Company
rEE AT
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE ZETF ZBEENG ZTTLHF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT BT BT
(Restated)
(&%)
Receipt in advances TEYFRIE 1,245 4,232 - =
Sales deposits received BYSHERS 99,848 5,093 - -
Accrued expenses FEETIRE A 199,935 126,350 1,721 3,287
Deferred income BEIEWA 34,491 35,021 - —
Others Eith 34,272 23,045 4,368 2,340
369,791 193,741 6,089 5,627
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30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 30. MTESRITER
Group REE
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate Maturity 2008 rate Maturity 2007
BERAI= AWM —TENE EEFI= e —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Current RE
Secured (Note) A ## ([iz) 7.8% 2008-09 7,410 - - -
Unsecured ] 6.2%-7.7% 2008-09 188,092  5.4%-7.8% 2008 944,291
195,502 944,291
Non-current FRE
Secured (Note) B (H3E) 7.7%-7.8% 2009-13 247,940  6.8%-6.9% 2009-13 231,526
Unsecured Eisiini 5.4%-8.3% 2009-10 1,062,423 7.8% 2009 15,504
1,310,363 247,030
1,505,865 1,191,321

Note: Certain bank borrowings of the Group were secured by cash
deposits of a fellow subsidiary of HK$141,354,000 (2007:
HK$128,166,000).

Company
Effective
interest
rate
BRFIR
Non-current FERE

Unsecured R 5.5%

Mz AEEETROTERBARZR
MEBARZRESGFEREE
141,354,000 L (=T L5 : B
# 128,166,000 7t ) fEH I ©

Maturity 2008 2007
A —BENF —_TTLF
HK$000  HK$'000

BETRT ABTT

2010 138,274 =
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INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

The maturity dates of bank borrowings are as follows:

Within one year or on demand

In the second year
In the third to fifth years

30. MEHRITER @)

RITERZHHBEMT ¢
Group Company
REE b /N
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE —_TTF ZBEN\E —TTLHF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BEET T P T IT BT T BT
—FELAREL 195,502 944,291 - =
FEEREEE

FE 949,229 22,222 - =
E=FEFERF 361,134 224,808 138,274 =
1,505,865 1,191,321 138,274 =

The carrying amounts of bank borrowings are denominated in

the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollar
Renminbi
United States dollar

RITERZEEETIATIIE ST

1 :
Group Company
REE ¥ /N

2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE —TT+F ZBENE —TTLHF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T PR T IT BT T BT T
P 138,274 - 138,274 =
AR 1,086,844 1,034,285 - =
ET 280,747 157,036 - =
1,505,865 1,191,321 138,274 =

All interest-bearing bank borrowings of the Group and the

Company are at floating rates. The carrying amounts of the

Group’s and the Company’s current and non-current interest-

bearing bank borrowings approximate to their fair values.

AEBEARBZAANBRITE
RDBFBMEFTE - AEERA
RAEAIRBLRIERBMERITERZ
FREEREARERS -
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30.

31.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities:

LTS
—R— 4 P

Floating rate
— available within one year

DUE FROM/(TO) THE IMMEDIATE HOLDING
COMPANY AND DUE TO A FELLOW SUBSIDIARY

Since FCL (China) Pte. Ltd. (“FCL China”) acquired an
additional equity interest directly in the Company in May
2007, it became the immediate holding company of the
Company. As at 30 September 2008, the Group had
outstanding receivables from and payables to its immediate
holding company of HK$71,443,000 and HK$91,291,000
(2007: HK$71,443,000 and HK$91,216,000) respectively.
The receivables and payables are unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed term of receipt or repayment. The carrying
amounts of its current accounts approximate to their fair
values. The outstanding receivables represented the estimated
tax liabilities to be incurred by Supreme Asia Investments
Limited (“SAI”) in relation to its business activities prior to
the Group’s completion of the acquisition of interest in SAI
in September 2005 which should be compensated to the
Company when SAI paid any tax that is limited to the amount
of HK$71,443,000. The payables comprised debt owing by
SAl to FCL China existing at the completion of acquisition of
interest in SAl in September 2005.

As at 30 September 2008, the amount due to a fellow
subsidiary was a fund advance received by the Group for
temporary working capital financing purpose which was
unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed term of repayment.
The carrying amount approximates to its fair value.

30. MEHRITER @)

31.

AREBZ RIEDRITRERZNT

2008 2007
—®EN\F  —EELF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BET R
671,400 422,854
671,400 422,854

FEW, (FEf) EEIEIR D B 2 FIE
RENEZKE QR 2HE

B FCL (China) Pte. Ltd. ([FCL
China ) R=ZZEZE+FH A E#E T
BBARRE 2 ZARIKERNK A
AARZHEEBEERAR - RZET
NENA=+H AEERKKE
NEEEERARZAR KT 2Z
FKIAD Bl &7 ¥ 71,443,000 7T KB
91,291,000 (= £ 4 : &
¥ 71,443,000 7T & % % 91,216,000
TL) ° %5 FE UL SR IE K FE S R IE B
BEEAE - TEE R E E YE sk
BEHR - EARER 2REERE
HARBERSE - ZF R 2 BKRK
T8 5% Supreme Asia Investments
Limited ([SAIDH®AEER=_ZZF
FF N AT U EESAIE & AT E H
XBEBMG TREZMGFHIESR
& o BESAIZXNEMFIE B2
BTARQA - MAESBEIRNSE
#71,443,0007T - ZEEITHIER
BERZZTRFNATZKBESAIZ
25 HE SAl 45K FCL China Z (&7 °

RZZETZNFNLA=1TH " ENE
A B AR ZRER/NE BT R
REBEARMBMzER - HAEE
B AHEREBRTEERPR - %
FRHEEAAARERS -
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32. DEFERRED TAX 32. EEFIE
Deferred tax liabilities FRERIEEE

The movements of deferred tax liabilities during the year are as

AERELEVBRE I EEHMNT

follows:
Group
XEE
Revaluation
of
Tax losses properties Total
BEER EfUE e
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
BT BT BETrx
At 30 September 2006 RZZERENA=TH (14,345) 181,856 167,511
Deferred tax charged/(credited) RRER R/ (115%) (10,134) 6,940 (3,194)
to the income statement (Note 9) ZIERERTE (HzE 9 )
At 30 September 2007 RZZE+ENA=TH (04,4790 188,796 164,317
Deferred tax charged/(credited) RRERREA/ (F18%) 2 EEFH B (906)  (40,766)  (41,672)
to the income statement, including (BEXTECEMEHEDTE
the tax credit effect of change in Z BB % A 29,096,000 7T)
PRC'’s corporate income tax rate (Fz£9)
of HK$29,996,000 (Note 9)
Exchange realignment [ 5 R - 306 306
At 30 September 2008 —ZT\FAA=TH (25,385) 148,336 122,951
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32.

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax assets

The movements of deferred tax assets during the year are as

follows:

At 30 September 2006
Deferred tax credited/(charged)

to the income statement (Note 9)
Exchange realignment

At 30 September 2007

Deferred tax credited/(charged)
to the income statement, including
the tax debit effect of change in PRC’s
corporate income tax rate
of HK$4,945,000 (Note 9)

Exchange realignment

At 30 September 2008

RFEAENAZLE
RIESRAI,/(GHA)
ZEREWRE)
£

RZEELFNA=TH
RIEERAME/ (FIA) ZBEEHE
(REZREICEMEHEDYE
L TIB T A8 4,945,000 7T)

(Hx9)

el

figek

[

=2

L

R-ZZ\FAA=TH

32. EEFIE )

BRI R E

REFBERERBREEZZEBHNT

Group
r5H
Impairment
allowance on
receivables
and others
ERERK
Taxloss EftiEKFE Total
BEEE ZRERE am
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  AETr BB
6,632 - 6,632
(1,478) 16,854 15,376
33 626 659
5,187 17,480 22,667
3,086 (4,086) (1,000)
160 1,798 1,958
8,433 15,192 23,625




32.

Frasers Property (China) Limited E¥ftthE (FEl) BR A7

Annual Report 07/08 %

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 ¥ R P

Year ended 30 September 2008 HE=ZEZE/\FNA=THIEFE

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Rules and Regulations
of the PRC, taxation for PRC subsidiaries is charged at the
appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant
cities in the PRC, which range between 15% to 33% (2007:
15% to 33%). During the fifth session of 10th National
People’s Congress, which was concluded on 16 March
2007, the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law introduces a
wide range of changes which include, but are not limited to,
the unification of the income tax rate for domestic-invested
and foreign-invested enterprise at 25%. Thereafter, the State
Council passed Circular 39 on 26 December 2007, to clarify
detail arrangements for enterprises enjoying preferential tax
treatments. Accordingly, a net deferred tax credit adjustment
of HK$25,051,000 was recorded during the year for this
unification of PRC income tax rate effective from 1 January
2008.

The Group has unrecognised tax losses of HK$1,122,900,000
(2007: HK$1,153,900,000) arising in Hong Kong that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose, and tax
losses arising in Mainland China of HK$18,605,000 (2007:
HK$1,394,000) which will expire within five years. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as
they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for
some time and it is not considered probable that taxable profits
will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

At the balance sheet date, if the profit-making subsidiaries in
the PRC declared the dividends to distribute the profit from
1 January 2008 onwards, the withholding dividend tax at 5%
amounting to HK$953,000 (2007: Nil) would be resulted.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

The Company had no deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities as at 30 September 2008 (2007: Nil).

32. EEFIE )

RIEP BB EMERRARER -
F B B B R A 2 B TR H AR B AR B 4K
MEAZBITRERAR BENTF
15% E33% ( — T T+ F : 15% %
33%) - E_EZE+F=F+/,NBFH
EMt+EEZBEARAASHPHE
R TS RORE M ZIBIEET
BREEAMERREARNE RINE B
Frig i i B 45 — 8 /25% ° 1k
BRZEELF+_A=+"8
Bl 7% B 35 fh 55 395 M AN - R AR =
EUBEEFEBLENRRETH -
At B=ZTZENF—F—HRE
W) R B 1 ZE RS TR R 4t — HARE
RIS EETIEE AR FELABE
25,051,000 T °

REBRBEBEENRERTIE
1878 %1,122,900,000 (=& F
+ 4 : B #1,153,900,0007T ) * A]
ERAEHEZEESAEBNARA
BRERFR G RABEKEEL
2 HIEE BB 18,605,000 (= F
T 4F ¥ 1,394,00070) R
FREH ARECHREBEBEETR
BEZEHNMNBARNANES AR
R KAIBE R E A FER B A LAK
HZEMIBEE  WRABZEER
HRBEZECHBEAE -

NEEBR - WERPBEERMNZ
TN/ 75_77A$ A—A#
TR BIADIRE R IR 5% T3
h@mﬁ%mﬁgwpmnx:gg
+FE) o

ViN/NETEo ) Wil e N ok e = )
FTiSHiia R -

RZZEZENFILA=+H  A&H
TEEEHRAEEENELEHEAERRE
—EELE M) o
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33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 30 September 2008, the Company issued guarantees to
the extent of HK$199,491,000 (2007: HK$201,552,000) of
which HK$188,092,000 (2007: HK$201,552,000) was utilised
in respect of bank borrowings granted to its subsidiaries.

Management anticipates that no material liabilities will arise
from the above bank and other guarantees which arose in the
ordinary course of business.

34. PLEDGE OF ASSETS
At 30 September 2008, the Group’s bank borrowings were

secured by certain investment properties with a carrying value
of HK$147,054,000 (2007: HK$136,435,000).

35. COMMITMENTS
(@  Capital commitments
Capital expenditure in respect of properties under

development at the balance sheet date but not yet
incurred is as follows:

Contracted but not provided for 2 2 #1{E KRB 5
Authorised but not contracted for B IFHEEARZRL

At the balance sheet date, the Company had no capital
commitments (2007: Nil).

33.

34.

35.

HREE

R=ZZZNFNLAE=Z+HB ' AQF
Fr{EH 2 &R & ¥ 199,491,000
T(ZEZ+F : A%201,552,000
) EARBETHBARZRITE
KE B A B 188,092,000t ( = F
TH4F : B%201,552,0007T) °

EEERY LARNBEXRBBIE
REEZRITEREMERETES
REFMEAREE °

EEEH

RZZEZENFNALA=+TH K&
ERITERDUER@ES K
147,054,000 C(Z T L F : B
136,435,0007T) 2 & TR E W ELE
B o

ZS

(@) BEAHEIE

REER FRERTYEE
DAREEZEARFEANT

Group

A EE
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT

100,440 211,805
4,652,331 3,025,932
4,752,771 3,237,737

REER - AR E I EE A&
B(CZETLF &) -
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(o)  Operating lease commitments

(i)

35. EiE#E)

(b) =L FEIE

As lessee () EBHF
The Group and the Company leases certain of its REE RAR RIRRE &
properties under operating lease arrangements. MARHEE HAETY
Leases for the properties are negotiated for terms ¥ EABERA—F
ranging from one to two years. EMFHTE -
The Group and the Company had future aggregate NE B AR AR E A
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable BSH LA M AR KK
operating leases falling due as follows: T2 =EHS I RBEE
LU
Group Company
REH b YN
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE ZZTTLFE CZEBEENF CZTTLF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETR FEEET T BETT BT T
Within one year —&FR 3,369 3,197 3,147 1,895
Inthe second to fith BB -ZFHFNR 1,638 4,720 1,537 =
years, inclusive
5,007 7,917 4,684 1,895
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35. COMMITMENTS (continued) 35. &iE#E)

(b)  Operating lease commitments (Continued)

(i)

AS lessor

The Group leases its investment properties
under operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from one to six years.
The terms of the lease generally also require the
tenants to pay security deposits and provide for
periodic rent adjustments according to the then
prevailing market conditions.

The Group has future minimum rental receivables
under non-cancellable operating leases with its

(b) REMHAEE R

(i)

1ERHHE

AEERBEEEHOL
B HHETZREY
X HUERS—FEAN
FHINE - MAOIGERTS
REFXBEPLEBNRES
KRERRTFERTIZIR
EmMELESFRE -

AEBEREEEBERRT
Z NAIBEH T E 2 KRR A

tenants falling due as follows: EERBESFIBIT
Group
REE
2008 2007
—EENEF —ETHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Within one year —FNR 120,348 58,118
In the second to fifth E_ZEFERFN 223,228 87,695
years, inclusive
Over five years hF1% 8,220 11,646
351,796 157,459

At the balance sheet date, the Company had no
operating lease arrangement as lessor (2007: Nil).

WEER - ARFWELE
%Hﬁﬁj\ﬂii«%fﬁi’ﬁﬁé
ui)z —= 7t£E EE)
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The ultimate holding company of the Group is Fraser and

Neave, Limited (“F&N”), a company incorporated in Singapore.

The following is a summary of significant related party

transactions carried out in the normal course of the Group’s

business during the year.

(@) Related party transactions

Management consultancy fees
Penalty interest income

Property management services fees
Property management fees
Professional fees

Compensation income

Internal audit fees

Quantity surveying service fees

EIEEME
WA
MEEEREE
MEERE
BEE
TN
NEBELE
TR ERGE

36. FAEALRS
INER B v &I A E) & Fraser and
Neave, Limited ([F&N1) - Ti—KR%
g ML 2 AF]
TXAERFANEREEREXKB
BPETZCERNAEATRG 2H
=,
(@ BMEALRS
Amount paid/
(received)
21,/ (BR)
;IE
Note 2008 2007
i —EENF —ETAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
(Restated)
(&%)
(i 7,000 4,134
(ii) (925) (857)
(ii) 131 99
(iv) 448 544
v) 236 1,140
(vi) (530) (630)
(vii) 508 263
- 81

6,868 4,874
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@)

Related party transactions (Continued)

U

On 29 October 2007, Shanghai Zhong Jun Real
Estate Development Co., Ltd. (“Zhong Jun”) and
Shanghai Frasers Management Consultancy Co.
Ltd. (“SFMC”) entered into a consultancy services
agreement to, inter alia, renew the period for the
consultancy services provided by SFMC to Zhong
Jun under the Corporate Management Services
Agreement dated 14 December 2006 for 12
months from 1 October 2007 to 30 September
2008 for a total consultancy services fee of
RMB6,400,000 (equivalent to HK$7,273,000).

Zhong Jun is beneficially owned as to 52.04% by
the Company, 42.96% by FCL (China) Pte. Ltd.
(“FCL China”), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary
of F&N which is a substantial shareholder of
the Company, and 5% by an independent third
party. SFMC is 100% beneficially owned by
F&N. Accordingly, SFMC is a connected person
of the Company under the Listing Rules. The
entering into the Corporate Management Services
Agreement constitutes a continuing connected
transaction of the Company.

During the year, a fee for consultancy services of
RMB6,400,000 (approximately HK$7,000,000)
was charged to the Company.

36. BEALRF (&)

(a)

FiEANLTRS (&)

(i)

R=ZZZT+F+A=t+Ah
H- - LEhEEHERE
BRAR(hEE]) & E
BEMERBERAEGRA
AI([ EBER ) RIS EE
AR e - AP BiEst
EBEMREET B R
ZEERFTZA+HIA
21X E IR AR % 1w [
i B2 42 it 2 BE S AR 75 4
H+—@lA(B=2Z
F+A—HREZE_ZTZT
NEAA=+HIL) B
FRBERELEAAR
* 6,400,000 7T ( %9 75 #&
7,273,0007T) °

REEDRIAARR « ARQ
AIEZRERAN ZEEE
ZHBARFCL (China)
Pte. Ltd. ([FCL Chinal)
kR—Z2BIAIFE=HEH
A HEER 252.04%
42.96% 5% ° L F 2
MEBEFANZEEZHE -
At - RELETRA - E
BEMARRRZEEA
T o BT EE IR
FBEBNARR 2 —IEFBE
HERS -

FR - AREEZTEERE
A7 E AR 6,400,000 7T
(#4978 % 7,000,000 7T ) °
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@) Related party transactions (Continued)

(i)

On 14 December 2006, FCL China, Power
Source Holdings Limited (“Power Source”) and the
Company entered into a Supplemental Deed to the
Principal Agreement dated 14 July 2005 whereby
the parties agreed to impose an interest obligation
on FCL China when Supreme Asia Investments
Limited (“SAI”) delays the transfer of the remaining
5% interest in Zhong Jun within a prescribed
period (“Transfer”). Pursuant to the Supplemental
Deed, FCL China shall pay interest to Power
Source until the Transfer has taken place pursuant
to the Principal Agreement dated 14 July 2005.

In a letter of agreement dated 29 October 2007
in relation to the Principal Agreement dated 14
July 2005, as amended by the Supplemental
Deed dated 14 December 2006, FCL China
acknowledged and confirmed that FCL China
will continue to pay interest to Power Source as
provided for the Principal Agreement.

Power Source is an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company. As FCL China is an
indirect wholly owned subsidiary of F&N which is
a substantial shareholder of the Company, FCL
China is therefore a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules. The entering
into the Supplemental Deed and the payment
of penalty interest to Power Source constitutes
a continuing connected transaction of the
Company.

During the year, a penalty interest of approximately
HK$925,000 were charged to FCL China.

36. BEALIRS #)
(a) BIEALTRS @)

iy RZZEERFTZATH
H 'FCL China * Power
Source Holdings Limited
([Power Sourcel) &7
ARV AZZZE
AFEEA+IUB 2R
ZHEARE Bl &
=1 #)77 [Fl & & Supreme
Asia Investments Limited
([SAITEfE EHFEEE
EMEE HeRo% e ([ 8
# B FCL ChinaZB&
BEYHABZEME - BRI
73L& - FCL ChinaZB M)
Power Source X F|E&H
ZREABHAST AT
+ A+ B 2 4% oK
HEAL -

REHA-_ZZ+F1+ A
—t+NhBE(GABEBEBEHA
—ETRFLA+MAEZ
B WEAPA=E
ERF+—_A+MBZHE
FTEEIEFTIEE] ) 2 1 5% X
{#F » FCL China #17& 3

2 FCL China #5444
1R IE M8 1 = PR B S A A

BT Power Source °

Power Source J3AA A
—EEEEEWBAR -
B FCL China JiA2A
AR AR FAN 2 B2
BEHTB AR - BURK LT
# 8] * FCL China &4 X
RIZBEAL - STV
i K B Power Source
S EILERER A AR 2 —

AN EMmFCL China
B &l B 478 # 925,000
7_E o
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@)

Related party transactions (Continued)

(i)

On 20 February 2008, Vision Huaging (Beijing)
Development Co., Ltd. (“Vision Huaqing”)
and Beijing Huaging Yong Sheng Restaurant
Management Company Limited (“Huaging Yong
Sheng”) entered into a Staff Canteen Management
Service Agreement whereby Huaqging Yong
Sheng will operate the staff canteen in Sohu.com
Internet Plaza (“SIP”) during the period from 1
October 2007 to 30 September 2008 and pay a
monthly management fee of RMB10,000 to Vision
Huaqing.

Vision Huaging is 60% owned by the Company.
Huaging Yong Sheng is a wholly owned subsidiary
of Tsinghua Science Park Co., Ltd. (“TSP”),
which is a 40% substantial shareholder of Vision
Huaging. Accordingly, Huaging Yong Sheng is
a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules. The entering into the Staff Canteen
Management Service Agreement constitutes
a continuing connected transaction of the
Company.

During the year, fees of RMB120,000
(approximately HK$131,000) was charged to
Huaqing Yong Sheng.

36. BEALRF (&)

(a)

FiEANLTRS (&)

(i)

RZEZENFZHAZ+
B - BFES(ER)E
EURRAR AR ([EFE
& 1) B R EE K E B K
EEARETAR(ER
XEDFIZETIHREER
AR pak o #RuL - FEF K
AR =TT LF+A—
BEZZZTN\FhLA=1
H HA R A S BN S A=
([BMARE]BEIRE -
I 1A B BT X E R A
£ AR 10,0007T °

B ETHAARRESR
B0%En © ZE)E KA R
EEFEBIORERZ
FERFRCAEZERR DA
RAsl([Real) 2EER
A - Bt - BIE LM
B - #EEXERARRARZ
BEAT - ST ETHRE
EEREHEEXAA A
Z—IERBERERS -

FR - EEKEESIANZ
B A AR 120,000
(#7515 131,0007T) ©
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@ Related party transactions (Continued)

(iv)

On 11 April 2008, Vision Huaging and THSP
Property Management Corp. (“THSP”) entered into
a Property Management Contract whereby Vision
Huaging appointed THSP as the property manager
to provide property management services for
SIP during the period from 1 October 2007 to 30
September 2008 at a fee which is calculated as to
8% of the total monthly gross management fees
received from the tenants of SIP.

Vision Huaqing is 60% owned by the Company.
THSP is 80% beneficially owned by TSP, which is
a 40% substantial shareholder of Vision Huaging.
Accordingly, THSP is a connected person of
the Company under the Listing Rules. The
entering into the Property Management Contract
constitutes a continuing connected transaction of
the Company.

During the year, fees of RMB410,000 (approximately
HK$448,000) were charged to Vision Huaging.

36. BEAXLRF (&)
(@) BEBEBALRS @)

vy R-ZEZENFHAT+—
B BOTEBEIRES
MEEEFREMERAA
(TEBME DRI — Y
EEEEK - Bk - B
EECREERVERY
EEEAN R-_TZTLF
THA—RE-ZZN\FA
A=+ HHRREMAE
RHEMEEERY - BF
RERIMAEHRBR < 2
EEHEZ8% °

R ESHARAESR
60%Ez ° FEB VIR
BRI EBA0%ER 2T
ERRRBAEZEE80%
i o FEtt - ARIE TR
A - EFEWMERARABZ
BEAT o IV YIEER
BHBRARR Z —EHE
BRERS -

FR - BFESEINZ
Z A A AR 410,000
(#4075 448,000 7T) °
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@)

Related party transactions (Continued)

W)

The Company has from time to time engaged
Angela Wang & Co (“AW&Co”), a firm of solicitors
in Hong Kong, as the legal advisers to the
Company in various matters including corporate,
litigation and attestation of documents. There has
been no written retained agreement or exclusivity
of service agreement between the Company and
AW&Co. Terms of service have been negotiated
on a case-to-case basis and the Directors believe
that the services have been provided on normal
commercial terms which are not more favourable
to AW&Co than those to any other independent
third parties.

Ms. Wang Poey Foon, Angela, was a non-executive
director of the Company until she resigned on
1 May 2007. During the period of directorship, she
was the senior partner of AW& Co. Accordingly,
AW&Co is a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.25, it was considered that
the various transactions handled by AW&Co for
the Company should be aggregated and treated
as if they were one transaction for the purpose of
Charter 14A of the Listing Rules.

During the year, fees totalling HK$236,000 were
charged to the Company by AW&Co.

36. BEALRF (&)

(a)

FiEANLTRS (&)

v)

ARRTRHRE—REE
AN E P ISR E
BREERRBERE
A BLEREAR - FFad Rk
XHERERNZEZTESE
HREHEER - ARFET
1R 25 R B S 75 P X A )
EH R EHHEIBRIRG
ek o RIS ISR DI E R
FHREREE EEMEE
% E R TR — R 1%
R - 48T EEZRED
ETERT 2 AR B A
R EA B =75 AR
AR -

ESP5S gt W EAYNCTE S
HITES R-FTL
FAA—B&E- T8
BULTHREEFHRR/E
BEEMEBHRZERE
BA - Hit - BRI ETR
A FRFRMEBAR
ARRRZBAENL »

RI% E AR B S8 14A.25
G FESEMEBHA
KRARREZZERS
JEIZR ETRAIE 14AE
REREE-—RSEEM
AEMEHE -

FR - EESEEEEAT
AR B Z RIEES
5t /A7B# 236,000 7T ©
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@ Related party transactions (Continued)

(vi)

On 14 July 2005, Power Source, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and CPL (China) Pte.
Ltd. (now known as FCL China), the immediate
holding company of the Company, have entered
into a sale and purchase agreement (“Principal
Agreement”) in relation to the acquisition of
54.78% interest in the shares of and debt owing
by SAl. Pursuant to the disclosure letter dated 14
July 2005 enclosed to the Principal Agreement, a
sum of approximately RMB111.95 million would
be payable by Zhong Jun, an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, for the increase
in the Gross Floor Area (GFA) of the Song Jiang
property from 628,246 square meters to 837,291
square meters. The total payment including
the land premium and consultancy fee for the
increase in the GFA of the Song Jiang property
eventually increased to RMB179.69 million. Due
to RMB67.74 million in excess of the estimated
payment of RMB111.95 million that is a breach
of warranty under the Principal Agreement,
the Company has received a compensation
of RMB37.11 million (being the difference of
RMB67.74 million at 54.78%) which is recorded as
deferred income in balance sheet.

During the year, a compensation income of
HK$530,000 was released from the deferred
income.

36. BEAXLRF (&)
(@) BEBEBALRS @)

vy RZZEZERFLATHE
B AQrZ2EKBA
AlPower Sourcefl &
NElBEEER AR CPL
(China) Pte.Ltd. GRFH
FCL China) IS B & #
==l  NEEH
BEESAl ZRH REFTR
BTG 2 54.78% RS ©
BIE A Z=RE M 2 B E
A_ETRAFLtA+HE
B HEERMGE  AQF
ZHEEEZENE R A
MEE AT MEZ B
€ H [ & B628,246F
75 oK 3 jn £837,291 F
TR ZREHOAR
#111,950,000 7T ° A
VL W) 3 48 18 TE E AR 38 0
mFER 2 HIB 45 (B
Tihe REME) KKIE
= AR ¥ 179,690,000
TC o BRLEEETRIBA
R#¥ 111,950,000 7T
A R # 67,740,000 7T °
BREHHEEB T 2R
RAFIEWEABARE
37,110,000 7c Z fHE S -
BN=fEARK 67,740,000
JL254.78% * Ji{EBIE
BRAGTABERER -

FA - GEEWARED 2
il B U A 75 78 530,000
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@)  Related party transactions (Continued)

(vii)

Internal audit fee payable to F&N for internal audit
services rendered during the year. The services
rendered were charged by F&N on a cost basis.

According to Rule 14A.31(8) of the Listing Rules,
the sharing of administrative services between
a listed issuer and a connected person on a
cost basis will be exempt from all the reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements. The cost of the services
must be identifiable and allocated to the parties
involved on a fair and equitable basis.

During the year, a total fee of HK$508,000 was
charged to the Company.

(o)  Other transactions with related parties

A fellow subsidiary of the Group has guaranteed certain

bank loans made to the Company by cash deposits as

further detailed in note 30 to the financial statements.

(a)

36. BEALRF (&)

FiEANLTRS (&)

(vii)

BRF ARz AEE
AR A T FAN Z A
MERE o FANIRARE
ERLFTiR Mt R E
F e

BIE LR AISE 14A.31(8)
- £ LT AR E
AT Z BIER AT EHEA
TR SRR R T
B3R DA MBS AR
BEZ T - RBKAE
RN EYE T AR A
L YB-X

FER - AREIEL 28
% Ff & 78 1 508,000 7T °
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36. BEAXLRF (&)

() MU (FEf)BEALTZREA

2008 2007
“EENE ZTELHE

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT

Due from the immediate holding company ~ FEM EHEERL A Al 2 708 71,443 71,443
Due to the immediate holding company R EZERARZFE (91,291) (91,216)
Due to a fellow subsidiary EN—HRZNBARZHE (220,107) =
Due to AW&Co FER EEE SRR SIS 2 2R - (89)
Due to SFMC & BB E M2 508 - 12)

The balances with related companies listed above
are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms

LERE R R A HREEE T
FHE - PAR I B B E & SR

of repayment. The carrying amount of their balances HEERZEREEEE AR EE
approximate to their fair values. e
(d) Compensation of key management personnel of the d) AEEEZEZEEEAEZHM

Group

Short-term employee benefits %2 #{E & & F|

BB R

Post-employment benefits
Share-based payments

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in

note 11 to the financial statement.

VAR AR S (S R0

2008 2007
it A -
HK$°000 HK$000
BT AETT
10,881 12,007

28 -

2,862 1,467
13,771 13,474

ERESHE cE—THEBH
R RAMEE A -
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 37. RERZ S z2EmIEA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial ZENEeMITEREER ZREE
instruments as at balance sheet date are as follows: R
Group: =E
Financial assets EREE
2008 2007
—EENE “ET4E
Available- Avallable-
for-sale for-sale
Loans and financial Loans and financial
receivables assets Total  receivables assets Total
BFR G Bak  WEHE

BN EeREE it YRR 2RRE st
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000 ~ HK$000  HKS000  HK$000
BRTR  A®Tn  AMTr  BETR  ERTR ARTR

Available-for-sale financial AT EEEIERE - 14,787 14,787 - 14,787 14,787
assets

Trade receivables EWEFER 6,618 - 6,618 5,545 = 5,545

Financial assets included in 51| \BAFUR « 124 R /e 20,170 - 20,170 275859 - 275859
prepayments, deposits  WHEREREE
and other receivables

Due from the immediate  FEMRE B IEIRA A2 5UR 71,443 - 71,443 71,443 - 71,443
holding company

Restricted cash ZRHRE 334 - 334 7,644 = 7,644

Cash and cash equivalents 54 RE&EEEE 506,096 - 596,006 591,606 - 591,606

694,661 14,787 709,448 952,097 14,787 966,884
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Continued) 37. RERESZEMIA®)
Group: (Continued) S INE )
Financial liabilities TRBE

2008 2007

“ZEN\F ZTTHE

Financial Financial

liabilities at liabilities at

amortised amortised

cost cost

s v e i

B E KAGE

AR ZEBaE

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT

Trade payables ERE SRR 15,587 41,633

Financial liabilities included in BIAEL T FRIE 169,856 67,391

other payables and accruals [EHREEN AR
Dug to the immediate ENEREERARZTE 91,201 91,216
holding company

Due to a fellow subsidiary ERRZNEARZHE 220,107 =

Interest-bearing bank borrowings [t 85 TE 1,505,865 1,191,321

2,002,706 1,391,561
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Continued) 37. BEHE s z2ERMIE @)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial ZENEeMITEREER ZREE
instruments as at balance sheet date are as follows: R
Company: NG
Financial assets EREE
2008 2007
—EENE “ET4E
Available- Avallable-
for-sale for-sale
Loans and financial Loans and financial
receivables assets Total  receivables assets Total
Rk UHHEE BRkE  fHE

BRER  eREE fact WER  SRAE st
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000 ~ HK$000  HKS000  HK$000
BRTR  E®Tn  AMTR  BETR  ERTR ARTR

Avallable-for-sale AfREeREE - 5,965 5,965 - 5,965 5,965
financial Assets

Financial assets included in  FIAERFUE « & REf 187 - 187 249 - 249
prepayments, deposits KGR SREE

and other receivables

Due from subsidiaries FEUIRB AR 2 F0E 3,598,121 - 3598121 3340214 - 3340214
Cash and cash equivalents 54 RRE&EEEE 26,208 - 26,298 281,006 - 281,096

3,624,606 5965 3,630,571 3,621,569 5965 3,627,524
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Continued) 37. BERE S Z2ERMIE &)
Company: (Continued) /NCI NG -))
Financial liabilities TRBE

2008 2007

—EENF —TTLF

Financial Financial

liabilities at liabilities at

amortised amortised

cost cost

R bive i

RAGE PG
ZEMAE ZEHAR
HK$’000 HK$000
BT T BETIT

Financial liabilities P L FE A< 5RTE K FE 4,368 2,340
included in other FHERIBEREREE
payables and accruals
Due to subsidiaries FETBT B A B2 58 78,262 72,524
Interest-bearing M BERITE K 138,274 -

bank borrowings

220,904 74,864
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise interest
bearing bank borrowings and cash and short term deposits.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise
finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables
and trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.
It is, and has been throughout the year under review, the
Group’s policy that no trading in financial instruments shall be
undertaken.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s policies for managing each of these
risks are summarised below. The Group’s accounting policies
in relation to derivatives are set out in note 2.4 to the financial
statements.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank borrowings
with a floating interest rate. The interest rates and terms of
repayment of the Group’s borrowings are disclosed in note
30 to the financial statements. The Group’s policy is to obtain
the most favourable interest rates available for its borrowings.
Management monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure should the need
arise.

38.

MHREBEERREREE

AEECZTESRTABEHER
TEFRARBERERER - %F
TRMITAZTERNIAAEHEE
BRE-AKBREZREGBERE
EREE WEKESRRXMEN
BIEFK DERERBEERL - K
SEBRRRRERRNEBEFER—
ETEEEMEMEMIA -

FEASESRMTAECZFERRA
FMERRK - INERK  FERBRK
TBECER AEBRERESE
BRR BREMAT - "REEF
BOTAETAZ 5 BURE N M Bk
=MTEE2.4 ©

IESN
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a

reasonably possible change in interest rates at the balance

sheet date, with all other variables held constant, of the

Group’s profit before tax (through the impact on floating rate

borrowings) and the Group’s and the Company’s equity.

2008
HKD
RMB
HKD
RMB

2007
HKD
RMB
HKD
RMB

Increase/
(decrease)

in basis
points
B
LR/ (TFB)

200
200
(200)
(200)

200
200
(200)
(200)

Group

rEE
Increase/
(decrease)
in profit
before tax
BRBLADERIZ
&,/ (A5)
HK$°000
BETT

(805)
(6,276)
805
6,276

(1,087)
(5,295)
1,087
5,295

38. MEEABRER®)
AESENAE D)
TRINRERMEEMEBTEZIE
AT REEANUNEGENEZE S
REBBRBADAN (B BEIZEERK
ZHEB)ARRNEBEARGERZ
BRRE DT -
Company
b YN
Increase/

Increase/ (decrease) Increase/

(decrease) in basis (decrease)

in equity points in equity

BHZ B Rz

#m/Bd) £/ (TR  #m/(8)

HK$°000 HK$’000

BRI BT

(805) 200 (805)

(5,147) - -

805 (200) 805

5,147 - -

(1,087) 200 (891)

(4,122) - -

1,087 (200) 891

4,122 - -
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

As most of the operating income of the Group’s business is in
RMB and assets held and all of the borrowings of the Group
are substantially denominated in RMB, the Group is exposed
to foreign currency risk. During the year, RMB appreciated
against HKD. Management believes such an appreciation
will not have any negative effect on the Group. Hence, the
Group has not adopted any financial instruments for hedging
purposes. However, the Group will constantly assess the
foreign exchange risk it encounters so as to immediately
decide the hedging policy required against the possible foreign
exchange risk that may arise.

On 30 September 2008, assuming that against HKD, RMB
appreciated by 5% and all other factors remained unchanged,
then change in equity of the Group would have increased by
HK$131,328,000 (2007: HK$99,928,000).

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties except for the sales of properties, for which no
credit is given to the customers. It is the Group’s policy that
all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to
credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure
to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise other receivables, an amount due from the
immediate holding company, cash and cash equivalents arises
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

38.

BEERER &)

SINEEE L

HRANEERE 2 ABDE2RA
NARBE  AREAEEFRFE
ERMABEREIEUNARBIE
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SEBFEFHEBR ZIHMNER
@+ LA BB R TE AT 7R 2 0 OB 2R
A AT RE 3 A 2 SNE LR

RZFBZENFLA=TH  RR

RERBETIIES%  MEMERD
REFETE - AIAKE 2 EZEIK

N A7 131,328,000 L (ZEE
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EER R
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral. There are
no significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group as
the Group’s trade receivables are widely dispersed in different
sectors.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade receivables, prepayments,
deposits and other receivables are disclosed in notes 23 and
24 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a
recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity
of both its financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade
receivables) and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of interest
bearing bank borrowings. The Group will consistently
maintain a prudent financing policy and ensure that it
maintains sufficient cash and credit lines to meet its liquidity
requirements. Through maintaining a reasonable proportion
in its assets and liabilities structure, the Group is able to meet
its ongoing financial needs. 13% (2007: 79%) of the Group’s
debts, which comprise interest bearing bank borrowings
would mature in less than one year as at 30 September 2008
based on the carrying value of borrowings reflected in the
financial statements.

38.

KRR EE )

=ERR @)
HRAEEEHEENEREERYT
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e ARAEEZERE SRR
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EEREESERAR - FRIAZ
BESRTARSREE (flan g
BIRF)ZEPAURKEXK 2
FEErIReRE °

AEE 2 BEASAFERKSRT
ERRBES BT HEEE 2
T AEBBFEEFERE R
BHE WHEREEFEAVZES
REEREE BURRRDESE
ko BRBBEERBBEREBEZS
Bhhl AEEEMAREEFEY
BHEK - REBEMBREARE 2 G
REEE R=_TETEN\FLA=T
B H13%(ZZTZLF : 79%) Z
AEEBEE(BEMNBRITER) B
RER—F 2 BIE R EIE o

161



162 Frasers Property (China) Limited E¥itthZE (R El) R A T
Annual Report 07/08 “F %

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 ¥ 2% P

Year ended 30 September 2008 HE —ZZ N\FNA=+HILFE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 38. WMEMERE &)

POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) MENE 2B )
The maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s REEH  BBETHOREIBNR
financial liabilities as at the balance sheet date, based on the S AEBEeRBEZIABE
contracted undiscounted payments, was as follows: WA
Group REH
2008
“2ENE
3to
Less than 12 months 1to5 Over
Ondemand 3months =fARZ years 5years Total
REX SRZ@R t-fA -ZEF EENUL h
BT  EBTn  E¥Tr  E¥Tn  ERTn ERTR
HK$000  HK$000 HK$000  HK$000  HKS$'000  HK$000
Trade payables ERESEN - 5,781 1,051 8,755 - 15,587
Financial liabilties S AR RERTUR 106,045 282 745 61,910 874 169,856
included in other RIEHREIR
payables and ReRaRE
accruals
Due to the immediate ENERERAR 25 - - - 91,21 - 91,291
holding company
Due to a fellow MR ZMBAR 253 - - - 220,107 - 220,107
subsidiary
Interest-bearing bank M ERTER - 176,692 18,810 1,310,363 - 1,505,865
borrowings
106,045 182,755 20,606 1,692,426 874 2,002,706
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Liquidity risk (Continued)

Group (Continued)

Trade payables e E SR
Financial liabities included i~ JIAZ A EFAR
other payables and acoruals ~ [EFHERBRERER

Due to the immediate holding BT BRI ARl 2508
company
Interest-bearing bank W BRTER

borrowings

B 75 ¥ R P
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 38.

KRR EE )

nEE Rk 2

NEE (%)
2007
e 2
3to
Lessthan 12 months 1105 Over

Ondemand  3months  =MEAZ years 5 years Total
B2k DPR=EA TZEA -ERF AENE &5t
BETT AT BETr A%t AETr #%Tx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- 20,245 21,388 - - 41,633
12,205 521 989 50,542 3,134 67,391
- - - 91,216 - 91,216
- 10,336 933,955 247,030 - 1,191,321
12,205 31,102 956,332 388,788 3,134 1,391,561
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 38. HMKREMEE &)
POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) mENE & B\ ()
The maturity profile of the Group’s and the Company’s REER  RBEFTAARRIRMAR
financial liabilities as at the balance sheet date, based on the DT AEEemMBECEEHBEE
contracted undiscounted payments, was as follows: (Continued) U NEE "))
Company Pi NN
2008
—EENE
3to
Less than 12 months 1to5 Over
Ondemand 3months =fARZ years 5years Total
REX SR=@R +=@A -Zif EENL #5t
BETr AT B¥Tr A%t B¥Tr  B%Tr
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000
Financial liabilties FINE R FUE R 2,506 - 59 1,088 75 4,368
included in other SREENCHAR
payables and
accruals
Due to subsidiaries FERHBARZTE 78,262 - - - - 78,262
Interest-bearing bank MERTER - - - 138214 - 138274
borrowings
80,768 - 59 139,362 715 220,904
2007
5L F
3to
Lessthan 12 months 1105 Over
Ondemand ~ 3months  =[EHAZE years 5 years Total
&k PR=fEA  +tZEA —ZRf #ENE &t
BETT  A%Tr BT BETr A%t A%t
HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
Financial liabilties included in 5| A 5B R fEETHRER IR 333 - 602 526 879 2,340
other payables and accruals ~ RERIE(E
Due to subsidiaries FENHBAR 2 Z0A 72,524 - - - - 72,524
72,857 - 602 526 879 74,864
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to
safeguard the Group’s ability and financial capabilities of the
Company in running its operations on a going concern basis
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages and adjusts its capital structure
appropriately accordingly to the specific features of the risks
of our assets and the change in various economic conditions.
Through adjustments in dividend distribution, injections and
repayments of capital by shareholders or issuance of new
shares, the Group is able to maintain an optimised capital
structure of the Company.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is short
and long term interest bearing bank borrowings divided by
total equity. The Group’s policy is to maintain the gearing ratio
less than 150% and comply with the relevant requirements of
bank loan agreements. The gearing ratios as at the balance
sheet dates were as follows:

Interest-bearing MY BERTTE R
bank borrowings

Total equity T 4R%E

Gearing ratio EEBELE

38.

KRR EE )

BEARER

AEBEAEEZ T2ABERR
EAKEFELEBRERZENR
RRBZHIGREN - LR GERIRRE
ZERLE  DXFBEEBRB/K
RERHEAEE-

AEERBEEERRBRZFHRER
RERNZEBEEEERFHER
BARE - BEAEREDIK - K
RIENEBRERNLBETHR K
SEERNEBARARZKREER
ZRHE o

AEBRAEEAGHEXR(AIEHK
RHEIM BIRTTE KPR A RSB %) B
BEER - AEBZBRDEREE
BELRER150% @ LA K EBSFIRIT
EXm@EABRE RNEER -

BEAMBLERNT -

Group

A%E
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
1,505,865 1,191,321
2,079,085 1,932,989
72% 62%
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39. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS 39. £ERHEEE

On 23 October 2008, Supreme Asia Investments Limited
(“SAI"), an indirect 54.78% owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into the Shareholding Adjustment Agreement with
Shanghai Zhongxin Hua Yun Property Development Co.
Ltd. (“Zhongxin”), Shanghai Shang Ke Industrial Co. Ltd.
(“Shang Ke”) and Shanghai Sianjin Property Development Co.
Ltd. (“Sianjin”), who are existing shareholders of Shanghai
Zhong Jun Real Estate Development Co. Ltd. (“Zhong Jun”),
pursuant to which it was agreed that the registered capital
of Zhong Jun, the subsidiary of SAI, will increase from
RMB200 million (approximately HK$228 million) to RMB223
million (approximately HK$254.22 million). RMB12,599,400
(approximately HK$14.36 million) and RMB10,400,600
(approximately HK$11.86 million) shall be contributed by SAl
and Sianjin (a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of FCL (China)
Pte. Ltd.) respectively by way of cash (“Capital Increase”).
Zhongxin and Shang Ke, have agreed not to make any
contribution under the Capital Increase.

=23 2PN e iRl B el ]
Supreme Asia Investments Limited
([SAl) » NR I HES 54.78% 1
mZBAR)HEEGhEEREHE
BEARAFR(HE]D - EBER
BEBRAR( LR kR EEE
BEXBRAR([%£IR]) (BERLE
MEEMERZEARAG(THME])
ZBEBRER) ST IRERARRZE - &
It 1 FE SAIZ B B A B 58 2 w1t
&A% AR A R 200,000,000 7t (49
75 ¥ 228,000,000 7T ) INEARKE
223,000,0007T (¥978#& 254,220,000
JT) ° SAI K %85 (FCL (China) Pte.
Ltd. 2EEE2ENBLAR) 5 5IA
KR &7 HE ARK12,599,400
7T (4975 % 14,360,000 7T ) K2 A R #&
10,400,600 7T ( 49 % # 11,860,000
TL)([EBE ) - FEMERERET
EIE TER AL E o
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40. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

41.

Certain prior year figures have been restated to conform with

the presentation of the current year. Major ones included:

(i)

(i)

land appreciation tax included in “direct operating
expenses” for the year ended 30 September 2007
amounting to approximately HK$796,000 have
been reclassified to “tax” in the consolidated income
statement;

land appreciation tax included in “other gains” for
the year ended 30 September 2007 amounting to
approximately HK$26,727,000 have been reclassified to
“tax” in the consolidated income statement; and;

land appreciation tax payable included in “other payables
and accruals” as at 30 September 2007 amounting to
approximately HK$17,100,000 has been reclassified to
“tax payable” in the consolidated balance sheet.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for

issue by the Board of Directors on 7 November 2008.

40. LB T

41.

ETEFHRFCOEY
Z 2577 AREF—
&

(i)

(i

(i)

LA B R 4R &
B TEHEE

WABE_ZEELFNLA=F
AILEEE [BEEgERY] 2+
Hh 38 B i 49 78 & 796,000 T 2
BENEERGERERAZIH
||

ABE-_ZZLFNLA=T
AIEFE [Hlhas ] 2 il
B A B 26,727,000 T E =

MBERNGEAERERAZ (R
B R

WARZZEZTLFNLA =+
B [ H b & 508 K EETHIRER
B | 2 T AR 4B M
17,100,000 E B F B R

HAEEERBERAZIEMAKR
Ele

HEMBRR

MBEBRER_ZZTNF+ At
REEESHERXETE -

167



168

Frasers Property (China) Limited £¥itthE (FEl) BRA T
Annual Report 07/08 %

Continuing Obligation under Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules

BELHRAE1BEZHFEERE

BANKING FACILITIES WITH COVENANTS RELATING
TO SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OF CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

In accordance with the requirements under rule 13.21 of the Listing
Rules, the directors of the Company reported below details of loan
facilities, which existed during the year and included conditions
relating to specific performance of the controlling shareholder of the
Company:

@)

On 28 March 2008 and 5 June 2008, Shanghai Zhong
Jun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., a 52.04% owned
subsidiary of the Company, was granted an extension of 20
months for several 3-year RMB term loan facilities totaling
RMB582 million and another extension of 2 years for one
3-year USD term loan facility of USD36 million. All the loans are
to finance the capital expenditures of its development project.

On 3 March 2008, the Company was granted a loan facility
of HK$100 million for revolving and short term nature to fund
the general working capital requirement of the Company and
its subsidiaries. On 16 November 2007, the Company was
granted a loan facility of HK$500 million for a 3-year term loan
facility to fund the general working capital requirement of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

Vision (Shenzhen) Business Park Co., Ltd., a 95% owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement dated
16 October 2006 and a supplement agreement dated 27
January 2008 in connection with a revolving loan facility of
RMB160 million to finance its property project in the PRC.

On 29 March 2006 and 11 July 2006, the Company was
granted loan facilities of HK$100 million each. The facilities
are of a revolving and short term nature to fund the general
working capital requirements of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

Under the agreements in connection with the above items (a) and
(b) loan facilities, the Company undertook to the lenders that FCL
(China) Pte. Ltd. would remain as the majority shareholder of the
Company throughout the duration of the facilities, while under the
agreements in connection with the above items (c) and (d) loan
facilities, the Company undertook to the lenders that Fraser and
Neave, Limited would remain as the ultimate majority shareholder
of the Company throughout the duration of the facilities. Failure to
perform the undertaking will constitute an event of default. If the
event of default occurs, the outstanding liabilities under the loan
facilities may become immediately due and payable.

RITHEZNEEARERBRRAET
BERE 2GRN

RIE ETARAIEL 1321 1K ZEE - AR F
EERNERARRAFA—EFERSE
FARARBEZERERBETRER EKEZ

ERRES

@ RZEZNE=ZA-_FTNHEZ
ZENFRNARH AQAREA
52.04%# =5 2 W B A 7 £ /8 {F

BEMWERZTERAA DA ER
ZIE-_FHERBEAFARE
582,000,000tz —+{E AEEA & —
18 = 4 Hf & 5K 58 /Z 36,000,000 E 7T
ZELH - 2REREERAR A
HBREPE 2 EARIRERE -

b)) RZZEENF=ZA=ZH' XRQ7A
JE % 78 100,000,000 7T 2 & 5@
B BERBRLEHEEERE
F - UNENARARENBARZ
—MEBESHFT R_ZTZTLF
+—A+ B AR EEREE
500,000,000 T2 ZFHEZEE -
NENMARNRRENB AR Z —
BEESE °

) AATHEHB%EZR ZHEB QT
FINEFTEEREBEERAR®EA
4 A 160,000,000 2 i &
REER-_ZEZNE+A+/ 85
TEHBBEUER-_ZEENE—A
“t+tHF Y —BEHEEHE UBE
HEREZWEBERRERE -

d RZEBEERFZA-+NLHEHE=ZF
ERNFLtA+—HB  ARaloplE
%71 100,000,000 2 EREESE -
ZEEFABRENCHIED - AE
NARRBIREMBRAG 2 —REE
BEAE -

BIEARE LS (a) X (b)EERFEE ZH
# AQRIERERG AR - FCL (China)
Pte. Ltd. SN BB EBMEEIEAL A
RIFERE - MIREARE LS (o) X (d)
BEFEE 2 H# - ARRERERA &
# ° Fraser and Neave, Limited & E
BEBEEEERLN RN RKETERE -
BREBITABARE  BEKEY - M
BRENEHEE  AZSEREEET
ZABEABENRIHE AT -
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ETEYFERFS

PROPERTY UNDER DEVELOPMENT

BRPYE

Properties Uses Shareholding Brief Description Area
ES A% PR [
Mainland China

HE AR

Plot No. 1 situated Residential/ 52.04% The property comprises two parcels 837,291 sm
at Gu Lang Road and Commercial of land and have a total site area (GFA)
Plot No. 2 situated =/ mE of approximately 406,162 sm and 837,291 F 7K
at Si Chen Road, 304,939 sm respectively. The proposed (BIEEEE)

Songjiang District,
Shanghai

i1

IR

MR 2 SRtk
RERHE 1 8

Note: The property project announced pre-sales
programmes for Phase 1 in August 2008.

PROPERTY HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT

development will comprise

residential apartments and townhouses.
ZOEDEME T - B

&R R4/ 406,162 F 7K
5.304,939F 75K - BAMERIAR
BRAZRERTRE °

Mt : ZYMERBER-_ZZNFNAXME1HE

EatEl -

BREFERRARZME

Properties Uses Shareholding Brief Description Area
ES A% PR [
Mainland China

HE AR

Vision (Shenzhen) Business Park  Commercial 95% Vision (Shenzhen) Business Park -
Phase 3 at Shenzhen Hi-Tech ¥ Phase 3 is awaiting for obtaining

Industrial Park,

GaoXin South Ring Road/
Kedi South Road,

Shenzhen

Ll
SESNEREBHEBE
AEE R E % E
ANEFT R RHREE 3 1

the construction permit

for construction. The total land area
for Phase 3 is about 25.4 ha.
ANBE R E R 3 A FE
ERTEBIAAEL AT o
FIMEREIBE 2L T HETE

K AB254 1
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TRV FERFS

3. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

REWF
Term of
Properties Uses Lease Shareholding  Brief Description Area
S R WRFH hE i HE
Mainland China
HE AR
() Vision (Shenzhen) Commercial ~ Medium 95%  Vision (Shenzhen) Business Park Phase 1, 23,500 sm
Business Park Phase 1 [ Gl located on a 2.3 ha. site, comprises two (GFA)
at High and cross-shaped, 5-storey buildings. Units are 235007 K
New Technological Industrial designated for housing |.T. research and (BEEEE)
Park South Zone, development centres and offices, and for
Nanshan District, ancilary uses. Phase 1 was completed
Shenzhen in March 2001,
A RFEHTARRES 1 Brh 2.3 2E
il BEESERTFHEAE  REMY
RIRNEEERE EEREMREREROREFER
RFEEARRER 1 5 ARERSR - F1HER T -FZRRT -
(o) Vision (Shenzhen) Commercial ~ Medium 95%  Vision (Shenzhen) Business Park Phase 2A, 45,700 sm
Business Park Phase 2A HE Gl located on a 2 ha. site, comprises two (GFA)
at High and blocks of office space (one 6-storey block 45,7007 K
New Technological Indlustrial and the other one 7-storey block) and amenity (BEERE)
Park South Zone, centre. Units are designated for housing |.T.
Nanshan District, research and development centres and offices,
Shenzhen and for ancillary uses. Phase 2A was
wlm completed in January 2006.
AR RINEEFARRE R A B2 A E -

RHENEXERRE
R AR ERER 2A %

BEMETE(1HOEENER
167RENE) R 1 EEEL
BB AEAATERLR
BTRIARERS  SoMHE
RoBBAE-ART -
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ETEYFERFS

Term of
Properties Uses Lease Shareholding  Brief Description Area
LES R REH hE i &
(c)  Vision (Shenzhen) Commercial -~ Medium 95%  Vision (Shenzhen) Business Park Phase 2B}(1) 88,410sm
Business Park i Gl & (2), located on a 4 ha, site, Phase 2B (1) (GFA)
Phase 2B(1) & 2) comprises two 9-storey blocks of office space 88410 K
at High and and Phase 2B (2) comprises one 5-storey (agmEk)
New Technological block of office space and one 7-storey
Industrial Park carpark building. Units are designated for
South Zone, housing L.T. research and development
Nanshan District, centres and offices, and for ancillary uses.
Shenzhen Phase 2B(1) & (2) was completed in August 2007.
I RIBEFARRER 2B(1) R (2) 5
[l (B4 09E  E0B(1) BRE2EIER
RYREXRRER BTEREBRABE1ESER
AEE AR RE BTRR1ETERRFERAE -
FBNRQH BEMIET AEARETER LR
BTERERERSE - 828 RQH
ERZERLEN\ART
(d  Sohu.com Intenet Plaza Commercial  Medium 60%  The development s a 13-storey buiding 14,820 sm
(previously known as HE Gl (7 floors soldl to Sohu.com in February 2007) (GFA of 6 Floors)
Vision International Centre) with two levels basement car parks and 14820 F /5%
at Tsinghua Science Park, ancillary facilties. The total land area is (6ER28
No. 1 Zhongguancun East Road, about 9,400 sm. The bulding is used as BHER)
Haidian District, office and/or research and development
Beijing facllties. It was completed in September 2004,
IRERETENRRE 15 WERAR A 13ERAE(TEET
EERERE RZZSELE_REETHN) #5
BISEAR MENEREZERERN BT HEE
(HBRHERAE) HRIL0T TR - RARHAEETE

R/ SR TER-ZENENA
BT o
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TRV FERFS

4. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

FHEZCERME
Properties Uses Shareholding  Brief Description Area
/S it} fE [EE
Hong Kong
)
(@) Various car parking lots Carpark 100%  Greenery Place comprises four =
at Greenery Place, FE5 11-storey residential towers with
No. 1 Town Park, a total of 330 residential units,
Road South, a clubhouse and a 2-level carpark.
Yuen Long, The property was completed
New Territories in 2001.
MR BREERE4BE11ERAEAR
T8 RS IR0 EFEEN - 1 HER
AEBE 1% R2EBES - INLE
BEEETSEREL R-BE—FRT -
Mainland China
HEAE
(b)  Various car parking lots Carpark 100%  Tower 5, 7, 8 of Phase 1 consist of -
in Scenic Place at No. 305 FES 788 furnished and non-furished
Guang An Men Wai Avenue, flats comprising 1 to 3 bedrooms
XuanWu District, units with sizes ranging from 55 to
Beijing 147 sm. There is 1-level basement
LR carpark with 154 saleable carpark lots.
TR F1HEL R\ BEXEREAIEE
B PIINRHT 305 5% SEEMLAERM < 788 HA AR E R ERL
GREEHSEEER RAZEN  BUMERSE
U7 FRANE - BEH 154 AT
HESBN 2 1 EERES o
() The Ninth ZhongShan Residential/ 100% ltis a twin-towered development Residential
at No. 2 Xinglin Street, Commercial comprises a 32-storey east tower 3,381 sm
ZhongShan District, E/mE and a 30-storey west tower, (GFA)
Dalian altogether offering 453 high-end Commercial
REN residential flats of 2 to 4 bedroom 1,791 sm
HLE units. Unit size ranges from (GFA)
B2 % 85 to 284 sm. There is a restaurant, Fx
H LR a comprehensive clubhouse and 3,381 F 7K
a 3-level basement carpark with (BZEHEE)
132 saleable carpark lots. [
ZMEANEERIBERE1ERERR 1,791 F K
AER1ENERAANE - & HRME (EEmR)

4532 RE 4R R MEEEN o
BT 85 284 F KT

% URHEEE  RASH - URES
132{AR L EEf 7 SEBHERES -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of
corporate governance practices as set out in the Code of Corporate
Governance Practice (the “CG Code”) in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The corporate
governance principles of the Company emphasize a quality board
of directors, sound internal control, principles and practices and
transparency and accountability to all shareholders of the Company.
The Company has complied with the CG Code throughout the
accounting year covered by the 2007/08 Annual Report except for
the deviations from Code Provisions A.4.1 and B.1.1 which, in the
Company’s opinion, are unsuitable or inappropriate for adoption.
Explanations for such non-compliance are provided and discussed
below.

The following chart illustrates the membership and structure of the
Company’s Board of Directors and the three specialized committees

CRERRE

ERERRH

RARKBEBHERZMBERAAES
EmRAI( EmRA]) e+ Hers 2
X¥ERERTA(ESARTA] B
BEHREKEZDEERER - ARalz
(T RRABAEETS 2BHARR BN
ZNEREYE - RIT 2 RBIFIER - =ERA
ERHARZEBREAE - AQREZZT
Tt/ ENFFRARE2EBSTFE
A—HEBFREERTH - EREBEAQA
BR o TFAEXEALIERBAIETIR
HANTRERANRRRAMAE TR -
BETEBFHRANZ RS EWRMAT o

TRBMAARRBEFTEZKE RERE - U
LEEg s =—HEELEE -

of the Board:

Board of Directors

EEg

Executive Director
Mr. Ang Ah Lay (Chief Executive Officer)
Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lim Ee Seng (Chairman)

Ms. Chong Siak Ching (whose alternate is Mr.Chia Nam Toon)

Mr. Goh Yong Chian, Patrick

Mr. Hwang Soo Chin

Mr. Tang Kok Kai, Christopher
Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chong Kok Kong

Mr. Hui Chiu Chung, J.P

Mr. Kwong Che Keung, Gordon

Mr. Alan Howard Smith, J.P

HITEE

HEEEE (7TBAEH)

HHTEE

wRBEE (&)
REBRL (HEFEFERHALAEL)

REHR T E
Egikid
HEELEE

BYHHTEE

REE KL

AR EE (K FHL)

BEBREE

Alan Howard Smith%c & (X F#+)

Executive Committee HTZEE

Audit Committee ERZEEY

Mr. Lim Ee Seng GBS ST Mr. Kwong Che Keung, #5854
(Chairman) (/&) Gordon (Chairman) ()
Mr. Ang Ah Lay HEETE Mr. Chong Kok Kong 3R ¥ %8 4
Ms. Chong Siak Ching EZE 7+ Mr. Goh Yong Chian,  R44R% 4
Mr. Goh Yong Chian, R Patrick
Patrick Mr. Hui Chiu Chung, AR EAE
J.P (X FH+)

Mr. Alan Howard Smith, Alan Howard Smith
J.P St (K F#1)

Remuneration FMESY

Committee

Mr. Alan Howard Smith, Alan Howard Smith

J.P (Chairman) S (K Fat)
(£/E)
Mr. Lim Ee Seng AR B T A&
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EXERBE

COMPLIANCE WITH MODE CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

During the year, the Company adopted its own Code for Securities
Transactions by Officer (the “Code”) on terms no less exacting than
the required standards set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made
specific enquiry, all directors of the Company have confirmed their
compliance with the required standards set out in the Model Code
and the Code during the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board Composition

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) currently
comprises an executive director and nine non-executive directors,
four of whom are independent non-executive directors. All ten
directors are subjected to retirement by rotation once every three
years in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company and the CG
Code. The composition of the Board is reviewed regularly to ensure
that it has a good balance of expertise, skills and experience which
can meet the requirements of the business of the Company. The
directors’ biographical information is set out on pages 24 to 30 of the
2007/08 Annual Report.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are
held by separate individuals with a view to maintain an effective
segregation of duties between the management of the Board and the
day-to-day management of the Group’s business and operations.

One of the important roles of the Chairman is to provide leadership
to the Board to ensure that the Board always act in the best interests
of the Group. The Chairman shall ensure that the Board works
effectively and fully discharges its responsibilities, and that all key
issues are discussed by the Board in a timely manner. All directors
have been consulted about any matters proposed for inclusion in the
agenda. The Chairman has delegated the responsibility of drawing
up the agenda for each board meeting to the Chief Executive Officer
and the Company Secretary. With the support of the Chief Executive
Officer and the Company Secretary, the Chairman seeks to ensure
that all directors are properly briefed on issues arising at any board
meeting and have received adequate and reliable information in a
timely manner.

ESETESRZZEETA

FA - ARBEEMEBEZITBRABRE
TRFXSTR(TFR) - EEREEH
RAKM S+ AEZ( LT RARESETE
FRSMRETA) ([BESFR ) AR
1o RIELARETNR  ARAFZBES
R WECRFRBTIEESTR R TAI
NFTE 2 IR -

Exg
EEE MK

ARREFG((EEEDBEAA—EH
TEFERNBFNTESMAK  EHEA
RBIUFHPTES - 2 +REFHAR
BARRZ AR REREATRIE=
FHESE-R EFEIRBSTHR
A ARERBR A - B R AR R EBCE
B WEENEBARAZEHRE BEFZ
BEEAHEN _TT L/ TN\FFRE 24
Z£5E30H °

TR RATHARE

REFEFTEEEBEAREXH2ELZ
AREEMZBEARRD - XFERITK
BEZBA D BB B 2 BRI AL
e

ITRZET-HERRENEEERTS
NHEREEFEEEUARNEE 2 RENETT
FoIRARREFSHENENE 2R
TERE  URERMAEAREE RER
EFEgdm-oEMHERNZFEZERF
B 2REFHESER EFOHERX
EEe g EER EEZAETITRA
BRABIME - ETREZELARWEZ
BT EEREREEEFCEEED
WEMEES LHBR2HE  LERFK
D RAISFEZER
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Non-executive Directors

The non-executive directors provide a wide range of expertise
and experience as well as checks and balances to safeguard the
interests of the Group and its shareholders. Their participation in
the board and committee meetings brings independent judgement
on issues relating to the Group’s strategy, performance, conflicts of
interest and management process to ensure that the interests of all
shareholders of the Company have been duly considered.

The non-executive directors of the Company are not appointed for
a specific term as they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting in accordance with the bye-
laws of the Company. According to bye-law 109(A) and 189(vii) of
the bye-laws of the Company, one-third of the directors for the time
being, or if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to one-third but not less than one-third, shall retire
from office and shall be eligible for re-election at each annual general
meeting. Therefore, the Board considers that non-compliance with
Code A.4.1 of the CG Code is acceptable since, with ten directors
and at least one-third of them being subject to retirement at every
annual general meeting, all of them should be retired by rotation at
least once every three years. As such, the Company considers that
such provisions are sufficient to meet the underlying objectives of the
relevant provision of the CG Code.

Independent Non-executive Directors

More than one-third of the members of the Board consists of
independent non-executive directors and more than one of whom
have appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The Board confirms that the
Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
directors the annual confirmation of independence for the year
ended 30 September 2008 pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and considers all of the independent non-executive directors to be
independent during the year. No independent non-executive director
has served the Group for more than nine years.

AN\ e g
ERERME

FHITES

FRTETRASBIERNINER - I
ETREERTE  UEEAEERERR
2 REPREZERNREZEEY
o RPRASEZRE - KRR MEE
RNRERBIE 2 FRE B - DA
RARBZEBRR N ZRSEDNER -

ARRIFATEZTUIFRBEEEENE
- MAZRARE 2 REIHARIRAA TR
BEBFRG FHESERBEET - R
BAREZRAABRIZE 109 (A) &K 5 189
Vil =02 —2HEEEF > IMHES
ABA = =2 B8 BIRKEEI=D
Z—EAIR=n2—2Z A AREE
BERBFRG LHESERAERBEEE
F-RHit E2ERRTETERERLRT
AIFEAANGRANMERY  ARETRE
= HPEL =D - ARBRERREBF
RELER 2REFHARIE=FH
BEER—X-EHit > ARBRE - WER
ErRHmEEREATRIREMRE <A
ERER

BIUIFRTEF

=N N EZEFTERE RBILIERIT
B2 HER - ANLHAZERERL G
SHEACMBERERER - EFGHR - K
ARIEREBRBUIFATESRELD
RAESIBKGRELHE_ZZNFNAA
“tRLFEZFEBUBRE  LRA
FRAZEBUFNTESHABIE -
BEFITESEREASEBNF -
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EXERBE

RESPONSIBILITY OF DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for ensuring continuity of leadership,
development of sound business strategies, availability of adequate
capital and managerial resources to implement the business
strategies adopted, adequacy of systems of financial and internal
controls and conduct of business in conformity with applicable laws
and regulations. All directors have made full and active contribution
to the affairs of the Board and the Board has always acted in the best
interests of the Group.

The Executive Director and senior management are delegated
with respective levels of authorities with regard to key corporate
strategy and policy and contractual commitments. Management is
responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Group with divisional
heads responsible for different aspects of the business.

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements. The Company has adopted the generally accepted
accounting standards in Hong Kong in preparing the financial
statements, appropriate accounting policies have been adopted
and applied consistently, and reasonable and prudent judgement
and estimates have been made. The publication of the financial
statements of the Group is also in a timely manner.

The Board has reviewed the financial projections of the Group and
the Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions which may cast significant doubt over the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Board has
continued to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements.
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Board Meetings EEeeH

During the year, the Board met regularly and held five meetings. The FR EEeTHERE DHRTANE

attendance record, on a named basis, at these meetings is set out ZozEeR o HELE(ANEER) R
below: M -
No. of meetings
BERE
Held during
the year Attended
Name of director EEHA FREEIT 2tiE

Mr. Ang Ah Lay (Chief Executive Officer) AR (7T AEEL)

Mr. Lim Ee Seng (Chairman)® MWIaB L (FE)D 5
Ms. Chong Siak Ching wkEEZT
Mr. Yee Hsien Wee RERSE

(Alternate to Ms. Chong Siak Ching)® (REEXTZEFEF) 5 2
Mr. Chia Nam Toon HEEEE

(Alternate to Ms. Chong Siak Ching)® (RERFXLTEFEFE)® -
Mr. Goh Yong Chian, Patrick REHRSTHE 4
Mr. Hwang Soo Chin@ BRI EE® 2
Mr. Tang Kok Kai, Christopher BB LA 5 5

| Independent Non-exccutive Directors By ¥#fi®® | | |

Mr. Chong Kok Kong SR B SE AR 5 5
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung, J.P. SRR S (KFAE L) 5 5
Mr. Kwong Che Keung, Gordon e 5 5
Mr. Alan Howard Smith, J.P. Alan Howard Smith 5t 4 (X F#+) 5 3

®  Appointed as Acting Chairman of the Board on 8 October 2007 ® RZIZEZLEFTANBEZAERESTE

and as Chairman on 21 July 2008 EERFFEURMR-_ZZENFLA=-+—
HEZTAEE
®  Resigned as Alternate Director to Ms. Chong Siak Ching on 12 @ RIZEZNFNATZHBHEREEFEX
August 2008 T EIES
®  Appointed as Alternate Director to Ms. Chong Siak Ching on 12 ® RIZEZNFNATZ_BEZAERERS
August 2008 EULZBEES
@  Appointed as Non-executive Director on 27 May 2008 @ RIZETZN\FREA-T+LAEZAAIKE

WITES
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Regular board meetings are scheduled in advance to facilitate all
directors’ attendance. If potential conflict of interest involving a
substantial shareholder or a director arises which the Board has
determined to be material, the matter is discussed in a physical
meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by written resolutions,
and the interested parties are required to abstain from voting. The
directors attend meetings in persons or through other means of
electronic communication in accordance with the bye-laws of the
Company.

Board papers are circulated approximately seven days before the
board meetings to enable the directors to make informed decisions
on matters to be raised. The Company Secretary and Qualified
Accountant shall attend all regular board meetings to advise on
corporate governance, statutory compliance, accounting and
financial matters when necessary. Directors shall have full access
to information on the Group and are able to obtain independent
professional advice whenever deemed necessary by the directors.
The Company Secretary shall prepare minutes and keep records of
matters discussed and decisions resolved at all board meetings.

Each newly-appointed director will be provided with a package of
orientation materials setting out the duties and responsibilities of
directors under the Listing Rules, related ordinances and relevant
regulatory requirements of Hong Kong. Updates are provided to
directors when necessary to ensure that directors are aware of the
latest changes in the commercial and regulatory environment in
which the Group conducts its business.

Responsibilities of Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for ensuring that
board procedures are followed and that the Board is fully briefed on
all legislative, regulatory and corporate governance developments
and that it has regard to them when making decisions. The Company
Secretary is also directly responsible for the Group’s compliance with
the continuing obligations of the Listing Rules, Codes on Takeovers
and Mergers and Share Repurchases, Companies Ordinance,
Securities and Futures Ordinance and other applicable laws, rules
and regulations.
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Directors and Officers Policy

Appropriate insurance covers on directors’ and officers’ liabilities
have been in force to protect the directors and officers of the Group
from their risk exposure arising from the business of the Group.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Executive Committee of the Board was formed in April 2001. It
currently comprises three non-executive directors and one executive
director. It was chaired by the non-executive Chairman. Subsequent
to the resignation of Dr. Han Cheng Fong as Chairman of the
Executive Committee, Mr. Lim Ee Seng was appointed as Chairman
of the Executive Committee in July 2008. The Executive Committee
establishes the strategic directions of the Company and monitors
the performance of management. The Executive Committee is also
provided with other resources enabling it to discharge its duties fully.
The said terms of reference of the Executive Committee adopted by
the Board are posted on the Company’s website.

During the year, the Executive Committee held three meetings. The
attendance record, on a named basis, at these meetings is set out
below:
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No. of meetings
SRR
Held during
the year Attended
Name of committee member ZEERERR FRERIT 2HE
Mr. Lim Ee Seng (Chairman)® WaBTE (FE) O 3 3
Mr. Ang Ah Lay TR ST A 3 3
Ms. Chong Siak Ching REFLZT 1
Mr. Yee Hsien Wee RERLESE 5
(Alternate to Ms. Chong Siak Ching)® (REFXLTZEFEE)Q 3
Mr. Chia Nam Toon HEEEE
(Alternate to Ms. Chong Siak Ching)® (REEXTETFEE)G -
Mr. Goh Yong Chian, Patrick REMEE 3 3
@  Appointed as Chairman of the Executive Committee on 21 July © RIZEZNFLA-T+-—HEZERH
2008 TEEGER
@  Resigned as Alternate to Ms. Chong Siak Ching on 12 August @ RIZEZNFNATZHBHERERFX
2008 TIEBRAES
®  Appointed as Alternate to Ms. Chong Siak Ching on 12 August ® RIZEZNFNATZBAEZAARRS
2008 BTz BEEES
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AND REMUNERATION OF
DIRECTORS

The Remuneration Committee was formed in October 2002.
Subsequent to the resignation of Dr. Han Cheng Fong its committee
member, the Remuneration Committee now has one independent
non-executive director and one non-executive director. It is chaired
by an independent non-executive director. The majority of the
members of the Remuneration Committee are not independent non-
executive directors. The Board will continue with this composition
and not comply with Code B.1.1 of the CG Code because the Board
considers that it is appropriate for the non-executive director(s)
representing the controlling shareholder to play an active role in
appointing the key executives and setting their remuneration.

The objectives of the Remuneration Committee are to establish and
maintain an appropriate and competitive level of remuneration to
attract, retain and motivate directors and key executives to run the
Company successfully. The Remuneration Committee also ensures
that the remuneration policies and systems of the Group support
the Group’s objectives and strategies. The Committee is provided
with other resources enabling it to discharge its duties fully. A set of
written terms of reference, which described the authority and duties
of the Remuneration Committee, was adopted by the Board and
the contents of which are in compliance with the Code Provisions
of the CG Code. The said terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee adopted by the Board are posted on the Company’s
website.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held two meetings.
The attendance record, on a named basis, at these meetings is set
out below:
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No. of meetings
BERE
Held during
the year Attended
Name of committee member ZEEHENR FREEIT 2HE
Mr. Alan Howard Smith, J.P. Alan Howard Smith 9 4= (A -F##+) 5 5
(Chairman) (/)
Mr. Lim Ee Seng MiaBs LA 2 2
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The Remuneration Committee had considered the following
proposals and made recommendation to the Board:

° Annual salary review and bonus payment for 2007/08 of
directors and senior executives

e  Offer and grant of share options under the Company’s Share
Option Scheme to eligible employees and directors

The Remuneration Committee shall consult the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer about their proposals relating to the remuneration
of other directors and have access to professional advice, if
necessary.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

Being accountable for the proper stewardship of the Group’s affairs,
the Board is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records
are kept and relevant financial statements, as in the Annual Report
and the Interim Report, are prepared to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group for each of the financial periods.
With effect from the financial year which commenced on 1 October
2005, the Group has published its financial results on a quarterly
basis, thereby enhancing the transparency in reporting its results and
financial position.

In preparing the accounts for the year ended 30 September 2008,
the Directors have:

o approved the adoption of all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards which are issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants

° selected and applied consistently the appropriate accounting
policies

° made judgements and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable

° prepared the accounts on the going concern basis

The management of the individual businesses within the Group
provides the Board with such information and explanations
necessary to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of
the financial and other information put before the Board for approval.

The Company has announced its annual and interim results within
two months after the end of the relevant periods, which is earlier
than the limits of four months and three months as required by Rule
13.49(1) and (6) of the Listing Rules.

CRERRE

FHEE SR TIRBEHERE @ XRE
%Qkﬁ@u E

s TEELH /BNFEFRSIRITH
ABZFEFHF e RIEAZ

© MARBREARESEIRETA
A RIRAE 81 T 2 R

WERE FHZBESKIEHEMES
N2 E2BBATERITRASNERE
XER -

BEREFZ
MRS

EZgRERBEAEEEBKRBIEEE
B WHEETRERESFTERMAERSE - 8
B Rk (AT BN F R L P ERE A
ZHBEHR) RMBEEEBERAFRBRA
SEEPRBEcBHERR - BZFFTH
FHA-BEZHMHBFE  AKEESFT
BPBEE  BILRSEMBEE NI
RRRE ZBRAE -

REHEE_ZTZT)/\FAA=ZTHLLEFE

REE  EFC

o HERMBEBSHMAGMEMZAA
ﬁ@%%%%%ﬁ%ﬁ%

e HKEVERMERBEE ZGTHE

o (EHFEREIEZ FIE KL

o RINEREEERHARKA

AEBABETENXH EEBERES
SRHTHBZENMEERE  FEFE7
PR LV B 755 Ko B At B R A 4F A0S 2 Y
fl o

ARBEREHEARERERARMHE
FENPHESE  ®RETRAE13.4901)
K (6)IRFTHE 2 A A MIE AR BT -

181



182

Frasers Property (China) Limited £¥itthE (FEl) BRA T
Annual Report 07/08 %

Corporate Governance Report
ERERERE

A statement by the auditors about their reporting responsibilities is
included in the Independent Auditors’ Report which is set out on
pages 50 to 51 of the 2007/08 Annual Report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the integrity of the
Group’s financial information and the effectiveness of the Group’s
system of internal controls and risk management processes.
Accordingly, the Board established a clear organizational structure
with appropriate delegation of responsibility to satisfy changing
business needs while managing risks that are critical to the
achievement of business objectives.

While the Audit Committee conducts continuous review on the
adequacy and effectiveness of the existing internal controls on
behalf of the Board, the day-to-day responsibility for the conduct
of these control procedures, the on-going monitoring of risks and
the effectiveness of the corresponding internal controls rest with the
management of each business units.

The Board hereby confirms that there is a process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks that are critical to
the achievement of the Group’s strategic objectives. The process
which was in place throughout the financial year up to the date of
the financial statements has not identified any significant control
breakdown or inadequacy.

° System and Procedures — A sound and effective system of
internal controls contributes to safeguarding of shareholders’
investments and the Group’s assets. Since profits are, in
part, the reward for successful risk taking in business, the
purpose of the internal controls is to help manage and to
control appropriately, rather than to eliminate the risk to
the achievement of business objectives. They can only
provide reasonable, though not absolute assurance against
misstatement or loss.

As a part of the on-going process towards inculcating risk/
control awareness in maintaining a sound system of internal
controls, a strategic Enterprise-wide Risk Management
(“ERM”) has been put in place since 2006 while active
subsidiary companies continue to be identified for
implementation at operational level. This standardized risk
management methodology helps to formalize the identification
and assessment of key risks its businesses face, thereby
improving the management of risk throughout the Group.
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Equipped with a better appreciation of the ERM principles, the
key risks, control measures and management actions to be
taken were systematically identified, discussed, confirmed and
validated by management in a consistent, cohesive, integrated
and coordinated manner throughout the Group. The relevant
reports, together with the Group Risk Management Policy
were reviewed by the Audit Committee and endorsed by the
Board.

The Internal Auditors carry out review of the risk management
process, as part of their routine audit works. This is part of the
on-going process to ensure that the effectiveness of material
controls are monitored and tracked vis-a-vis the key risks.

The Board is satisfied that management is committed to
the ERM as an on-going process and that management will
continue to administer and monitor ERM at the strategic
level, while working towards cascading the ERM further to
the divisional, operational, departmental and process level
progressively.

Annual Assessment — Evaluation of the Group’s internal
controls is independently conducted by the Internal Audit
Department of Fraser and Neave, Limited (“F&N”), the
controlling shareholder of the Company, on an on-going basis.
Such evaluation covers all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions. Internal Audit Department of F&N will report to the
Audit Committee on significant findings on internal controls.

Whistle-blowing Policy — The Group has established a
“whistleblower” policy under which employees can report
any concerns, including misconduct, impropriety or fraud
in financial matters and accounting practices to either the
Chairman or the Audit Committee in confidence and without
fear of recrimination. Any shareholders or stakeholders can
also report similar concerns by writing or verbally in confidence
to the Audit Committee in Hong Kong or the Chairman’s office
at a designated email address or telephone outside of Hong
Kong.

Code of Business Conduct — In addition to the compliance
to the CG Code, the Group has adopted a Code of Business
Conduct to regulate the standards and ethical conduct of
the Group, and that its directors, officers and employees are
required to observe and maintain high standards of integrity,
as are in compliance with the laws and the regulations
and company policies. This sets standards of integrity and
professionalism throughout the Company’s operations.
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° Business Continuity Plan — The development and continuous
testing of a contingency plan/action guidelines for disruptive
events like infectious diseases and pandemics is a part of its
preparations to reduce the potential impact on the Group’s on-
going business operation.

° In line with Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules for shares dealing
restrictions, the Group issues a note to its directors and officers
once every quarter end, reminding them that there must be
no dealings in listed securities of the Group, from one month
before, until the release of the quarterly results, the half year
and year end results, and at any time they are in possession of
unpublished price sensitive information.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The Internal Audit function is independent of the activities it audits.
The Internal Audit Charter, as approved in 2006 accords the Head
of Internal Audit of the F&N Group and her staff unrestricted access
to all functions, records, property and personnel within the Group for
their audit works. A full and free access to the Audit Committee is
also provided for.

The audits are designed to provide the Board with reasonable
assurance that a functioning system of internal controls is in place
and operating effectively to manage the risks associated with the
achievement of business objectives of the Group. The Internal Audit
Department of the F&N Group conducts audits of the Company and
its subsidiaries, typically over a three-year cycle. The adequacy of the
frequency and the audit scope of each subsidiary is independently
assessed and tabled by the Internal Audit Department of the F&N
Group in the form of a risk-based Annual Audit Plan to the Audit
Committee for approval. Due considerations are also given to the
audit findings raised by both the internal and/or external audit visits.

In respect of the audit reviews conducted, copies of the Internal
Audit Reports for each audit are sent to the Chairman, the members
of the Audit Committee, management and the external auditors.
The results of each review are tabled and discussed in the Audit
Committee meeting. Any significant internal audit findings or
identified risks are closely examined so that appropriate action
can be taken. From time to time, management is called upon to
monitor and update the Audit Committee and the Board on the
status of implementation of their action plans in response to the
audit recommendations raised. The close follow up and tracking
is to ensure that all control inadequacies identified are promptly
addressed and resolved.

In addition to its routine audit schedule, the Internal Audit
Department of the F&N Group may be assigned to conduct projects
and investigative work, as may be required from time to time.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

For the year ended 30 September 2008, the fees paid to the
Company’s external auditors in respect of audit and non-audit
services provided to the Company and its subsidiaries is set out
below:

Audit services ZE RS
Non-audit services (included tax
matters, review and

other reporting services)

R Bt FR ¥R AR )

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was formed in August 2001. It currently
comprises four independent non-executive directors and one non-
executive director. It is chaired by an independent non-executive
director. A set of written terms of reference, which described the
authority and duties of the Audit Committee, was adopted by the
Board and the contents of which are in compliance with the Code
Provisions and Recommended Best Practices of the CG Code.
The said terms of reference of the Audit Committee adopted by the
Board are posted on the Company’s website.

The Audit Committee is accountable to the Board and the principal
duties of the Audit Committee include the review and supervision
of the Group’s financial reporting process and internal controls.
The Committee is also provided with other resources to enable it to
discharge its duties fully.
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During the year, the Audit Committee held four meetings and the
external auditors were in attendance. The attendance record, on a
named basis, at these meetings is set out below:

FR BRZECAFRNORER  EFE
SNESRR BB E - RE G B2 HF L
(AFNRZFZ) KT

No. of meetings
BBXE
Held during
the year Attended
Name of committee member EZEERERE FRE LT EHE
Mr. Kwong Che Keung, Gordon B ERR T (/) 4 4
(Chairman)
Mr. Chong Kok Kong SR B¢ S A 4 4
Mr. Goh Yong Chian, Patrick REEE 4 4
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung, J.P. FEERR AP ST A (X FAL) 4 4
Mr. Alan Howard Smith, J.P. Alan Howard Smith 554 (X F# 1) 4 3

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management of the
Company and Ernst & Young, the auditors of the Company, the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and has
discussed auditing, internal controls and financial reporting matters,
including the review of the annual report of the Company for the year
ended 30 September 2008.

The following is a summary of the work performed by the Audit
Committee during the year:

° Reviewed the 2006/07 Annual Report, and audited accounts
and annual results announcement for the year ended 30
September 2007

. Reviewed the 2007/08 Interim Report and the interim results
announcement for the six months ended 31 March 2008

° Reviewed the management accounts and the quarterly results
announcement for the three months ended 31 December
2007 and for the nine months ended 30 June 2008

° Recommended to the Board that the shareholders be asked to
re-appoint Emst & Young as the Company’s external auditors
for 2007/08
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° Reviewed and recommended to the Board the approval of the
audit fee proposal for the Group for 2007/08

° Reviewed the connected transactions for the year ended
30 September 2007 and for the quarterly periods ended 31
December 2007, 31 March 2008 and 30 June 2008

o Reviewed the areas of (i) risk management and internal
controls and (i) internal audit and compliance functions

° Reviewed and approved the Group audit charter, the internal
audit plan for the year ended 30 September 2008, the cost
budget for audit and the internal audit reports

° Met with the external auditors to discuss the general scope of
their audit work

All issues raised by the Committee have been addressed by
Management. The work and findings of the Committee have been
reported to the Board. During the year, no issue brought to the
attention of Management and the Board was of sufficient importance
to require disclosure in the 2007/08 Annual Report.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S INTERESTS

As at 30 September 2008, the senior management had the following
interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company:
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Number of

ordinary

shares issuable

Number of under share

ordinary shares options granted

beneficially held REZRRET

Name of employee EEHSZ BRIz EREE ARTZEEREE
Mr. Foong Kok Meng FSBIRR S A - 3,795,328
Mr. Sin Kong Chiu, Franky BITHEA 10,000 500,000
Mr. Tay Kok Min BB 7 5T A 1,400,000 897,888
Mr. Yiu Chun Kit BRARGEST A - 1,800,000
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

General Meeting

One general meeting was held during the year. The general meeting
was the 2008 annual general meeting held on Thursday, 17 January
2008 at 2:30 p.m. The following resolutions were passed at the
meeting by show of hands:

Ordinary Resolutions

1.

To receive and consider the audited consolidated financial
statements and the reports of the directors and auditors for the
year ended 30 September 2007.

1 0 To re-elect Mr. Goh Yong Chian, Patrick as
director.

(i)  To re-elect Mr. Alan Howard Smith, J.P., as
director.

(i)~ To re-elect Mr. Hui Chiu Chung, J.P., as director.

(2)  To fix the remuneration of directors.

To re-appoint the auditors and to authorize the board of
directors to fix their remuneration.

(1) To grant a general mandate to the directors to
repurchase shares.

(2)  To grant a general mandate to the directors to allot and
issue new shares.

(8)  To extend the general mandate granted to the directors
to issue new shares by adding the number of shares
repurchased.
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The 2009 annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM”) will
be held on Monday, 19 January 2009. Details of the 2009 AGM
Notice, the poll voting procedures and the rights of shareholders to
demand a poll are set out in the circular to the shareholders which is
dispatched together with the 2007/08 Annual Report.

According to the bye-laws of the Company, a special general
meeting can be convened by a written request signed by
shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up share
capital of the Company, stating the purposes of the meeting, and
deposited at the registered office of the Company.

Shareholders may put forward proposals at a general meeting by
way of a written notice addressed to the Company Secretary at the
registered office of the Company.

Communication Channels

In order to develop and maintain continuing relationships with the
shareholders of the Company, the Company has established various
channels to facilitate and enhance communication:

° the annual general meeting provides a forum for shareholders
of the Company to raise comments and exchange views with
the Board

° updated key information of the Group is available on the
Company’s website at www.fraserschina.com to enable the
shareholders of the Company and the investor community to
have timely access to information about the Group

° the Company’s website offers a communication channel
between the Company and its shareholders and investors

The Chairman and the directors are available at annual general
meetings to answer questions raised by shareholders of the
Company or other interested parties. To facilitate enforcement
of shareholders’ rights, substantially different issues at general
meetings are dealt with under separate resolutions.
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Shareholding Analysis MR HE S AT

Analysis of share ownership among top 30 shareholders according BEARRRZZEZENFAA=ZTHEZK
to the register of members of the Company as at 30 September Raflt - NRARIRISOZRR ZFREDHT
2008: mr

Approximate

Percentage on

Number of  total issued shares

ordinary shares held HERTROAE

Category Bl AL BEREE ZHHB AL
%

Individual A

Local yiN: i} 18,338,110 0.27

Overseas EE)) 8,710,536 0.13

Sub-total Nt 27,048,646 0.40

Corporate AT

Local i 1,845,912,202 26.97

Overseas EE)) 4,934,822,030 7211

Sub-total Nt 6,780,734,232 99.08

Total @ct 6,807,782,878 99.48

Market capitalisation mE#E

As at the financial year end of R-ZEENFEARA=1+H

30 September 2008 LEBEE

Number of issued shares 6,843,371,580 shares

BEITIRDEE 6,843,371,580 B ik {7

Closing price HK$0.132 per share

W& HREE®0.132 7T

Market capitalisation Approximately HK$903.33 million

mERE #4775 908,330,000 7T

Shareholder Services B R AR 7%

Any matter in relation to the transfer of shares, change of name or FBEBRGEZE - ERE ki - &

address, or loss of share certificates should be addressed to the IRBEEET  BHEBARFNRMNBE
Company’s branch share registrars as follows: BRDR ik A

Tricor Standard Limited BERERR AR

26/F Tesbury Centre A

28 Queen’s Road East BT

Wanchai SRRER 285

Hong Kong SHEEF 2612

Enquiry Hotline: (852) 2980 1768 REVR ¢ (852) 2980 1768

Email: is.enquiries@tricor.com.hk HAE : is.enquiries@tricor.com.hk
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS BExg
Executive Director WITES
Mr. Ang Ah Lay (Chief Executive Officer) HLEE R S A (FTIEAE )
Non-executive Directors EHITES
Mr. Lim Ee Seng (Chairman) WIEaBE L (L)
Ms. Chong Siak Ching REBRL
(whose alternate is Mr. Chia Nam Toon) (AEFEZERBHEELE)
Mr. Goh Yong Chian, Patrick REHR&EAE
Mr. Hwang Soo Chin E b
Mr. Tang Kok Kai, Christopher BOEEL A
Independent Non-executive Directors W IENITES
Mr. Chong Kok Kong SRE S S
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung, J.P. AR (K FML)
Mr. Kwong Che Keung, Gordon B8RSSR ST A
Mr. Alan Howard Smith, J.P. Alan Howard Smith %t 4 (K F#i+)
COMMITTEES ZE8
Executive Committee WITZEE
Mr. Lim Ee Seng (Chairman) WG ()
Mr. Ang Ah Lay AT
Ms. Chong Siak Ching REBL L
Mr. Goh Yong Chian, Patrick REIMITE
Audit Committee BiZZEg
Mr. Kwong Che Keung, Gordon (Chairman) BSRESR ST ()
Mr. Chong Kok Kong SRE S e
Mr. Goh Yong Chian, Patrick REMTE
Mr. Hui Chiu Chung, J.P. AR KL (K FHL)
Mr. Alan Howard Smith, J.P. Alan Howard Smith 5t 4 (X-F#4 1)
Remuneration Committee HNEEE
Mr. Alan Howard Smith, J.P. (Chairman) Alan Howard Smith%e & (K- F4 1) (£ /)
Mr. Lim Ee Seng PNy e
COMPANY SECRETARY NGIE =
Mr. Yiu Chun Kit PR A
QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT BEREEHED
Mr. Yiu Chun Kit PR S &
REGISTERED OFFICE TMREER
Canon’s Court Canon’s Court
22 Victoria Street 22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM12 Hamilton HM12
Bermuda Bermuda
HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS BREER T EEE M
Suite 2806-2810, 28/F HB
Shell Tower, Times Square S 428
1 Matheson Street DB 157
Causeway Bay KRESRBAE

Hong Kong 281 2806-2810 F
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PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE B BERETHERE

Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited

Rosebank Centre
11 Bermudiana Road

Rosebank Centre
11 Bermudiana Road

Pembroke Pembroke
Bermuda Bermuda
BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE IN EARDBFEERLRSE
HONG KONG

Tricor Standard Limited BEREFRAR
26/F Tesbury Centre A

28 Queen’s Road East BT

Wanchai BERRNER285
Hong Kong DEEF 2612
AUDITORS BB AR

Ernst & Young LK RTEN B FT
18/F Two International Finance Centre BE

8 Finance Street IR

Central A8

Hong Kong EResP LB 181E
SOLICITORS e 40

Angela Wang & Co TS ERMEBAT
24/F Entertainment Building B

30 Queen’s Road Central ERXEF 309
Hong Kong IREETT 24 18
Richards Butler AR AT
20/F Alexandra House aE

16-20 Chater Road iR

Central T8 16-20 9%
Hong Kong JEILRE 2012
PRINCIPAL BANKERS TEFRET
China CITIC Bank FEIRTT

China Construction Bank PR IRTT
CITIC Ka Wah Bank FIERERT
DBS Bank ERIRTT

HuaXia Bank EBIRTT

OCBC Bank HEGIRTT
Standard Chartered Bank EITIRIT
COMPANY WEBSITE NETE DY

http://www.fraserschina.com

http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/fraserschina/index.htm

STOCK CODE

00535

http://www.fraserschina.com
http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/

fraserschina/index.htm
[ EiE A

00535
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Suite 2806-2810, 28/F., Shell Tower, Times Square,
1 Matheson Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
EXMBENWEFIRERES

18 % K E 2812806 E2810F

Tel E 3 (852) 2826 2826
Fax {§E (852) 2826 2888

www.fraserschina.com
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